
 

 

 
At: Gadeirydd ac Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor 

Craffu Perfformiad 
Dyddiad: 

 
 24 Tachwedd 2023 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712554 

 ebost: democrataidd@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PERFFORMIAD, DYDD IAU, 
30 TACHWEDD 2023 am 10.00 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN 
A THRWY GYNHADLEDD FIDEO. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
G Williams 
Swyddog Monitro 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL YN Y 
RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  (Tudalennau 5 - 6) 

 Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu sy’n rhagfarnu ag unrhyw 
fusnes a nodwyd i’w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn.  
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.  
 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF  (Tudalennau 7 - 20) 

 Derbyn cofnodion y Pwyllgor Craffu Partneriaethau a gynhaliwyd ar 28 Medi 
2023 (copi’n amgaeedig). 
 
 
 
 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

5 ADRODDIAD AR Y GOFRESTR RISGIAU CORFFORAETHOL  
(Tudalennau 21 - 102) 

 Ystyried adroddiad ar y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol gan y Swyddog 
Cynllunio Strategol a Pherfformiad sy’n adolygu’r risgiau sy’n wynebu’r 
Cyngor a datganiad parodrwydd y Cyngor i dderbyn risg (copi’n amgaeedig).  

10.10am – 11am 
 

                                        EGWYL 
 

6 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM HUNANASESIAD Y CYNGOR O’I 
BERFFORMIAD  (Tudalennau 103 - 236) 

 Ystyried y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ynghylch perfformiad y Cyngor yn erbyn ei 
swyddogaethau, gan gynnwys amcanion y Cynllun Corfforaethol a 
Chydraddoldeb Strategol gan y Swyddog Cynllunio a Pherfformiad (copi’n 
amgaeedig).  

11.15am – 12pm 
 

7 RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO  (Tudalennau 237 - 262) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cydlynydd Craffu (copi ynghlwm) yn gofyn am 
adolygiad o raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y pwyllgor a rhoi’r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf i’r aelodau am faterion perthnasol. 

12pm – 12.20pm 
 

8 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR   

 Cael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf gan gynrychiolwyr y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a 
Grwpiau amrywiol y Cyngor 
 

 
 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Y Cynghorydd Hugh Carson Irving 
(Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd Gareth Sandilands (Is-
Gadeirydd) 

Ellie Chard 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Martyn Hogg 
Carol Holliday 
Alan Hughes 
 

Paul Keddie 
Diane King 
Terry Mendies 
Andrea Tomlin 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 



 

Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais 
ar gyfer caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y 
cwmni sydd wedi gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol'. 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 2



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PERFFORMIAD 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, 
Neuadd y Sir, Rhuthun a thrwy gynhadledd fideo, Dydd Iau, 28 Medi 2023 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Cynghorwyr Ellie Chard, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Martyn Hogg, Carol Holliday, 
Paul Keddie, Terry Mendies, Gareth Sandilands (Is-Gadeirydd) and Andrea Tomlin 
 
Aelodau Arweiniol - Cynghorydd Gill German, Aelod Arweiniol dros Addysg, y 

Cynghorydd Rhys Thomas, Aelod Arweiniol dros Dai a Chymunedau a'r 

Cynghorydd Emrys Wynne, Aelod Arweiniol yr Iaith Gymraeg, Diwylliant a 

Threftadaeth. 

 

Aelodau Cyfetholedig Addysg - Neil Roberts a Kathleen Jones  

 

Arsylwyr: Y Cynghorwyr Joan Butterfield a Jeanette Chamberlain Jones 

 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

  
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Llywodraethu a Busnes (Swyddog Monitro) (GW); Pennaeth 

Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol a Digartrefedd Oedolion (ALl); Pennaeth Addysg 

(GD); Prif Reolwr Addysg (JB); Ysgolion Iach / Swyddog Cyn Ysgol (SL); Prif Reolwr 

Addysg (RT); Swyddog Datblygu CSGA (MLJ); Rheolwr Cynllunio Strategol a Thai (AL); 

Rheolwr Rhaglen - Datblygu Tai (MD); Swyddog Arweiniol - Tai Cymunedol (GD); 

Rheolwr Gwasanaeth, Cymorth Busnes a Chymunedau (NJ); Cynllunio Strategol a Thai; 

Cydlynydd Craffu (AG); Gwesteiwr Zoom (KJ) a Gweinyddwr Pwyllgor (SJ). 

 

Arweinwyr Craidd GwE ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych: Jacqueline Chan (Cynradd) a Mair 

Herbert (Uwchradd). 

 

Esgobaeth Wrecsam a Crist y Gair Cynrychiolwyr yr ysgol: Bernadette Thomas – 

Pennaeth Dros Dro Ysgol Gatholig Crist y Gair; Collette Owen – Esgobaeth Wrecsam; 

John Droog – Cadeirydd Llywodraethwyr Ysgol Gatholig Crist y Gair; Claire Armitstead – 

Pennaeth Ysgol Uwchradd y Rhyl/Pennaeth Cyswllt yn Ysgol Crist y Gair; a 

 

Rona Jones Pennaeth Ysgol Emmanuel (ar gyfer eitem busnes rhif 6).  
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cadeirydd, y Cynghorydd Hugh 
Irving, a’r Cynghorwyr Alan Hughes a Diane King. 
 
Yn absenoldeb y Cadeirydd, cadeiriodd yr Is-gadeirydd y cyfarfod. 
 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Agenda 4



Hysbyswyd yr aelodau fod y Cynghorydd Chris Evans wedi rhoi’r gorau i’w sedd ar 
y Pwyllgor a bod y Grŵp Annibynnol wedi penodi’r Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-
Roberts i lenwi’r sedd wag. 
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  
 
Datganodd yr aelodau canlynol gysylltiad personol ag eitemau 5, 6 a 7 ar y rhaglen: 
 
Y Cynghorydd Ellie Chard - Llywodraethwr Awdurdod Addysg Leol yn Ysgol Tir 
Morfa. 
Y Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-Roberts - Llywodraethwr Awdurdod Addysg Leol yn 
Ysgol Pen Barras 
Y Cynghorydd Martyn Hogg - Rhiant-lywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gynradd Wirfoddol 
Llanelwy 
Y Cynghorydd Carol Holliday - Llywodraethwr yn Ysgol Penmorfa 
Neil Roberts - Llywodraethwr yn Ysgol y Parc 
Gareth Sandilands - Llywodraethwr Awdurdod Addysg Leol yn Ysgol Clawdd Offa 
Y Cynghorydd Andrea Tomlin fel nain i ddisgybl yn Ysgol Crist yw’r Gair  
 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd Andrea Tomlin gysylltiad personol yn eitem fusnes rhif 8 
am ei bod yn berchen ar fusnes sy’n ymwneud â’r sector rhentu preifat yn Sir 
Ddinbych. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw eitemau brys gyda’r Cadeirydd na’r Cydlynydd Craffu cyn 
dechrau’r cyfarfod.  
 

4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad a gynhaliwyd ar 20 
Gorffennaf 2023.     
 
Penderfynwyd: y dylid derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 20 Gorffennaf 2023 fel cofnod gwir a chywir o’r gweithrediadau.  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw fater mewn perthynas â chynnwys y cofnodion.  
 

5 DIWEDDARIAD AR ADRODDIAD AROLWG YSGOL GATHOLIG CRIST Y GAIR  
 
Atgoffodd y Cadeirydd aelodau o'r rheswm dros gyflwyno'r adroddiad gan nodi bod 
yr adroddiad yn amlinellu'r cynnydd a gyflawnwyd hyd yma gan Ysgol Gatholig Crist 
y Gair ers yr adroddiad diwethaf a gyflwynwyd ym mis Ionawr 2023 mewn 
perthynas â gwella safonau. 
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol dros Addysg, y Cynghorydd Gill German yr 
adroddiad diweddaru (a ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) i'r Aelodau. Roedd y 
wybodaeth yn ychwanegol at y wybodaeth flaenorol a gyflwynwyd i'r Pwyllgor. 
Dywedodd wrth aelodau bod nifer o gyfarfodydd aml-asiantaeth wedi digwydd lle 

Tudalen 8



roedd hi wedi bod yn bresennol. Clywodd yr aelodau hefyd fod dau ymweliad 
monitro gan Estyn wedi digwydd. 
 
Ymhelaethodd y Pennaeth Addysg ar gyflwyniad yr Aelod Arweiniol gan bwysleisio 
i'r Pwyllgor fod gwireddu gwelliannau yn Ysgol Gatholig Crist y Gair yn flaenoriaeth 
i'r ysgol a'r Gwasanaeth Addysg yn gyffredinol. Diolchodd i'r holl bleidiau am eu 
rhan yn cefnogi'r ysgol.  Nod gwaith a wnaed gan swyddogion, staff addysgu a 
phartneriaid allanol oedd mynd i'r afael â'r argymhellion a osodwyd gan Estyn. 
 
Roedd gwaith helaeth wedi'i gwblhau yn yr ysgol ers yr arolygiad cychwynnol a'r 
adroddiad diweddaru cyntaf a gyflwynwyd i'r Pwyllgor ym mis Ionawr 2023. Roedd 
cryn dipyn o graffu ar y gwaith wedi digwydd, roedd Estyn fel y rheoleiddwyr yn 
craffu'r datblygiadau yn rheolaidd ynghyd â'r dull ysgol amlasiantaeth gyda'r Corff 
Llywodraethol, yr Esgobaeth a GwE yn adolygu'r cynnydd a wnaed yn erbyn y 5 
argymhelliad.   Roedd angen gwaith pellach yn erbyn y 5 argymhelliad gwreiddiol. 
Hyd yn hyn roedd y gwelliannau yn unol â disgwyliadau'r swyddogion. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r holl sefydliadau a oedd yn bresennol am eu cefnogaeth i 
sicrhau gwelliannau yn yr ysgol ynghyd â'u hymrwymiad i ddatblygu'r gwelliannau 
ymhellach a'u cynnal ar gyfer y dyfodol.  Yn dilyn y cyflwyniad, gwahoddwyd yr 
Aelodau i godi unrhyw bryderon neu gwestiynau a thrafodwyd y pwyntiau canlynol 
yn fanylach: 

 Gweithio i sicrhau bod y cymorth sydd ar gael yn gymorth cywir ar yr adeg 
gywir. Roedd yr holl randdeiliaid a gefnogodd yr ysgol yn gytûn bod angen i'r 
cymorth a gyrchwyd ac a ddarparwyd fod yn amserol, canolbwyntio ar y 
meysydd cywir a'u cynnal yn y drefn flaenoriaeth gywir. Byddai trafodaethau 
a chefnogaeth yn parhau gyda'r ysgol fel gyda phob ysgol yn Sir Ddinbych.  

 Fel mewn unrhyw ysgol, yr adnodd mwyaf a phwysicaf oedd y staff. Roedd 
cael yr holl staff i weithio gyda'i gilydd yn hanfodol ar gyfer llwyddiant yn 
ogystal â sicrhau eu cefnogaeth i unrhyw newidiadau a gwelliannau.  

 Dechreuodd gweithgor y staff fel pwyllgor ymddygiad. Cafodd staff yr ysgol 
ar draws y bwrdd ac o bob lefel eu cynnwys yn y grŵp. Roedd trafod ac 
adolygu ymddygiad disgyblion yn yr ysgol a pha fesuryddion y mae'n ofynnol 
eu rhoi ar waith i gefnogi gwelliant. Yn naturiol aeth y grŵp ymlaen o nid yn 
unig agweddau ymddygiadol ond i wersi a sut y gellid gosod y dôn yn gywir 
ym mhob gwers. Sefydlwyd disgwyliadau ar gyfer staff a disgyblion ar gyfer 
pob gwers. Y disgwyliad i staff oedd dilyn patrwm i sefydlu cysondeb drwy'r 
ysgol gyfan. Rhoddwyd rhai o ddisgwyliadau staff i'r aelodau, megis trin pob 
disgybl â pharch, cwrdd â myfyrwyr wrth y drws a rhoi cyfarwyddiadau clir ar 
yr holl weithgareddau dysgu. Mae'r disgwyliadau hynny'n gosod y naws ar 
gyfer pob gwers a hysbysu staff addysgu am y weithdrefn ar gyfer pob gwers 
a'r canlyniad disgwyliedig. Er mwyn monitro'r disgwyliadau hynny, sefydlwyd 
prosesau monitro o fewn yr ysgol. Mynychodd GwE yr ysgol ac edrychodd ar 
yr ardal hon pan gynhalion nhw arsylwadau o wersi. Darparwyd adborth ar 
sut y gweithredwyd yr ymyriadau. Byddai pob cylch monitro yr oedd yr ysgol 
wedi'i drefnu yn edrych ar y disgwyliadau ac yn ystyried a oeddent yn 
gweithio'n effeithiol. 

 Llongyfarchodd yr Aelodau bawb a fu'n gysylltiedig â'r gwaith caled a wnaed 
yn yr ysgol ers i'r materion godi ac o'r adroddiad cychwynnol a gyflwynwyd i'r 
Pwyllgor. Mynegwyd pryderon y byddai'r ysgol yn gweld dirywiad yn y gwaith 

Tudalen 9



o fonitro'r gwelliannau unwaith y byddai'r argymhellion wedi'u gwneud a'u 
cwblhau, ac y byddai'n disgyn yn ôl i ffyrdd blaenorol o addysgu. Fodd 
bynnag, pwysleisiwyd bod yn rhaid i'r ysgol fod yn agored i dderbyn unrhyw 
gefnogaeth neu arweiniad gan Sir Ddinbych neu bartneriaid allanol ar 
unrhyw adeg, yn debyg i bob ysgol arall. 

 Roedd crynodeb yn erbyn pob argymhelliad wedi'i gynnwys er mwyn cyfeirio 
at yr Aelodau. Gwnaethpwyd yn glir bod yn rhaid gwahanu cyfraddau 
presenoldeb ac ymddygiad. Roedd presenoldeb wedi gweld gwelliant 
sylweddol yn yr ysgol. Nid oedd presenoldeb yn broblem oedd gan Ysgol 
Crist y Gair ar ei ben ei hun, roedd yn fater cenedlaethol yn dilyn y 
pandemig. Teimlwyd bod yr ysgol yn uchelgeisiol iawn o ran presenoldeb.  
Roedd yr ysgol wedi derbyn yr holl gefnogaeth gan swyddogion o ran gwella 
presenoldeb yn yr ysgol. 

 Cadarnhawyd nad oedd ymddygiad wedi'i gynnwys fel rhan o'r argymhellion 
cychwynnol, roedd yr ysgol wedi cydnabod bod yn rhaid cefnogi a deall 
ymddygiad er mwyn annog disgyblion i ddysgu. Nid oedd y materion 
ymddygiad a nodwyd yn unigryw i ysgol Crist y Gair, roeddent wedi'u 
gwasgaru'n eang ledled Cymru. Pan ymwelodd Estyn a chyfathrebu â staff, 
roedd y rhan fwyaf o faterion yn ymwneud ag ymddygiad yn ymwneud â 
disgyblion yn absennol o'r dasg neu ddim yn canolbwyntio ar y dasg dan 
sylw. Gwella ymddygiad, ynghyd â'r grŵp cymorth, deialog gyda swyddogion 
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych i gefnogi staff i nodi ymddygiadau a chynnig 
awgrymiadau ar sut i wella ymddygiad dosbarth.  Roedd diwrnod ar ôl cael 
eu hysbysu gan drawma ysgolion wedi digwydd er mwyn i bob aelod o staff 
ei fynychu ac i addysgu staff am ddeall trawma a sut i reoli'r sefyllfaoedd 
hynny os a phryd y codant. 

 • Roedd yr ysgol drwy GwE yn gweithio gyda Phrifysgol Bangor ar ddarn o 
waith o'r enw prosiect ymddygiad cadarnhaol, parod ar gyfer dysgu.  Roedd 
dau ddadansoddwr ymddygiad yn gweithio yn yr ysgol ar hyn o bryd ar 
ddadansoddiad o ymddygiad a pham mae plant yn ymddwyn mewn rhai 
ffyrdd, gyda'r bwriad o ddyfeisio mesurau rhagweithiol i fynd i'r afael â heriau 
ymddygiad a chael y disgyblion i ailymgysylltu â dysgu.     

 Clywodd yr aelodau pe bai plentyn wedi cael ei wahardd yn barhaol o ddwy 
ysgol, ni fyddai'n rhaid i drydedd ysgol dderbyn y plentyn hwnnw. Ar ôl un 
gwaharddiad parhaol byddai'n rhaid i unrhyw ysgol dderbyn y plentyn hwnnw 
pe bai gan yr ysgol le.  

 Pwysleisiwyd bod staff yr ysgol 100% wedi ymrwymo i wneud y gwelliannau 
oedd eu hangen yn yr ysgol a chefnogi'r disgyblion yn ystod eu haddysg yn 
yr ysgol. Roedd morâl staff yn allweddol; Roedd pwysigrwydd sicrhau bod 
staff yn hapus yn hanfodol wrth gefnogi disgyblion bryd hynny. Roedd 
cefnogaeth a ddarparwyd gan yr Awdurdod, GwE, yr Esgobaeth ac eraill ar 
gyfer staff ag unrhyw bryderon wedi cael ei werthfawrogi'n fawr. 

 Y gost fwyaf i Gyngor Sir Ddinbych oedd amser swyddogion. Roedd amser 
swyddogion yn cael ei dreulio i gefnogi'r ysgol ac roedd staff wedi bod yn 
hanfodol er mwyn sicrhau cynnydd a gwelliant. Ni cheisiwyd cyllid o 
gyllidebau ysgolion eraill. Dirprwywyd cyllidebau i ysgolion i'r cyrff 
llywodraethu eu defnyddio i redeg a chefnogi eu hysgol. Roedd cymorth 
ychwanegol wedi'i roi i'r Corff Llywodraethol yn y ffordd o hyfforddiant allanol 
a oedd yn codi tâl bach. Pwysleisiodd swyddogion nad oedd unrhyw gyllid 
wedi ei drosglwyddo o ysgolion eraill i gefnogi ysgol Crist y Gair. Amlygodd 

Tudalen 10



yr Aelod Arweiniol y gefnogaeth staffio ac ymarferol a dderbyniwyd gan 
ysgolion cyfagos yn y Rhyl. Diolchodd i'r ysgolion eraill am y gefnogaeth 
ychwanegol a ddarparwyd ganddi.  

 Mae llywodraethu mewn ysgolion wedi newid dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf.  
Roedd ysgolion yn atebol i'w cyrff llywodraethu ac yn cael eu rheoleiddio gan 
Estyn. Roedd Cyngor Sir Ddinbych wedi dilyn y broses statudol o benodi 
llywodraethwyr yn yr ysgol ac wedi penodi aelodau ychwanegol gyda sgiliau 
arbenigol i gefnogi'r Corff Llywodraethol. Roedd swyddogion yr Awdurdod a 
GwE wedi mynychu nifer o gyfarfodydd cyrff llywodraethu i gefnogi os oedd 
angen. Roedd digwyddiadau hyfforddi ar gyfer llywodraethwyr yn cael eu 
cynnal yn rheolaidd. Y gobaith oedd erbyn diwedd y tymor y byddai'r corff 
llywodraethu ar ei lawn allu. 

 Canmolodd Cadeirydd newydd y Corff Llywodraethol y gefnogaeth a gafodd 
gan yr awdurdod addysg lleol.  Pwysleisiodd fod y Corff Llywodraethol 
bellach bron â chael ei ategu'n llawn, gyda'r aelodau'n dod ag ystod eang o 
gymwyseddau a phrofiadau gyda nhw i'r Corff Llywodraethol a fyddai'n 
amhrisiadwy iddo yn ei rôl o lywodraethu a chefnogi'r ysgol i symud ymlaen.  

 Byddai'r ymweliad nesaf disgwyliedig gan Estyn ar ryw adeg cyn y Nadolig. 
 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth eang a manwl mae'r Pwyllgor: 
 
Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar y sylwadau a'r sylwadau uchod – 

 
(i) (i) cydnabod y cynnydd a wnaed hyd yma wrth gyflawni'r cynlluniau 

gweithredu a gwella safonau ar draws yr ysgol; a  
(ii) yn gofyn am gyflwyno adroddiad cynnydd pellach ar gyflawni'r Cynllun 

Gweithredu Ôl-arolygiad a'r cyd-awdurdod lleol a chynllun 
gweithredu cymorth ysgolion GwE i'r Pwyllgor ar ddiwedd y 
flwyddyn academaidd bresennol, ym mis Gorffennaf 2024. 

   
6 DULL YSGOL GYFAN O YMDRIN Â LLES EMOSIYNOL A MEDDYLIOL  

 
Cyflwynodd Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Theuluoedd yr adroddiad (a 
ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) ar ddull ysgol gyfan o ymdrin â lles emosiynol a 
meddyliol. Pwysleisiodd bwysigrwydd meithrin lles disgyblion yn Sir Ddinbych. 
Roedd y dull gweithredu wedi newid i gynnwys partneriaid sy'n gweithio gyda 
phlant, ac o ganlyniad roedd nifer o ymyriadau a rhaglenni wedi digwydd mewn 
ysgolion. Roedd y dirwedd ariannol yn achosi pryder a phryder, roedd llawer o'r 
ymyriadau mewn ysgolion yn cael eu hystyried yn gyfleusterau ychwanegol ac 
efallai y bydd penderfyniadau cyllido yn y dyfodol yn effeithio arnynt. 
 
Pwysleisiodd y Pennaeth Addysg bwysigrwydd lles, roedd yn bresennol ym 
mhopeth ysgolion ac addysg a gynhelir yn ddyddiol. Clywodd yr aelodau fod Grŵp 
Dull Ysgolion Cyfan wedi cyfarfod hanner tymor gyda phartneriaid i ddatblygu 
ysgolion hyfforddi penodol yn teimlo y byddai'n fuddiol i staff a disgyblion yr ysgol. 
Pwysleisiwyd pwysigrwydd cefnogi lles plant yn dilyn y pandemig ei bod yn 
hanfodol bod yr awdurdod yn galluogi ac yn cefnogi ysgolion i drosglwyddo'r 
gefnogaeth honno i ddisgyblion ac i deuluoedd ehangach. 

Tudalen 11



Amlygodd yr arolygiad amlasiantaeth a gynhaliwyd ym mis Chwefror 2023 lawer o 
waith cadarnhaol a wnaeth Sir Ddinbych a'i bartneriaid ar hyn o bryd i gefnogi 
ysgolion. 
 
Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Addysg Rona Jones, Pennaeth Ysgol Emmanuel, a 
roddodd bersbectif ysgol i'r Pwyllgor o waith sy'n cael ei wneud i wella cefnogaeth i 
ddisgyblion mewn ysgolion. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r holl swyddogion a'r gwesteion am ddod i'r cyfarfod. 
Agorodd y drafodaeth a gwahoddodd yr aelodau i godi unrhyw bryderon neu 
gwestiynau oedd ganddynt. Trafodwyd y pwyntiau canlynol yn fanylach: 

  Roedd gweithio mewn partneriaeth yn hanfodol. Ni ellid datrys pob mater 
lles mewn cymdeithas mewn ysgolion ar wahân. Roedd cydweithio ag 
Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru (ICC), Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl Plant a'r 
Glasoed (CAMHS) a'r Cynllun Ysgolion Iach ynghyd â phartneriaid eraill yn 
hanfodol. Bwriad y dull ysgol gyfan oedd annog pawb i gydweithio, ar yr un 
agenda i gefnogi pawb. Roedd y Gweithgor Dull Ysgol Gyfan yn cynnwys yr 
holl bartneriaid i wneud y defnydd gorau o'r adnoddau sydd ar gael ac osgoi 
dyblygu a gweithio seilo. 

  Ar hyn o bryd roedd gwasanaeth cwnsela ar gyfer plant 4-18 oed a oedd yn 
darparu gwasanaeth gan ddefnyddio amrywiaeth o wahanol ddulliau. Maent 
yn cynnig gwasanaeth wyneb yn wyneb neu o bell os oes angen. Roedd 
mwyafrif y bobl ifanc y buont yn gweithio gyda nhw rhwng 11 a 18 oed gan 
fod darparu gwasanaeth cwnsela i bobl ifanc 11 – 18 oed yn ofyniad 
statudol. Roedd tua 12% o'r disgyblion o oedran ysgol gynradd, a 
hyfforddwyd y cwnselydd oedd yn cynnig y gwasanaeth i'r plant ifanc mewn 
chwarae therapiwtig. Hoffai'r gwasanaeth ehangu mwy ar y lefel gynradd 
ond byddai'n dibynnu ar argaeledd cyllid drwy'r grantiau a dderbyniodd y 
Gwasanaeth. 

  Clywodd yr aelodau mai Ysgol Emmanuel oedd yr ysgol gyntaf yn Sir 
Ddinbych i dderbyn yr achrediad Ysgol ar sail Trawma. Rhoddodd Rona 
Jones fanylion i'r aelodau am y gwaith a wnaed yn yr ysgol i gefnogi plant. 
Roedd nifer o blant yn yr ysgol angen y ddarpariaeth. Roedd y dull sy'n 
seiliedig ar drawma yn ymwneud ag amddiffyn a rheoleiddio sicrhau bod y 
plant yn teimlo'n ddiogel, gan roi ymyriadau ar waith i gefnogi'r emosiynau y 
mae plant yn eu mynegi. Roedd cyllid wedi caniatáu i'r ysgol gyflogi 
cynorthwywyr addysgu ychwanegol sydd wedi'u hyfforddi mewn 
gwasanaethau therapiwtig a therapydd chwarae ddeuddydd yr wythnos. 
Roedd cyllid yn bryder i'r gwasanaeth allu parhau fel yr oedd, heb sôn am 
ehangu. O ganlyniad i'r gwasanaeth roedd yr ysgol wedi gweld cyfraddau 
gwahardd is. Roedd pob aelod o staff yr ysgol wedi bod ar fwrdd y llong o'r 
cychwyn cyntaf ac wedi bod yn allweddol wrth wneud i'r newidiadau 
ddigwydd.  

  Roedd adnabod anghenion unigolion yn allweddol. Roedd yn rhaid i staff 
sicrhau'r gwerth gorau am arian o'r ymyriadau oedd ar waith. Clywodd yr 
aelodau fod staff wedi cynnal Arolygon Agwedd Disgyblion at Hunan-ac 
Ysgol (PASS) oedd yn rhoi gwybodaeth gan y disgyblion. Roedd yn 
caniatáu casglu data a gwybodaeth i gynorthwyo penderfyniadau ar yr hyn 
oedd ei angen mewn ysgolion. Ar adegau, cyfeiriwyd at yr ysgol i helpu i 
gefnogi plant a theuluoedd i gynnig cymorth yr oedd ei angen yn ystod y 

Tudalen 12



diwrnod ysgol. Roedd gweithio'n agos gyda phartneriaid ac asiantaethau i 
gefnogi plant yn fuddiol. 

  Byddai staff mewn ysgolion yn cefnogi plant gyda neu heb unrhyw 
ddiagnosis. Roedd staff yn ymwybodol o restrau aros ond yn parhau i 
gefnogi teuluoedd mewn ffyrdd a fyddai'n cynorthwyo anghenion y plentyn.        

  Y gobaith oedd y byddai'r newidiadau a'r ymyriadau a gychwynnwyd mewn 
ysgolion yn cael effaith gadarnhaol ar gymdeithas a'r gymuned yn y 
blynyddoedd i ddod. Roedd sicrhau bod gan bobl ifanc y sgiliau a'r cryfder 
meddyliol i ffynnu yn y dyfodol yn un o'r rhesymau dros weithredu'r 
newidiadau. 

  Ym marn yr Aelod Arweiniol, roedd elfen iechyd a lles cwricwlwm Cymru yn 
hanfodol ac yn hanfodol. Byddai'n cael effaith gadarnhaol ar ddisgyblion 
mewn ysgolion ac yn darparu cefnogaeth i'r rhai oedd ei angen. 

  Roedd y gallu i gefnogi a darparu'r gwasanaethau yn heriol. Roedd cyllid, 
amser a chapasiti yn bryder. Ar adegau, roedd staff yn mynd y tu hwnt i 
hynny i gefnogi unigolion yn ystod cyfnodau anodd.  Pwysleisiwyd bod staff 
addysg ac ysgolion yn gwneud eu gorau i bobl ifanc yn Sir Ddinbych.  

  Nodwyd nad oedd gwasanaethau cymorth lles emosiynol ar hyn o bryd yn 
wasanaethau statudol, gofynnodd yr aelodau a fyddai hwnnw'n faes a allai 
ddod yn statudol. Pwysleisiodd yr Aelod Arweiniol fod unrhyw benderfyniad 
o'r fath yn gorwedd gyda Llywodraeth Cymru, er bod awdurdodau addysg 
lleol yn lobïo'r Llywodraeth yn rheolaidd ar werth y maes addysg hwn a'r 
gwahaniaethau a wnaeth i deithiau addysgol disgyblion unigol. Y gobaith 
oedd y bydd mwy o bwysau yn y dyfodol yn cael ei roi i'r ardal hon. 
 

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i bawb oedd yn bresennol am eu cyfraniad i'r drafodaeth. 
 
Cofrestrodd y Pwyllgor eu pryderon ynghylch effaith bosibl lleihau adnoddau 
ariannol ar gynaliadwyedd a datblygiad hirdymor y ddarpariaeth anstatudol hynod 
werthfawr hon yn ysgolion y Cyngor.  
Ar ddiwedd trafodaeth gynhwysfawr aelodau: 
 
Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar yr arsylwadau uchod –  
 

(i) cydnabod y gwaith a wnaed hyd yma wrth weithredu fframwaith 
statudol Llywodraeth Cymru ar 'wreiddio dull ysgol gyfan' at les 
emosiynol a meddyliol ar draws ysgolion y sir; a  

(ii) cefnogi ymdrechion yr holl bartneriaid sy'n ymwneud â datblygu lefelau 
priodol o gymorth ar draws holl ysgolion y sir. 
 

7 DARPARIAETH CYFRWNG CYMRAEG  
 
Cyflwynodd Aelod Arweiniol Addysg, Plant a Theuluoedd yr adroddiad (a 
ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol) ar gyflwyno'r ddarpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg mewn 
ysgolion yn Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Arweiniodd y Pennaeth Addysg yr Aelodau drwy'r adroddiad. Roedd y rheswm dros 
yr adroddiad yn dilyn cais a wnaed yn 2022 ar ôl adroddiad ar y newidiadau i 
gategoreiddio ysgolion. O ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwnnw, cynhaliwyd gweithdy yn 
ddiweddar ar gefnogi craffu i gefnogi'r Gymraeg.  

Tudalen 13



Roedd gan yr awdurdod gynllun 10 mlynedd i gynyddu darpariaeth y Gymraeg 
mewn addysg. Pwysleisiwyd bod y cynllun yn uchelgeisiol, yn heriol ac yn newid yn 
fyw yn rheolaidd. 
 
Gwasanaethodd aelodau etholedig ar Grŵp Llywio'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg 
mewn Addysg a'i rôl oedd monitro datblygiad y cynllun a'r her pan fo angen. Yr her 
ychwanegol a nodwyd oedd y gostyngiad yng nghanran y dysgwyr a dderbyniodd 
addysg ym mlwyddyn 2 yn 2022-23 trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Roedd hyn wedi 
gostwng o'r gwaelodlin yn y cynllun o 28% ym mis Medi 2020 i 26.4%. Roedd 
manylion y cymorth a ddarparwyd wedi eu cynnwys yn yr adroddiad, gan gynnwys 
cais i lunio achos busnes i gynyddu'r ddarpariaeth Gymraeg mewn ysgolion.  
Roedd llawer iawn o waith yn digwydd ar draws nifer o wasanaethau yn yr 
awdurdod a chyda phartneriaid allanol mewn perthynas â'r mater hwn. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Aelodau Arweiniol a'r swyddogion am y cyflwyniad ac 
agorodd y ddadl i'r aelodau ofyn cwestiynau. Fel rhan o'r drafodaeth ddilynol, 
darparwyd rhagor o fanylion am y canlynol: 

 Cododd yr Aelodau bryderon am y targed o 40% o'r holl ddisgyblion saith 
oed yn mynychu Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg. Pwysleisiodd swyddogion fod y 
targed wedi ei osod gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn seiliedig ar sefyllfa bresennol 
pob Awdurdod Lleol. Roedd y targed wedi'i osod yn wreiddiol yn 2020, ac ar 
ôl hynny nododd swyddogion ostyngiad yn y llinell sylfaen. Un o'r rhesymau 
dros y gostyngiad fu dilyn pandemig Covid 19, oherwydd cau ysgolion 
cyfrwng Cymraeg ynghyd â meithrinfeydd cyfrwng Cymraeg. Byddai'r targed 
o 40% yn her i swyddogion ac ysgolion ei gyflawni. Parhau i drafod y 
trafodaethau gyda Llywodraeth Cymru ynghylch y targed. Addysg oedd un 
o'r prif bartneriaid yn hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg. Pwysleisiwyd y byddai'n rhaid i 
bob ysgol yn Sir Ddinbych gyfrannu a gweithio tuag at y targed.  

 Roedd y cynllun gweithredu ei hun wedi'i gynnwys yng Nghynllun Strategol 
Addysg Cymru a gytunwyd yn flaenorol gan y Cyngor Sir. 

 Chwaraeodd meithrinfeydd cyn-ysgol a Mudiad Meithrin ran bwysig wrth 
osod y camau cyntaf i hidlo trwy blant i ysgolion cynradd cyfrwng Cymraeg. 

 Clywodd yr aelodau fod Cylch Meithrin wedi ei agor yn ddiweddar yng 
Nghanolfan Coed Derw yn Y Rhyl.  Yn ogystal, roedd gwaith ar y gweill 
gyda'r bwriad o sefydlu 'darpariaeth drochi' yn Ysgol Brynhyfryd, Rhuthun.  

 Pwysleisiwyd mai fformat yr adroddiad a oedd ynghlwm fel atodiad i'r papur 
oedd cynllun y repot a anfonwyd at Lywodraeth Cymru. Roedd yr iaith a 
ddefnyddiwyd yn yr adroddiad yn adlewyrchu'r iaith a ddefnyddiwyd gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 

 Cadarnhawyd bod gan yr awdurdod un ysgol categori 2, y byddai'n ofynnol 
iddi ddatblygu ei darpariaeth o'r Gymraeg ymhellach. O fis Medi 2023 roedd 
yn darparu'r ddarpariaeth feithrin, drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn unig. 

 Cytunodd swyddogion â'r Aelodau ar bryderon rhieni ar anfon plant i ysgol 
cyfrwng Cymraeg os nad ydynt yn cael eu siarad yn y cartref. Pwysleisiwyd 
bod yr holl wybodaeth a gyflwynwyd i rieni yn ddwyieithog gan alluogi'r 
Gymraeg a'r di-Gymraeg i wybod a deall polisïau, cwricwlwm a chyfathrebu 
ysgolion rhwng staff a rhieni. Clywodd yr aelodau bod systemau ar waith i 
rieni wella eu Cymraeg ochr yn ochr â phlant. Roedd adnoddau'n gwella'n 
barhaus i gefnogi rhieni drwy'r amser y mae eu plant mewn ysgol Gymraeg.  

Tudalen 14



 Pwysleisiwyd bod y term addysgu cyfrwng Cymraeg yn cael ei wneud mewn 
ysgolion Saesneg eu hiaith. Roedd disgwyl i'r ysgolion cyfrwng Saesneg yn 
bennaf ddarparu 20% o'r addysgu drwy'r Gymraeg gyda'r nod o gefnogi eu 
disgyblion ar hyd y continwwm. Rhoddwyd cymorth i staff i addysgu drwy'r 
Gymraeg. 

 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl, mae'r Pwyllgor: 
 
Penderfynwyd:   
 

(i) tra'n cydnabod y rhwystrau annisgwyl a gafwyd o ganlyniad i'r 
pandemig, i gefnogi'r gwaith cynllunio a gweithredu a wnaed hyd 
yma yn Sir Ddinbych mewn perthynas â sicrhau darpariaeth 
cwricwla cyfrwng Cymraeg a darpariaeth ddi-gwricwla ar draws 
ysgolion y sir yn unol â gweledigaeth Llywodraeth Cymru; a 

(ii) gofyn i'r Pwyllgor gyflwyno adroddiad cynnydd pellach ar gyflawni'r 
Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg (WESP) i'r Pwyllgor 
ymhen 12 mis. 

 
 

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Aelod Cyfetholedig Kathleen Jones, am ei hamser a'i 
hymrwymiad ar y Pwyllgor ers 2016. Eglurodd i'r Aelodau mai'r cyfarfod presennol oedd 
cyfarfod olaf Kathleen gyda'r awdurdod. Ar ran y Pwyllgor cyfan dymunai yn dda iddi ar 
gyfer y dyfodol a diolchodd iddi am ei chyfraniadau i drafodaethau. 
 
 
Ar y pwynt hwn (12.20 p.m.) oedodd y cyfarfod am egwyl gysur o 10 munud. 
 
Ailgynhaliwyd y cyfarfod am 12.30pm. 
 
 
 
8 CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU STRATEGAETH TAI A DIGARTREFEDD SIR 

DDINBYCH  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Tai a Chymunedau yr adroddiad (a ddosbarthwyd yn 
flaenorol) i'r Pwyllgor. Pwysleisiodd i'r Pwyllgor fod llawer iawn o waith wedi'i wneud 
o fewn y gwasanaeth. Diolchodd i'r swyddogion am ddod i'r cyfarfod i ateb unrhyw 
gwestiynau. 
 
Bu'r Rheolwr Cynllunio Strategol a Thai yn tywys aelodau drwy'r adroddiad. 
Atgoffodd yr aelodau bod y Strategaeth Tai a Digartrefedd yn nodi'r nodau ar gyfer 
tai ar draws y Sir ar gyfer y cyfnod 2021-2026. Roedd yn cynnwys nifer o feysydd o 
fewn y Cyngor.  Eisteddodd cynllun gweithredu ochr yn ochr â'r Strategaeth wrth 
gyflawni'r cynllun gweithredu a oruchwylir gan Fwrdd Tai'r Cynllun Corfforaethol. 
Cyfarfu'r grŵp bob chwarter, gyda'r camau gweithredu a adolygwyd cyn pob 
cyfarfod gyda diweddariad i'r cynllun gweithredu a drafodwyd ym mhob cyfarfod. 
Roedd gan y grŵp rôl allweddol o ran monitro datblygiad y camau gweithredu ac 
unrhyw faterion a gododd. Roedd copi o'r cynllun gweithredu wedi'i gynnwys ym 
mhapurau'r agenda er gwybodaeth i aelodau.  

Tudalen 15



Roedd yr adroddiad yn dangos y meysydd cynnydd cai, yn ei barn hi roedd 
cynnydd da wedi'i wneud o ran cyflawni elfennau allweddol o'r strategaeth. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Aelod Arweiniol a'r Swyddogion am y cyflwyniad a 
gwahoddodd yr aelodau i godi unrhyw gwestiynau. Trafodwyd y pwyntiau canlynol 
yn fanylach: 

 • Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn a gyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorydd Chris Evans 
a'i ddarllen gan y Cadeirydd, dywedwyd nad oedd rheoli tai a rheoli 
tenantiaeth yn bwynt gweithredu a amlygwyd yng Nghynllun Gweithredu'r 
Strategaeth. Roedd swyddogion yn hapus i fynychu cyfarfod Craffu 
pellach i fynd i'r afael â phryderon aelodau ar reoli tenantiaethau. Roedd 
yn rhaid i swyddogion flaenoriaethu llwyth gwaith ac adnoddau ac roedd y 
materion mwy difrifol yn aml yn cael blaenoriaeth dros rai materion. Roedd 
y tîm yn gynhyrchiol ac yn cynnal ymweliadau tenantiaeth â phob cartref 
yn flynyddol. Byddai swyddogion hefyd yn cymryd rhan mewn teithiau 
cerdded ystadau gydag aelodau pe byddent yn gofyn amdanynt. Anogodd 
yr Aelod Arweiniol aelodau i gysylltu â'i hun neu swyddogion gydag 
unrhyw bryderon. 

 Roedd y sector preifat yn rhan bwysig o'r farchnad dai gyffredinol, 
adleisiodd swyddogion bryderon yr Aelodau ynghylch y newidiadau i 
ddeddfwriaeth. Roedd y gostyngiad mewn landlordiaid preifat yn peri 
pryder, roedd gwybodaeth wedi'i chynnwys yn yr adroddiad oedd yn 
cysylltu'r gostyngiad i ffigyrau digartrefedd. Bydd y gwaith o fonitro'r data 
yn parhau yn y dyfodol. Roedd nifer o resymau a oedd hefyd wedi effeithio 
ar nifer y llety rhent preifat oedd ar gael.  

 Cadarnhaodd swyddogion eu bod wedi sylwi ar effaith ar y sector 
digartrefedd oherwydd y newidiadau a wnaed i ddeddfwriaeth sy'n 
llywodraethu llety rhent preifat. Pwysleisiwyd bod swyddogion yn llwyddo i 
gefnogi unigolion allan o ddigartrefedd i lety rhent. Ers pandemig Covid-19 
roedd y sector preifat wedi bod yn heriol i swyddogion oherwydd cynnydd 
mewn rhent. Atgoffwyd yr aelodau o'r cynllun prydlesu rhent preifat, lle bo 
hynny'n bosibl, gwnaeth swyddogion roi gwybod i landlordiaid am y 
cynllun hwnnw.  

 Roedd fforwm landlordiaid preifat wedi cael ei fynychu'n dda ac wedi 
caniatáu i swyddogion a landlordiaid gael trafodaethau ar bryderon a 
chodi unrhyw gwestiynau. Dywedodd yr Aelod Arweiniol ei fod yn fuddiol 
iawn i bawb oedd yn bresennol.  

 Sicrhaodd swyddogion y Pwyllgor fod tanfeddiannaeth yn un o'r 
blaenoriaethau i swyddogion. Roedd y cynnydd wedi bod yn araf o ran y 
niferoedd. Parhaodd swyddogion i drafod gyda thenantiaid am yr opsiynau 
y gallai'r awdurdod eu cynnig. Roedd yr oedi yn yr adeiladau newydd wedi 
effeithio ar unigolion neu deuluoedd yn symud i eiddo mwy addas. Yn aml 
her arall a wynebir oedd pobl ddim eisiau symud allan o gartref eu teulu er 
ei fod bellach yn rhy fawr iddyn nhw.  

 Clywodd yr Aelodau fod y contractwr ar gyfer adeiladu prosiect Dell ym 
Mhrestatyn wedi mynd i ddwylo'r gweinyddwyr yn gynharach yn y 
flwyddyn. Y cynllun arfaethedig oedd dechrau gyda chreu mynediad a 
dymchwel y byngalo ar y safle. Cadarnhaodd swyddogion y bydden nhw'n 
dosbarthu rhagor o fanylion unwaith y byddan nhw ar gael.  

Tudalen 16



 Er bod angen un a dau eiddo gwely i'w rentu. Roedd yn rhaid i 
swyddogion reoli adnoddau i ddarparu ar gyfer cymaint o unigolion a 
theuluoedd â phosibl.  

 Ar hyn o bryd roedd tri phrosiect ar y safle Cyngor Sir Ddinbych a fyddai'n 
cael eu cwblhau erbyn mis Medi 2024. Byddai diweddariad ar dai 
fforddiadwy yn cael ei gyflwyno i bob Grŵp Ardal Aelod yn y dyfodol agos.  

 Cadarnhaodd swyddogion nad oedd unigolion wedi cofrestru gyda'r 
gwasanaeth digartrefedd mewn carafanau. 

 Ymyrraeth gynnar ac atal oedd un o agweddau allweddol y canllawiau ar 
ddigartrefedd yr oedd swyddogion yn gweithio tuag atynt. Canfuwyd yn 
aml nad oedd teuluoedd ac unigolion yn cysylltu â'r gwasanaeth tan yn 
ddiweddarach yn y broses neu eu bod am gael eu troi allan yn fuan. 
Roedd contract – Fy Nghartref Sir Ddinbych, wedi ei ddyfarnu.  Roedd y 
gwaith hwn yn canolbwyntio ar ymyrraeth gynnar wedi'i ddyfarnu i gefnogi 
unigolion ac atal pobl rhag dod yn ddigartref. Ers ei weithredu, derbyniwyd 
231 o atgyfeiriadau, a derbyniwyd 206 ohonynt fel atgyfeiriadau 
perthnasol. Roedd amrywiaeth eang o resymau dros atgyfeirio, 
swyddogion yn canolbwyntio ar gategorïau ar gyfer y nifer uwch o 
atgyfeiriadau. Roeddent yn defnyddio'r data a gasglwyd i atebion ymchwil 
y gellid eu cychwyn a'u gweithredu ar gamau cynharach yn y dyfodol, 
gyda'r bwriad o fynd i'r afael â materion yn rhagweithiol ac ymyrryd mewn 
achosion cyn iddynt ddod yn ddigartref.  

 Partneriaeth tair ffordd oedd My Home Sir Ddinbych, dan arweiniad 
Shelter Cymru. Mae'n costio tua £260,000 y flwyddyn. 

 Roedd monitro data yn fisol i sefydlu unrhyw feysydd ar gyfer digartrefedd 
posibl yn allweddol er mwyn cefnogi'r rhai sydd mewn perygl yn 
rhagweithiol. Gweithredodd swyddogion ymyrraeth gynnar a sefydlu 
cyfathrebu cynnar yn y meysydd hynny a dargedir.  

 Cadarnhaodd swyddogion fod polisi presennol y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol 
(CDLl) yn glir ac nad oeddent yn caniatáu Tai Amlfeddiannaeth. Roedd y 
polisi yn cael ei adolygu ar hyn o bryd fel rhan o'r CDLl newydd. 
Cadarnhaodd swyddogion y gallai HMOs o bosibl gynnig llety ar 
gyfraddau fforddiadwy a gwasanaethu pwrpas. Yr allwedd fyddai sicrhau 
rheolaeth dda a safon byw o fewn Tai Amlfeddiannaeth, pe bai unrhyw 
bolisi yn y dyfodol yn caniatáu eu datblygiad. Byddai'n faes trafod i'r Grŵp 
Cynllunio Strategol, yr oedd ei gyfarfodydd yn agored i'r holl aelodau 
fynychu. 

 
Ar ddiwedd trafodaeth fanwl mae'r Pwyllgor: 
 
Penderfynwyd: - yn amodol ar yr arsylwadau uchod i – 
 

(i) cadarnhau ei fod wedi darllen a deall yr adroddiad, ac wedi cydnabod y 
cynnydd a wnaed hyd yma wrth gyflawni Strategaeth Tai a Digartrefedd 
Sir Ddinbych 2021 i 2026; a 

(ii) parhau i fonitro'r gwaith o gyflawni Cynllun Gweithredu'r Strategaeth 
yn flynyddol, oni bai bod risgiau neu bryderon sylweddol ynghylch 
gallu'r Awdurdod i'w gyflawni wedi dod i'r amlwg a oedd yn gofyn am 
sylw Craffu. 
 

Tudalen 17



9 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cydlynydd Craffu yr adroddiad a'r atodiadau, (a ddosbarthwyd yn 
flaenorol) y diben o geisio gofyn i'r Pwyllgor adolygu ei raglen o waith yn y dyfodol. 
 
Roedd cyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad wedi'i drefnu ar gyfer 30 
Tachwedd 2023, a gynigiwyd ar gyfer y cyfarfod hwnnw oedd tair eitem agenda. 
 

1. Cofrestr Risg Gorfforaethol: adolygiad Medi 2023  
2. Diweddariad Hunanasesiad Perfformiad y Cyngor  
3. Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes.  

 
Roedd yr Aelodau wedi cytuno i gynnwys adroddiad diweddaru ar Ysgol Crist y Gair 
ar y blaenraglen waith ar gyfer Gorffennaf 2024 ac adroddiad dilynol ar gynllun 
Gweithredu Strategaeth Tai a Digartrefedd Sir Ddinbych ar gyfer hydref 2024 yn 
gynharach yn y cyfarfod. 
 
Trefnwyd cyfarfod y Grŵp Cadeiryddion Craffu ac Is-gadeiryddion ar gyfer 3 Hydref 
ac atgoffwyd yr Aelodau i lenwi'r ffurflen berthnasol os oedd ganddynt unrhyw 
bynciau yr oeddent am eu hystyried. 
 
Atodiad 3 oedd blaenraglen waith y Cabinet ar gyfer cyfeirio aelodau.  
Roedd Atodiad 4 yn rhoi rhagor o wybodaeth i'r Pwyllgor ynghylch y  
Argymhellion y cyfarfod blaenorol. 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at friff gwybodaeth a roddwyd i'r Aelodau cyn y cyfarfod. Eglurodd y 
Cydlynydd Craffu fod yr adroddiad ar Berfformiad Cynllun Corfforaethol Chwarter 1 
y Cyngor wedi'i gynnwys er gwybodaeth. Yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor ym mis 
Tachwedd, byddai swyddogion yn cyflwyno adroddiad chwarter 2 i drafod unrhyw 
faterion sy'n peri pryder. 
 
Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau fod tair sesiwn hyfforddi wedi'u trefnu, roedd croeso i bob 
Aelod fod yn bresennol. 
Roedd disgwyl i'r cyfarfodydd hyn gael eu cynnal ar: 

 Hydref 2023 – Amrywiaeth - Sipsiwn, Roma a Theithwyr 

 Hydref – Sgiliau Cadeirio Craffu 

 03 Tachwedd – Sgiliau Cwestiynu Craffu 
 
Aelodau: 
 
Penderfynwyd: yn amodol ar gynnwys yr adroddiadau cynnydd y cytunwyd 
arnynt yn ystod y trafodaethau yn y cyfarfod presennol, i gadarnhau 
Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad. 
 

10 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR  
 
Hysbysodd y Cynghorydd Sandilands aelodau’r Pwyllgor ar weithrediadau cyfarfod 
diweddar o’r Grŵp Craffu Cyfalaf a thrafodwyd y pynciau canlynol ymysg eraill:  

 Prosiectau’r Gronfa Ffyniant Bro 

 Rheoli Llifogydd yn Naturiol  

Tudalen 18



 Lleoedd Lleol ar gyfer Natur 

 Grant Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol (ADY) 

 Ysgolion Bro 

 Neuadd Kentigern, Llanelwy 

 Prosiect Archifau ar y Cyd Gogledd Ddwyrain Cymru 
 
Darparodd y Cynghorydd Ellie Chard drosolwg o’r trafodaethau a gafwyd yng 
nghyfarfod Herio Gwasanaeth Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant. Cafodd y gwaith 
cysylltu cyn-geni a’r cynnydd a wneir wrth fynd i’r afael â phroblemau yn ymwneud 
â ‘ddim mewn addysg, gwaith neu hyfforddiant’ ei drafod mewn manylder.  
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 1.20pm 
 

Tudalen 19



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 30 Tachwedd 2023 

Aelod Arweiniol / Swyddog Helen Vaughan-Evans – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 

Cymorth Corfforaethol:  Perfformiad, Digidol ac 

Asedau / Y Cynghorydd Julie Matthews, Aelod 

Arweiniol Polisi, Cydraddoldeb a Strategaeth 

Gorfforaethol 

Awdur yr Adroddiad Heidi Barton-Price, Swyddog Cynllunio Strategol a 

Pherfformiad 

Teitl Adolygiad y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol, Medi 2023 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am Adolygiad mis Medi 2023 o'r Gofrestr Risgiau 

Corfforaethol. 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. I ddarparu gwybodaeth am yr adolygiad diweddaraf o’r Gofrestr Risgiau 

Corfforaethol.  

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ac yn gwneud sylwadau ar y diwygiadau a wnaed i’r 

Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol trwy adolygiad Medi 2023  

 (Atodiad 3), gan gynnwys statws pob risg yn erbyn ein Datganiad Parodrwydd i 

Dderbyn Risg (Atodiad42). 

3.2. Bod y Pwyllgor yn ystyried y ddogfen gryno (Atodiad 2) sy’n cynnwys statws lliwiau a 

thueddiadau. 

Tudalen 21

Eitem Agenda 5



 
 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1. Yr Uwch Dîm Arwain, ynghyd â’r Cabinet, sy’n datblygu ac yn berchen ar y Gofrestr 

Risgiau Corfforaethol.  Caiff ei hadolygu ddwywaith y flwyddyn gan y Cabinet yn 

ystod sesiwn friffio’r Cabinet. 

4.2. Yn dilyn pob adolygiad, caiff y gofrestr ddiwygiedig ei chyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Craffu 

Perfformiad a’i rhannu gyda’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio.  

4.3. Cynhaliwyd yr adolygiad diwethaf ym mis Chwefror 2023. Mae'r papurau a 

gyflwynwyd i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad ar gael ar-lein.      

4.4. Yn ystod yr adolygiad diweddaraf hwn, cafwyd adolygiad cyflawn o bob un o'r 20 

Risg ar y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol, yn cynnwys teitlau, perchnogion risg, 

disgrifiadau, rheolaethau hanfodol a sgoriau risg.  Mae newidiadau sylweddol wedi 

cael eu gwneud i’r gofrestr risgiau ac wedi’u nodi ar ddechrau pob risg yn Atodiad 3.  

Ceir crynodeb o’r newidiadau mwyaf arwyddocaol yn Atodiad 1. 

4.5. Wrth gyfuno Risgiau 06, 18, 27, 30, 33, 36 yn risgiau wedi’u mireinio, israddio i lefel 

gwasanaeth Risgiau 13, 44 a 49 ac ychwanegu Risgiau 51 a 52, mae gennym 

bellach gyfanswm o 13 Risg Gorfforaethol ar ein Cofrestr (Atodiad 2). 

Sylwch fod rhif gwreiddiol y risg ar adeg ei nodi gyntaf yn cael ei gadw at ddibenion 

archwilio. 

4.6. Defnyddiwyd datganiad parodrwydd i dderbyn risg y Cyngor yn y trafodaethau a 

gafwyd gyda pherchnogion risg, ac mae ein lefel risg (yn seiliedig ar y sgôr) wedi’i 

dadansoddi o fewn y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol (Atodiad 3).  

4.7. Ar hyn o bryd, mae saith risg - 01, 21, 34, 45, 50, 51 a 52 (54%) yn anghyson â 

Datganiad Parodrwydd i Dderbyn Risg y Cyngor (Atodiad 4).  

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 
Corfforaethol?  

5.1. Diben y Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol yw amlygu digwyddiadau posib yn y dyfodol a 

allai gael effaith niweidiol ar allu’r Cyngor i gyflawni ei amcanion, gan gynnwys ei 

flaenoriaethau corfforaethol.  Mae’r camau rheoli a gweithredu a amlygir felly yn 

hanfodol i gyflawni Cynllun Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027. 

Tudalen 22

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6748&Ver=4&LLL=1
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6748&Ver=4&LLL=1


 
 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Mae costau datblygu, monitro ac adolygu’r Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol yn cael eu 

cynnwys yn y cyllidebau cyfredol.  

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Mae’r Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol yn cofnodi risgiau a’r camau lliniaru.  Nid yw’r 

broses o ddatblygu ac adolygu’r ddogfen ei hun yn cael effaith niweidiol ar unrhyw un 

o’r nodau lles. Fodd bynnag, efallai y bydd angen cynnal asesiad o effaith ar les ar 

gyfer unrhyw broses, strategaeth neu bolisi newydd sy’n cael eu llunio o ganlyniad i 

gam lliniaru. 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1. Cyn Sesiwn Friffio’r Cabinet cynhaliwyd trafodaethau unigol gyda Pherchnogion 

Risgiau’r Tîm Gweithredol Corfforaethol (y Prif Swyddog Gweithredol a 

Chyfarwyddwyr Corfforaethol) yn ogystal â chyfraniad gan Benaethiaid Gwasanaeth 

perthnasol a swyddogion sy’n arwain ar gamau pellach er enghraifft.   

8.2. Dosbarthwyd adroddiad i’r Tîm Gweithredol Corfforaethol ar 3 Hydref, 2023 i gytuno 

a / neu wneud diwygiadau pellach. 

8.3. Mae'r Gofrestr wedi'i thrafod gyda’r Uwch Dîm Arwain ar 19 Hydref, 2023 i gytuno a / 

neu wneud diwygiadau pellach. 

8.4. Mae'r Gofrestr wedi'i thrafod yn Sesiwn Friffio’r Cabinet ar 6 Tachwedd, 2023 i 

gytuno a / neu wneud diwygiadau pellach. 

8.1. Rhannwyd y gofrestr a ddiweddarwyd gyda’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio ar 

22 Tachwedd, 2023 i roi sicrwydd o’r adolygiad diweddaraf o’r Gofrestr Risgiau 

Corfforaethol ac i wneud unrhyw sylwadau. 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol yn codi wrth ddatblygu, monitro ac adolygu’r 

Gofrestr Risgiau Corfforaethol.  

Tudalen 23



 
 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 

10.1. Nid oes unrhyw risgiau yn gysylltiedig â’r adolygiad hwn. 

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1. Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000. 

11.2.  Mae Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn amlinellu swyddogaethau a chyfrifoldebau uwch 

swyddogion ac yn nodi bod rhaid i weithdrefnau a phrosesau clir fod yn eu lle i reoli 

risg yn effeithiol. 

11.3. Mae Adran 21 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 ac Adran 7 Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

nodi pwerau Craffu mewn perthynas ag edrych ar benderfyniadau a wnaed neu 

gamau a gymerwyd mewn cysylltiad â chyflawni unrhyw un o swyddogaethau’r 

Cyngor, un ai gan y Cabinet neu ran arall o’r Cyngor. 

 

 

Tudalen 24



Appendix 1 

In summary, the most significant changes include: 

Risk 06: The risk that the economic and financial environment worsens beyond current 

expectations, leading to additional demand on services and reduced income, Risk 27: The 

risk that even if the settlement is as anticipated, decisions that are necessary to identify 

and deliver the savings programme and enable a balanced budget are not taken or 

implemented quickly enough and Risk 33: The risk that the cost of care is outstripping the 

council’s resource have been amalgamated into a new financial Risk 51: The risk that the 

economic and financial environment worsens and results in the Council’s inability to set a 

balanced budget. (Risk 06, 27 and 33 removed and archived). 

New financial Risk 52: Insufficient funding leads to withdrawal or scaling back of services, 

even when a balanced budget is delivered has been added. 

Risk 11 : The risk title has been amended from `The risk of an ineffective response to a 

serious event, such as severe weather, contamination, public safety, cyber-attack, or a 

public health event (such as Covid-19) to `The risk of an unexpected or unplanned serious 

event occurring’.  Examples have been removed from the title to cover any unexpected 

and unplanned serious event. Councillor Barry Mellor and Councillor Win Mullen James 

have been removed as Lead Members for this risk and Councillor Julie Matthews Lead 

Member (Corporate Strategy, Policy & Equalities) remains as the Lead Member with 

overall strategic responsibility for Emergency Planning. 

Risk 13: The risk of significant liabilities resulting from alternative models of service 

delivery with focus on DLL has been removed and de-escalated to Service Risk Register. 

Risk 18: The risk that programme and project benefits are not fully realised has been 

removed. 

Risk 30 `The risk that Senior Leadership capacity and skills to sustain service and 

corporate performance is not available’ has now been incorporated into Risk 48 with the 

amended title of ` The risk that recruitment and retention issues leads to a loss of expertise 

and capacity resulting in poor or inadequate performance'.  The Risk Owner is now Gary 

Williams (previously Graham Boase). 

 

Tudalen 25



 
 

Risk 34: The title of this risk has been amended from `The risk that demand for specialist 

care cannot be met locally to `The risk that there is insufficient regulated care’. 

Risk title amendments of Risk 37: The risk that partners don't have the resources, 

matching priorities or commitment to support delivery of shared plans and priorities and 

Risk 45: The risk to the Council’s reputation of not responding swiftly or sufficiently enough 

in making our contribution to tackle climate change and bring about nature’s recovery 

following the declaration of a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency in July 2019  

have resulted in a change of focus of the risks and accordingly they have been completely 

rewritten and reviewed. 

Risk 44: The risk of Ash Dieback Disease (ADB) in Denbighshire leading to significant 

health and safety issues that represent a potential risk to life has been removed and de-

escalated to a Service level as part of the ongoing Ash Dieback Project and Action Plan 

management. 

Risk 49: The risk that the future funding regime doesn’t allow the Council to continue to 

support the most vulnerable learners and disengaged young people in the way we have 

been through EU funding has been removed and de-escalated to Service Risk Register. 

Risk 50: The risk that Welsh Government’s commitment to eliminate profit from the care of 

Children Looked After results in an unstable or unsuitable supply of placements has been 

reviewed and the Residual Risk Score has increased from C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible 

and Medium Impact to B2 – Critical Risk: Highly Likely and High Impact. Now a Critical 

risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. 

 

Tudalen 26



 

Appendix 2 
 

Summary of Corporate Risk 
Register 
September Review 2023  

Tudalen 27



Corporate Risk Register 

The Council’s Corporate Risk Register (CRR) contains the Council’s most serious 

risks. It is owned by Cabinet and the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). 

We define our risks using a scale of likelihood of the risk occurring and the impact of 

the risk occurring. We also determine whether the risk is in line with our risk appetite. 

Risk appetite is the level of risk we are prepared to tolerate or accept in pursuit of our 

long term, strategic objectives. 

The Risk Management Strategy is available on our website. 

Risk Score Risk 
Severity 

Escalation Criteria 

C5, D4, D5, E4, E5 Minor 

(Green) 

Risk easily managed locally and no need to 

involve management 

A5, B4, B5, C3, C4, 

D3, E2, E3 

Moderate 

(Yellow) 

Risk containable at service level and senior 

management and SLT may need to be kept 

informed 

A3, A4, B3, C2, D1, 

D2, E1 

Major 

(Orange) 

Intervention by SLT with Cabinet 

involvement 

A1, A2, B1, B2, C1 Critical (Red) Significant SLT and Cabinet intervention 

Summary of current corporate risks and score (September 2023) 

Following this September 2023 review we now have 13 corporate risks on our 

register.  54% (7) are outside of our risk appetite.   

Tudalen 28

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/risk-management-strategy.aspx


CORPORATE RISK REGISTER – SUMMARY SEPTEMBER 2023 REVIEW 

Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2023 Review Trend since 

last report 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

01. Safeguarding 

incident 

A1 Critical (Red) 

Risk Almost 

Certain and Very 

High Impact 

A1 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and Very 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and updated Same  No 

 

11. Ineffective 

response to a 

serious event 

A2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and High 

Impact 

C3 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Possible and 

Medium Impact 

Risk title amended to :The risk of an 

unexpected or unplanned serious event 

occurring.  Risk reviewed and updated. 

 

Same Yes 

T
udalen 29



Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2023 Review Trend since 

last report 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

12. Negative 

reports from 

external regulators 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and High 

Impact 

C3 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Possible and 

Medium Impact 

Risk reviewed and updated Same  Yes 

 

14. Health and 

Safety 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and High 

Impact 

E2 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Rare and High 

Impact 

Risk reviewed and updated. Same Yes 

21. Strategic 

misalignment 

between the Health 

Board and the 

Council 

A1 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and Very 

High Impact 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and 

High Impact 

Risk title amended to: The risk that the 

integration of health and social care 

services between BCUHB and DCC does 

not develop further.  Risk reviewed and 

updated. 

Same No 

T
udalen 30



Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2023 Review Trend since 

last report 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

31. Fraud and 

corruption 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and High 

Impact 

E2 Moderate 

(Yellow) Risk: 

Rare and High 

Impact 

Risk reviewed and updated Same Yes 

34. Demand for 

specialist care 

cannot be met 

locally 

A2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and High 

Impact 

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

Risk title amended to: The risk that there is 

insufficient regulated care.  Risk reviewed 

and updated. 

Same No 

37. Partnerships 

and inequalities 

deprivation 

B1 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

Very High Impact 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and 

High Impact 

Risk title amended to: The risk that 

partners don't have the resources, 

matching priorities or commitment to 

support delivery of shared plans and 

priorities and rewritten. 

Same Yes 

T
udalen 31



Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2023 Review Trend since 

last report 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

45. Net Carbon 

Zero and 

Ecologically 

positive 

A2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Almost 

Certain and High 

Impact 

C2 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Possible and 

High Impact 

Risk title amended to: The risk to the 

Councils reputation of not responding 

swiftly or sufficiently enough in making our 

contribution to tackle climate change and 

bring about natures recovery following the 

declaration of a Climate Change and 

Ecological Emergency in July 2019 and 

rewritten. 

Same No 

48. Recruitment 

and retention 

B3 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Likely and 

Medium Impact 

B3 Major 

(Orange) Risk: 

Likely and 

Medium Impact 

Risk title amended to: The risk that 

recruitment and retention issues leads to a 

loss of expertise and capacity resulting in 

poor or inadequate performance.  Risk 

reviewed and updated. 

Same Yes 

T
udalen 32



Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2023 Review Trend since 

last report 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

50. Placements for 

Children Looked 

After  

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

B2 Critical (Red) 

Risk: Likely and 

High Impact 

Risk reviewed and updated. The Residual 

Risk Score increased from C3 – Moderate 

Risk: Possible and Medium Impact to B2 – 

Critical Risk: Highly Likely and High 

Impact. Now a Critical risk. Risk Appetite 

suggests that this should be at most a 

moderate risk. 

Worse No 

51. Economic and 

financial 

environment 

worsens and results 

in the inability to set 

a balanced budget. 

B1 – Critical Risk: 

Likely / Very High 

Impact 

C1 – Critical 

Risk: Possible / 

Very High 

Impact 

New Risk: Incorporates previous Risks 06 

Economic environment worsens (council), 

27: Budgetary decisions are not taken or 

implemented quickly enough and 33: Cost 

of care is outstripping resource. 

New No 

T
udalen 33



Risk Title Inherent Risk 

Score 

Residual Risk 

Score 

September 2023 Review Trend since 

last report 

Within 

Risk 

Appetite 

52. Insufficient 

funding leads to 

withdrawal or 

scaling back of 

services, even 

when a balanced 

budget is delivered 

B1 – Critical Risk: 

Likely / Very High 

Impact 

B1 – Critical 

Risk: Likely / 

Very High 

Impact 

New Risk: Insufficient funding leads to 

withdrawal or scaling back of services, 

even when a balanced budget is delivered 

New No 

 

T
udalen 34



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 

Corporate Risk Register - September 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

Corporate Risk Register - September 2023 ..................................................................... 1 

Tudalen 35



 
2 

Please note the original number of the risk at time of first identified is kept for audit 

purposes. 

Risk 01: The risk of a serious safeguarding or practice error, where the council has 

responsibility, resulting in serious harm or death .......................................................... 4 

Risk 11: The risk of an unexpected or unplanned serious event occurring ............... 12 

Risk 12: The risk of a significantly negative report(s) from external regulators. ....... 15 

Risk 14: The risk of a health & safety incident resulting in serious injury or the loss 

of life. (where H&S is referred to, this incorporates fire safety) .................................. 19 

Risk 21: The risk that the integration of health and social care services between 

BCUHB and DCC does not develop further ................................................................... 23 

Risk 31: The risk of fraud and corruption resulting in financial and reputational loss 

and possibly impacting on service delivery. ................................................................. 27 

Risk 34: The risk that there is insufficient regulated care ............................................ 30 

Risk 37: The risk that partners don't have the resources, matching priorities or 

commitment to support delivery of shared plans and priorities ................................. 36 

Risk 45: The risk to the Council’s reputation of not responding swiftly or sufficiently 

enough in making our contribution to tackle climate change and bring about natures 

recovery following the declaration of a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency 

in July 2019. ..................................................................................................................... 39 

Risk 48: The risk that recruitment and retention issues leads to a loss of expertise 

and capacity resulting in poor or inadequate performance ......................................... 45 

Risk 50: The risk that Welsh Government’s commitment to eliminate profit from the 

care of Children Looked After results in an unstable or unsuitable supply of 

placements ....................................................................................................................... 49 

Risk 51: The risk that the economic and financial environment worsens and results 

in the Council’s inability to set a balanced budget. ...................................................... 52 

Risk 52: The risk that insufficient funding leads to withdrawal or scaling back of 

services, even when a balanced budget is delivered ................................................... 58 

Tudalen 36



 
3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk Register (September 2023) 

September 2023 Review changes are summarised under each risk title summary. 

Tudalen 37



 
4 

Risk 01: The risk of a serious safeguarding or practice error, 

where the council has responsibility, resulting in serious harm 

or death 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Elen Heaton, Councillor Gill German, and Councillor Julie 

Matthews 

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

September 2023 update: 

Risk 01 has been reviewed and updated. 

It continues to feel appropriate to keep the residual risk score at A1 – Critical Risk 

Almost Certain and Very High Impact. 

Keeping the risk score at this level enables the risk to be further prioritised and 

escalated with significant scrutiny continuing at CET, Cabinet and Governance & Audit 

Committee (GAC). 

Description 

This risk - concerning children and adults at risk - is increasing as the environment is 

changing, with growing expectations around our duties in relation to third party provision. 

The cumulative impact of recruitment and retention issues in social care is significantly 

impacting on the council’s ability to deliver statutory social care functions. As at 

September 2023, we remain deeply concerned that a death could occur as a result of 

insufficient staffing resources.  

There is a national recruitment and retention crisis in social care (see also risk 48). Social 

care frequently loses staff due to the superior pay and conditions offered by recruitment 

agencies, other local authorities and the health board, often for similar but less demanding 

roles. Our services are often only able to replace experienced staff with newly qualified or 

inexperienced workers that require significant support and are unable to independently 

work with the increasingly complex cases referred to the service. Many new starters are 

younger, newly qualified staff and rates of maternity leave in some teams are high. 

Tudalen 38



 
5 

There were already reported shortages in social care and health sector. However, an 

impact of Covid-19 is a significant movement of the workforce away from social care and 

health. As described above, fewer social workers are entering the profession than are 

leaving. The market is extremely competitive and there is no national pay structure in 

place in the sector (like there is for education). Other employers offer more competitive 

and attractive packages that the council cannot compete with. 

At the same time, caseloads are becoming more complex and are increasing. There is a 

risk of people not being supported, or not being seen with the right intensity. 

Recruitment and retention challenges, together with more demanding cases and 

workloads, are impacting social care services’ ability to deliver its statutory responsibilities; 

are placing increased pressure on remaining staff in the teams, negatively impacting their 

well-being and increasing levels of unplanned absence. 

Failure of social care services to deliver its statutory responsibilities could result in: 

 Death, injury or neglect to vulnerable citizens and their carers 

 Legal challenge 

 Financial damage 

 Reputational damage 

 Sanction by Regulatory Body 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

The impact of Covid-19, the continued pressures with recruitment and retention, the 

deterioration in the economy and the pressures people are facing, all escalated this risk in 

terms of its inherent and residual risk scores, with the overall risk score being heightened 

to its maximum level in September 2022. Since the situation has not improved. We will 

ensure continued extremely close management at the most senior operational, corporate 

and political levels of the council, and we continue to raise this risk at a national level. 

Impact / Consequences 

 Individual(s) experience significant harm or death. 

 Significant reputational loss. 

 Possible intervention by Welsh Government or Care Inspectorate Wales. 

 Legal/compensation costs. 

Tudalen 39



 
6 

 Poor staff well-being and sickness  

Inherent Risk 

A1 – Critical Risk: Almost certain / Very high impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

In addition to the controls listed further below, CET and Cabinet have introduced monthly 

risk reviews. Every month, Lead Members, the Corporate Director and Heads of Service 

provide a verbal update on the level of risk and the actions being taken to manage and 

reduce it. 

Cllr Julie Matthews has been identified as another Lead Member for this risk, because it 

links to recruitment. 

Critical controls: 

 The joint inspection of the multi-agency response to keeping children and young 

people safe in Denbighshire was published May 2023.  

o The report outlined findings about the effectiveness of partnership working 

and of the work of individual agencies in Denbighshire and found in common 

with many areas across Wales, challenges in recruitment and retention of 

staff across key agencies in Denbighshire is impacting on safeguarding 

children’s arrangements.  This is made more difficult by the high levels of 

demand and increasing complexity of children’s needs. 

o Due to a lack of social workers, there is a growing reliance on newly qualified 

and agency social workers. In the local authority, the situation has been 

categorised as a corporate high risk. 

o They found there are systems and relationships in place to facilitate effective 

partnership working where a child is at risk of harm. Partners are working to 

a shared ethos of safeguarding children at different levels of vulnerability. 

Organisational leaders have a shared vision with a positive approach to 

regional safeguarding arrangements. 

o This clear strategic commitment has resulted in the commissioning of a 

sufficient range of effective local services to support children and families. 

 This was a new multi-agency inspection by four regulators and was the first in 

Wales to be carried out.   

Tudalen 40

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire


 
7 

 The first risk focus session for CET took place on October 17, 2022 following the 

escalation of this risk and discussion at CET on October 13, 2022. CET agreed to 

focus on progress in relation to key actions, which it now discusses every month. 

The actions under review bring together the critical operational, strategic and 

political actions the council is undertaking to manage this risk.  

 Cabinet now receives monthly verbal updates at Cabinet Briefing, from Lead 

Members, the risk owner and Heads of Service. 

Performance Scrutiny Committee and Governance and Audit Committee received 

reports on the February 2023 risk review. To follow up on previous lines of enquiry 

at Governance and Audit - and to support discussions related to the interconnected 

nature of this risk with other risks contained within this register - a report on 

recruitment and retention issues in Social Services was submitted as an 

information report.   

 Governance and Audit Committee received a report on October 4, 2022, about a 

Care Inspectorate Wales inspection. The report highlighted recruitment and 

retention challenges and the Committee was reassured that safeguarding was 

being managed as a critical risk on the council’s corporate risk register and that 

steps were being taken to try to alleviate the situation. 

 Meetings with Welsh Government have taken place to discuss the extent of our 

concerns and how the risk has escalated. We are having internal meetings involving 

CET, and with the Leader and lead members. There is now a memorandum about 

children’s agency workers, and is being led by All Wales Children’s’ Heads of 

Service, and is being adhered to.  

 We have set the care fees to ensure that providers can pay their social care staff 

the Real Living Wage.  Although the Welsh Government settlement notification 

states that they have included funding to enable authorities to continue to meet the 

additional costs of introducing the Real Living Wage for care workers, the total 

Revenue Support Grant fell well short of funding all pressures within social services 

so the commitment remains a pressure for the Council. 

 Ongoing discussions with HR are taking place and we are taking action as part of 

our efforts to resolve recruitment and retention issues in social care and health and 

more widely across council service (see also controls for the recruitment and 

retention risk 48).  

 The Corporate Social Care Recruitment & Retention Board is chaired by the 

Corporate Director, supported by Human Resources, Communications, and 

Tudalen 41

http://mgintranet/mgAi.aspx?ID=24021&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6835&LLL=0


 
8 

Working Denbighshire. An action plan has been developed and most actions have 

been implemented, including: 

o Appointment of a dedicated HR Recruitment Specialist for Social Care 

o Extended advertisement for social care vacancies 

o Improved recruitment packs 

o Detailed analysis of joiners and leavers data 

o Liaising with Working Denbighshire to capture / follow up unsuccessful 

candidates 

o Dedicated Job Fairs and DCC attendance at various community events with 

a focus on social care recruitment 

o Specific advertising and social media campaign focussing on social care 

recruitment including delivery vehicles and DCC branding 

o Removal of Grade 7 for New Social Workers and Occupational Therapists 

o Grade 8 to Grade 9 Progression for Social Workers and Occupational 

Therapists 

o Re-Introduction of Practice Teacher Payments 

o Review of Adult Mental Health Social Workers 

o Claiming of Registration Fees – process reviewed and simplified 

o HR has conducted a comprehensive comparison of pay and conditions 

across the 6 North Wales Local Authorities and BCUHB 

 The Corporate Director presented the situation to the WLGA in September 2022. 

WLGA is gaining momentum in its work to support local authorities on this. 

 We have a statutory responsibility for safeguarding and the operational delivery of 

our statutory functions, alongside our partners’, are our critical controls to mitigate 

the risk. Other services, and our wider corporate response, is about understanding 

and awareness so that people know what to do if and when they have concerns 

about a person or family’s welfare.  

Ancillary controls:  

 We have asked other councils in North Wales how they are evaluating and 

managing any safeguarding risks on their corporate risk registers. 

 We have responded to a Welsh Government call for evidence regarding 

independent schools’ legislation and guidance in Wales.  Some of the proposed 

changes to safeguarding are a direct result of issues and concerns raised by 

Denbighshire County Council. 

Tudalen 42



 
9 

 The North Wales Safeguarding Children Board Local Delivery Group, developed by 

Denbighshire, has been recognised as good practice. 

 The Corporate Parenting Forum continues to progress well and is well attended. 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Safeguarding policy and procedures are in place. The Corporate Safeguarding 

Policy has been reviewed and updated in line with legislation. 

 Corporate Safeguarding Training Programme. 

 Framework of self-assessment for schools in relation to safeguarding has been 

established. 

 Section 28 audit tool in place for voluntary sector to ensure safeguarding practices 

are in place.  

 Compliance with safeguarding practises is part of the annual HR audit of schools. 

 Regional arrangements for safeguarding a) children and b) adults at risk are in 

place. The regional safeguarding boards set priorities and actions regionally, e.g. 

training and policies & procedures. This includes, for example, working in 

partnership with North Wales Police on such issues as County Lines. 

 Risk assessments in place for recruiting staff who require a DBS check and/or 

references and this is monitored and scrutinised by the Corporate Safeguarding 

Panel. 

 Safeguarding policy review has taken place with Schools and guidance has been 

developed 

 Key posts within the Council that could have an impact on safeguarding have been 

identified and Heads of Service are reviewing the posts to ensure that adequate 

checks are undertaken by the Council or and external body. All employee contracts 

make reference to safeguarding. 

 Corporate Safeguarding Panel has been reviewed including the terms of reference, 

roles and responsibilities. 

 Heads of Service have been asked to ensure they consider safeguarding when 

reviewing their risk registers and that safeguarding be included in service challenge 

where appropriate. 

Tudalen 43



 
10 

 Briefing sessions on safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation have been 

delivered to County Council. Safeguarding features in three Cabinet Members' 

portfolios. 

 Improvements have been made to safeguarding arrangements with contractors 

including (i) DBS contract checks, (ii) ensuring that Council staff responsible on site 

for the contractor and managing the tendering / contract process are clear of their 

responsibilities in respect of safeguarding, (iii) ensuring contacts terms and 

conditions (including JCT) in relation to DBS checks are appropriate, (iv) ensuring 

that self-assessment arrangements as part of contract management are 

appropriate. 

 Safeguarding e-learning module in place and compliance is monitored and 

scrutinised by the Corporate Safeguarding Panel. 

 Recording and sharing safeguarding incidents and near misses is a standing item of 

the Corporate Safeguarding Panel. It also shares case reviews where there is a 

corporate perspective for lessons learned.  Service representatives are responsible 

for reporting any key messages from panel meetings to members of staff within 

their services. 

 Adoption of Wales Safeguarding Procedures. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CSP102m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date DBS (DCC) 

 CSP103m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date reference check 

or risk assessment (DCC) 

 CSP104m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date DBS (schools) 

 CSP105m: The percentage of eligible staff that have an up-to-date reference check 

or risk assessment (schools) 

 CPCSP47i Percentage of employees that have completed all 9 mandatory e-

learning modules (including Safeguarding) by the end of the year (excluding 

schools)  

Assurance: 

 A joint inspection of the multi-agency response to keeping children and young 

people safe in Denbighshire was published May 2023.   

Tudalen 44

https://hmicfrs.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/publications/joint-inspection-of-the-multi-agency-response-to-keeping-children-and-young-people-safe-in-denbighshire/
https://hmicfrs.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/publications/joint-inspection-of-the-multi-agency-response-to-keeping-children-and-young-people-safe-in-denbighshire/


 
11 

 Corporate Support Services: People took a report on Workforce Planning, 

Recruitment & Retention to Performance Scrutiny in July 2023. 

 Senior Leadership : All recruitment to the vacant Head of Service posts have now 

been completed with the following appointments and start dates: 

Head of Adult Social Care & Homelessness Services – commenced post 1st July 

2023 

 In summary, the report confirmed that Human Resources (HR) have robust HR 

initiatives and strategies in place to support the Corporate Workforce Plan. The 

development of some policies and guidance has been delayed due to vacancies 

within the team and workload pressures, however these have new revised 

completion dates. 

 A Corporate Recruitment and Retention paper was presented to January 2023 

Governance and Audit Committee, which included aspects of social care issues.  

 This risk is a standing item on Cabinet Briefing and Corporate Executive Team 

monthly meetings. 

 The North Wales Safeguarding Children Board Local Delivery Group and Adult 

Local Delivery Group continue to meet and influence policy and practice. 

Residual Risk 

A1 – Critical Risk Almost certain / Very high impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?  

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a minor risk. The Risk 

Owner has confirmed that the scoring accurately reflects the current risk to the council. 

  

Tudalen 45

http://mgintranet/documents/s51571/Workforce%20Planning%20Recruitment%20and%20Retention%20Report%20200723.pdf?LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6664&LLL=0


 
12 

Risk 11: The risk of an unexpected or unplanned serious event 

occurring 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Julie Matthews (Lead Member for Emergency Planning) 

Risk Owner: Graham Boase 

September 2023 update:   

Risk 11 : The risk title has been amended from `The risk of an ineffective response to a 

serious event, such as severe weather, contamination, public safety, cyber-attack, or a 

public health event (such as Covid-19) to `The risk of an unexpected or unplanned 

serious event occurring’  

Examples have been removed from the title to cover any unexpected and unplanned 

serious event. 

Councillor Barry Mellor and Councillor Win Mullen James have been removed as Lead 

Members for this risk and Councillor Julie Matthews Lead Member (Corporate Strategy, 

Policy & Equalities) remains as the Lead Member with overall strategic responsibility for 

Emergency Planning. Relevant Lead Members may have to lead on specific aspects of an 

emergency and its implications, but the overall strategic lead in relation to the Councils 

planning for an emergency and strategic response to an emergency should be Cllr Julie 

Matthews. 

Critical controls have been updated.  

The residual risk score remains unchanged as: 

C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible / Medium Impact. 

Description  

Serious unexpected and unplanned events can occur at any time, and are planned for and 

responded to via our strategic corporate approach to emergencies. 

Emergency Planning in North Wales is coordinated by the North Wales Councils Regional 

Emergency Planning Service, the host authority for which is Flintshire County Council. 

The Region has an agreed Emergency Management Policy and the Council has its own 

Major Emergency Arrangements Procedure. 

Tudalen 46



 
13 

We have in place a Strategic Emergency Management Team (SEMT) structure which (i) 

plans and prepares the Council for an emergency and (ii) coordinates the Council’s 

response to a significant emergency. SEMT is Chaired by the CEO and meets quarterly to 

review plans and preparations/responses to an emergency. There are 4 sub-groups under 

the SEMT, each one Chaired by a senior Officer; (i) Corporate Emergency Information 

Team (ii) Corporate Emergency Humanitarian Response Team (iii) Corporate Emergency 

Operational Team and (iv) Corporate Emergency Recovery Team. 

In addition Corporate Executive Tema (CET) are on a 24/7 Gold Rota, so a Senior Officer 

is always available to lead on an emergency. In the event of an emergency the Senior 

Officer on call via the Gold Rota will initially coordinate the Council’s response, including 

considering calling an SEMT meeting. Depending on the circumstances of the emergency 

the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is likely to take overall strategic control. 

All emergency arrangement are supported by the regional team, including working with 

partners, and any regional dimension to the emergency. 

The Senior Lead Officer (i.e. Gold Rota lead) will need to consider the role of the Lead 

Member, Cllr Julie Matthews in any emergency, as well as how best to inform other 

relevant Lead Members, Cabinet as a whole and the wider Membership of the Council.  

Heads of Service have responsibility to plan for Service response to emergencies e.g.  

seasonal variations in weather, other environmental related emergencies relating to food, 

water, air quality etc, cyber-attacks, terrorism, and of course viral pandemics and public 

health events such as Covid. 

Major emergencies put terrific strain on organisations such as ours, impacting on service 

delivery, staff capacity, and of course finances. It also challenges the resource capacity of 

partners. 

Our approach to this risk is to strategically plan to minimise the impact of an unplanned 

event should it occur. 

Anticipated direction of travel:  

We expect this to be a risk that consistently features in our corporate risk register. This 

ensures continued close management at the most senior operational, corporate and 

political levels of the council.  

Tudalen 47



 
14 

Impact / Consequences  

 Serious injury or fatality  

 Significant disruption to core services. 

 Reputational risk to the council in the way it responds to any emergency  

 Significant cost pressures to our budget. 

Inherent Risk 

A2 – Critical Risk: Almost Certain / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls (strategic relevance): 

 The North Wales Councils Regional Emergency Planning Service, provides a high 

level of support in terms of planning for and responding to an emergency 

 The strategic approach via SEMT, the associated sub groups, the Gold Rota and 

individual Service planning (including Service Business Continuity Plans) ensures 

we are prepared for an unexpected or unplanned serious event. 

 Close regional partnership working 

 Emergency Planning training and mock events. 

Ancillary controls: 

 An annual Emergency Planning Response report is taken to SLT, the Lead Member 

and Partnerships Scrutiny, as requested, every year. 

 We undertake regular reviews to ensure ICT systems are secure, including making 

updates to our Firewall.  

 We have a vulnerable people mapping tool to help us identify those that require 

specific support in an emergency. 

 Deputies for Chairs of SEMT and subgroups have been appointed. 

 Seeking more volunteers to be loggist to support record taking during an 

emergency 

 Guide for Members in terms of their role during an emergency 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

Tudalen 48



 
15 

 CSPHS1001i RIDDOR accident rate (National measure – No. of RIDDOR x 

100,000 / No. of FTE employees)  

 PDA904i Denbighshire County Council achieves Public Services Network (PSN) 

security Standard compliance (0 = pass; 1 = fail)  

 

Qualitative indicators: 

 Production, and where needed implementation of, Service business continuity plans 

 Establishment, uptake and effectiveness of emergency rest centres. 

 (Please note: some of these indicators are only measured should a serious event occur) 

Residual Risk 

C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible / Medium Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?  

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 12: The risk of a significantly negative report(s) from 

external regulators. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis and Councillor Jason McLellan 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

September 2023 update: 

Tudalen 49



 
16 

We expect this risk to always feature in our corporate risk register, but one that may 

increase or decrease in line with other factors, for example the financial environment. 

The risk has been reviewed and the residual risk score remains as C3 – Moderate Risk: 

Possible / Medium Impact 

 

Description  

Negative reports from regulators could lead to a range of impacts that could be negative 

for Denbighshire County Council. The council is committed, however, to responding to 

reports and working with partners, including external regulators, to addressing any 

concerns that may arise. 

Our relationships with external regulators are very important. We need mutual confidence 

in our relationships to ensure the best possible outcomes in terms of service improvement 

and shared learning. We ensure we alert external regulators to issues that may be 

becoming problematic early on, and we work closely with them on programmes of work to 

share learning more widely.   

Governance and Audit Committee received a report on October 4, 2022, about a Care 

Inspectorate Wales inspection. The report highlighted recruitment and retention challenges 

and the Committee was reassured that safeguarding was being managed as a critical risk 

on the council’s corporate risk register and that steps were being taken to try to alleviate 

the situation. 

A further piece of work, this time focussed on children’s services highlighted some issues, 

such as - once again - recruitment. CIW is currently undertaking a national study of child 

placements in unregulated settings.  

A paper about Audit Wales’s report about commissioning older people’s care homes has 

been presented to Governance and Audit Committee. This was a national study that 

included a review of regional arrangements, including in North Wales.  

Anticipated direction of travel: 

The score has been considered in relation to current performance and is felt to be 

accurate. The current position is generally positive. We expect this risk to always feature in 

Tudalen 50

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6835&LLL=0


 
17 

our corporate risk register, but one that may increase or decrease in line with other factors, 

for example the financial environment. This risk will continue to be reviewed regularly to 

ensure all necessary controls are effective and operating as they should be. 

Impact / Consequences  

 A wider lack of confidence in council services. 

 Reputational damage. 

 Potential intervention by the WG. 

 Significant resources may be required to be diverted to deliver immediate and 

substantial change. 

Inherent Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Regulation we are subject to includes: CIW (Care Inspectorate Wales); WAO Office; 

Estyn; HSE (Health & Safety Executive); ICO (Information Commissioner's Office) Public 

Services Ombudsman. Information, studies and other reports are also published by other 

commissioners such as the Welsh Language Commissioner for Wales or the Older 

People’s Commissioner for Wales. 

Critical controls: 

 SLT, Estyn, CIW and Audit Wales hold an annual Audit Risk Assessment meeting 

to reach consensus on the regulatory inspections to take place throughout the year. 

 SLT on 26th January 2023 received this year’s Joint Audit Risk Assessment setting 

out the programme of assurance planned for the year ahead. The report included 

the priorities of the inspectorates, and their intentions at a national and local level to 

identify strengths and areas of concern. The issues identified within the report affect 

all local authorities across Wales and nothing was raised as a specific local concern 

regarding Denbighshire. Estyn highlighted some local concerns but these are 

issues we are already aware of and managing. 

 A joint Inspectorate Review of Child Protection Arrangements (JICPA), involving 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW), Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and 

Tudalen 51



 
18 

Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS), Healthcare Inspectorate Wales (HIW), and 

Estyn, was undertaken in Denbighshire during the week commencing 6th February 

2023. 

 We maintain positive and proactive relationship management and ongoing 

communication with external regulators. We have healthy and open relationships 

with our regulators. 

 The corporate performance management framework (PMF) is the main control in 

this area. 

 Head of Corporate Support Services: Performance, Digital & Assets, Strategic 

Planning Team Manager and Chief Internal Auditor meet monthly with Wales Audit 

Office to understand and respond to their concerns. 

 Regulators sit on Service Performance Challenges. 

 Protocol developed for addressing recommendations from WAO national studies: 

services' response will be the subject of performance scrutiny and service 

challenge. 

Ancillary controls: 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Annual Governance Statement and Performance Self-Assessment are aligned. 

Relevant indicator of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CH012i: The cumulative number of negative reports from external regulators, 

financial year to date 

Assurance: 

 The joint inspection of the multi-agency response to keeping children and young 

people safe in Denbighshire was published May 2023. (Links to Risk 01) 

 Internal Audit reviews forward work programme 

 External regulatory bodies. For example, CIW monitor progress through routine 

performance review activities and through a CIW local authority risk based 

Tudalen 52

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/230518-we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire


 
19 

approach to inspection planning. CIW is currently undertaking a national study of 

child placements in unregulated settings.  

 

Residual Risk  

C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible / Medium Impact  

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?  

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 14: The risk of a health & safety incident resulting in 

serious injury or the loss of life. (where H&S is referred to, this 

incorporates fire safety) 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Julie Matthews 

Risk Owner:  Gary Williams 

September 2023 update: 

The Risk Owner has been amended from Steve Gadd to Gary Williams, Corporate 

Director: Governance and Business for the strategic leadership and delegated 

responsibility for Health and Safety. 

This risk to now encompass any health and safety incident that represents a potential 

risk to like and subsequently the Risk 44: The risk of Ash Dieback Disease (ADB) in 

Denbighshire leading to significant health and safety issues that represent a potential 

Tudalen 53



 
20 

risk to life has been removed and mitigated as part of the ongoing Ash Dieback Project 

and Action Plan management. 

Critical controls have been updated and the Residual Risk score remains as E2 – 

Moderate Risk: Rare / High Impact 

 

Description  

This could be as a result of unsafe acts, unsafe work places or ineffective H&S 

management. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This impact of this risk had previously been heightened as a consequence of risks 

associated with Covid-19. The risk has been reviewed and is considered to be static.  

Impact / Consequences 

 Serious injury or death of an employee and/or any other person. 

 Significant reputational damage 

 Substantial legal/litigation costs. 

 Criminal prosecution of staff or the organisation. 

Inherent Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

Critical controls: 

 In response to National concerns regarding Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated 

Concrete (RAAC) the Council has revisited surveys of schools and other buildings 

to identify the presence of RAAC and any measures required to mitigate any risk 

posed by it. 

 Many staff continue to work from home some or most of the time. The New Ways of 

Working Project team, led by our Corporate Director: Governance and Business, 

Tudalen 54



 
21 

continues to monitor the situation. There may be risks associated with a potential 

lack of fire wardens and first aiders in the office buildings under these current 

working arrangements. This is being explored and any actions or solutions identified 

will be added to our controls. 

 Strategic leadership is provided by the Corporate Director: Governance and 

Business, with delegated responsibility for Health and Safety. 

 Competent H&S advisors are employed by the organisation to provide competent 

advice, guidance and training on H&S to all Council employees and services.  

 H&S maintain Service Level Agreements with all Local Authority Schools. 

 .A Corporate Health and Safety Policy is in place, which defines the H&S 

organisation and arrangements in the council. 

 There is an established H&S Management System in place. 

 H&S training programme focussed on council activities and the way we manage 

H&S. 

 “Managing safely in Denbighshire” training is mandatory for all managers. 

 The Corporate H&S team carry out a programme of targeted monitoring 

 An online accident, incident reporting process is in place. There is an expectation 

that all accidents and incidents are reported. 

 An online Staff Protection Register where staff can search for or request the 

addition of records in connection with their authorised activities. All access requests 

are monitored by the system and records of all access is recorded by the system for 

auditing purposes.  

 Quarterly Health & Safety newsletter is published to keep staff up to date with 

health and safety management within the Council. 

Ancillary controls: 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 An established Corporate H&S Committee is in place as part of the Joint 

Consultative Committee for Health and Safety and Employee Relations which is a 

forum for the employer and employee representatives to discuss and consult on 

H&S. 

Tudalen 55

http://linc-ad/sorce/beacon/default.aspx?pageid=corporate_health_and_safety_guidance
http://linc-ad/sorce/beacon/default.aspx?pageid=corporate_health__safety_training


 
22 

 A number of service level H&S committees meet to provide a forum for service 

managers and employee representatives to discuss and consult on H&S. 

 Significant H&S related accidents, incidents and near misses are investigated 

internally.  

 Schools have effective health and safety practices.  

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CSPHS1001i RIDDOR accident rate (National measure – No. of RIDDOR x 

100,000 / No. of FTE employees) 

 FAH123m The percentage of properties with asbestos where a re-inspection has 

been carried out in line with the asbestos management plan 

 FAH119m The percentage of properties with a valid Fire Risk Assessment (please 

note asbestos, fire, water, gas, electricity etc. are building compliance risks rather 

than health and safety risks, although failure to manage will have a health and 

safety impact)  

 Gas servicing, fixed wire testing and water hygiene are relevant indicators that are 

also monitored regularly 

Assurance: 

 Annual Corporate Health & Safety Report reported to Governance & Audit 

Committee.  The latest report presented in October 2022 for 2021 to 2022 defined  

Denbighshire County Council as continuing to be assessed by Corporate Health & 

Safety as being an organisation that sits in the “calculative and proactive” zone. 

 Annual Fire Safety Programme and Performance is reported to Governance & Audit 

Committee 

Residual Risk 

E2 – Moderate Risk: Rare / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite?   

Yes. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a cautious risk.  

Tudalen 56

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6835&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
23 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 21: The risk that the integration of health and social care 

services between BCUHB and DCC does not develop further 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Elen Heaton and Councillor Gill German 

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

September 2023 update: 

Risk 21: The risk title has been amended from `The risk that effective partnerships and 

interfaces between BCU Health Board and Denbighshire County Council (DCC) do not 

develop, leading to significant misalignment between the strategic and operational 

direction of BCU and DCC’ to: The risk that the integration of health and social care 

services between BCUHB and DCC does not develop further. 

 

CET have closely monitored developments at the Health Board having particular regard to 

their potential impact on this risk.  Risk reviewed and updated. 

 

The residual risk score remains as C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

 

Description  

Integrated social care and health services and delivering on the Social Services and Well-

being (Wales) Act 2014 is a fundamental part of our partnership with the health board and 

more widely, across North Wales, through the Regional Partnership Board and the North 

Wales Social Care and Well-being Improvement Collaborative. 

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB), which covers the whole of North 

Wales, was placed back in special measures on Monday 27, February 2023 having 

Tudalen 57

https://socialcare.wales/hub/statutory-guidance
https://socialcare.wales/hub/statutory-guidance


 
24 

previously been in the category between 2015 and 2020.  Health at a local level, and the 

effectiveness of health and social care working together, is subject to increased political 

and regulatory scrutiny.  This requires a level of scrutiny and a strong commitment to 

partnership. There is a national agenda to drive effective partnership working.  

Relationship management and communication is critical to successful mitigation.  

Since going back into special measures the Health Board has put an interim Chair and 

interim Chief Executive in post, however, there are still a number of interim posts at 

various levels which affects decision making. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

The longer term impact of Covid-19 is becoming apparent but is by no means fully 

understood. The catch up required in routine/planned treatment, exacerbated health 

inequalities and hidden harms (due to not having treatment, mental health impact of 

Covid-19), all create a potential for challenge in the system, and therefore the relationship, 

which could affect delivery of integrated social care and health services in Denbighshire. 

The funding arrangements with Welsh Government create an ongoing friction.  

The partnership arrangements and relationships we have built means there is enough 

interface and opportunity to deal with issues before they become significant problems.  

However, the reinstatement of special measures means there is a possibility that this risk 

could increase in terms of both likelihood and impact (and sit further beyond our risk 

appetite), until such time the Board is no longer in special measures, the Board’s 

restructure settles or should our controls be ineffective. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Inefficient services 

 Gaps in service provision 

 Delays/failure to deliver joint projects 

 Reputational damage 

 Ability to meet statutory duties - Well-being of Future Generations Bill, Social 

Services and Well-being Act 

Tudalen 58



 
25 

Inherent Risk  

A1 – Critical Risk: Almost certain / Very high impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place) 

Critical controls: 

 Delivery of the North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Plan.   

The 2022 to 2023 annual report was presented to Partnerships Scrutiny Committee 

on 14th September 2023. 

 The BCUHB restructure has been implemented but posts have not been 

permanently appointed to (the post holders are interim). The new Integrated Health 

Community Director (Central) is now permanent and we consider our relationship 

with that post holder to be very positive. 

 Three of the four Senior Mental Health Directorate posts remain interim. 

 The Regional Partnership Board and the North Wales Social Care and Well-being 

Improvement Collaborative have reviewed needs in relation to social care and 

health services as part of our population needs assessment (Social Services and 

Well-being (Wales) Act 2014). 

 Four Community Resource Teams have been established. 

 The Regional Partnership Board is in place to progress cooperation and integration. 

 BCUHB is a member of the Conwy/Denbighshire PSB, which has shared priorities 

and a shared governance vision. 

Ancillary controls: 

 We assume, as at last time the Board was put into special measures that an 

Assurance Board will be established.  The Council to look to engage with that Board 

and receive regular updates.  

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 NWWSIC has reviewed its governance arrangements in partnership with BCUHB. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

Tudalen 59

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6728&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
26 

 Pathways of Care: There is a requirement for each health board to measure 

delayed pathways of care activity via a monthly validated census with local authority 

partners. This will enable monitoring of the number and length of delays, plus their 

reasons, assisting NHS and LA partners in prioritising actions to alleviate delays.   

Qualitative indicators that describe what effective management/partnerships looks and 

feels like may be more appropriate in this instance. Such as, governance (e.g. Regional 

Partnership Board) and service level agreements, Memorandums of Understanding.  

Assurance: 

 Audit Wales has examined Regional Partnership Boards’ commissioning of older 

people’s care homes recently and a report was presented to Governance and Audit 

Committee in March 2022. 

Residual Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact  

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Major risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. The Risk 

Owner has confirmed that they are comfortable that the scoring accurately reflects the 

current risk to the council. 

  

Tudalen 60

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6491&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6491&LLL=0


 
27 

Risk 31: The risk of fraud and corruption resulting in financial 

and reputational loss and possibly impacting on service 

delivery. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

September 2023 update: 

Risk reviewed and updated. 

This risk is a static risk, and our aim is to maintain it as a moderate risk. We would not 

foresee a time when this risk would not be on the risk register. 

 

Critical controls have been updated and the Residual Risk score remains unchanged as 

E2 – Moderate Risk: Rare / High impact 

 

Description  

Denbighshire County Council employs around 4,500 staff and spends in excess of £300 

million per year. It commissions and provides a wide range of services to individuals and 

households and works with a wide range of private, public and voluntary sector 

organisations. 

As with any other large organisation, the size and nature of the Council’s services mean 

that there is an ongoing risk of loss due to fraud and corruption from both internal and 

external sources. There is also an ongoing risk of bribery as the Council provides and 

procures goods, works and services. The Council has therefore put in place proportionate 

systems to minimise this risk and these are kept under constant review. 

The council recognises that as well as causing financial loss, fraud is also detrimental to 

the provision of services, and damaging to the reputation of, and confidence in, the council 

and public bodies in general. 

 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

Tudalen 61



 
28 

This risk is a static risk, and our aim is to maintain it as a moderate risk. We would not 

foresee a time when this risk would not be on the risk register. There are no performance 

measures currently available to quantify progress in reducing this risk. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Financial loss. 

 Loss of reputation and confidence in the council and public bodies in general. 

 Negative impact on service provision / delivery. 

 Negative impact on the council’s culture. 

 Legal / compensation costs. 

 Criminal prosecution. 

 Negative audit / inspection reports. 

Inherent Risk  

C2 – Major Risk: Possible / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

In its policies and procedures, the council gives out the clear message that it will not 

tolerate any impropriety by employees, elected Members or third party organisations. It 

has put in place appropriate and proportionate systems to minimise this risk and these are 

kept under constant review, including the following: 

Critical controls: 

 Internal Audit held Fraud Awareness Sessions for Schools in January 2023 to raise 

awareness and promote the Corporate Strategy for the Prevention and Detection of 

Fraud, Corruption and Bribery to schools. 

 The fraud policy has been updated. 

 The Council has appointed a Corporate Director: Governance and Business. 

 The Governance & Audit Committee received in September 2023 the Annual 

Whistleblowing Report. 

 Internal Audit has conducted a review of ethical culture. As a result, we introduced 

clearer guidance about our code of conduct (for officers) to strengthen 

Tudalen 62

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
29 

arrangements for declarations of conflicts and interests, including gifts and 

hospitality. 

 Strategy for the Prevention and Detection of Fraud, Corruption and Bribery which 

includes fraud response plan, was updated and ratified by Governance and Audit 

Committee in July 2021. The purpose of the Strategy and Fraud Response Plan is 

to provide management with a tool to ensure progress and transparency with 

regards to counter-fraud activities. It is designed to heighten the Council’s fraud 

resilience and demonstrate its protection and stewardship of public funds.  

 In developing this Strategy, the Council has adopted the guiding principles included 

in "Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2020” (FFCL2020) which is the counter 

fraud and corruption strategy for local government. It provides a blueprint for a 

coordinated response to fraud and corruption perpetrated against local authorities 

with the support of those at the top. 

 IT systems have authorisation controls in place, which reduce the risk of fraud 

(remote working does not increase the risk) 

 The Code of Corporate Governance 

 The Code of Conduct for Elected Members 

 The Employees’ Code of Conduct 

 Financial Regulations including Contract Procedure Rules 

 The Whistleblowing Policy 

 The Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

 Recognition and monitoring of the risk of fraud in service risk registers 

 Systems of internal control 

 Recruitment processes 

 Annual review by the council's Internal Audit team 

 Regular internal and external review of our systems and procedures 

 The risk of fraud and corruption is also managed at a service level 

Ancillary controls: 

 The Communications team has a close working relationship with Internal Audit and 

low assurance rated reports are flagged up at an early stage. 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Tudalen 63

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/prevention-and-detection-of-fraud-bribery-and-corruption-strategy.aspx


 
30 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Engagement with the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

 E-learning modules on Whistleblowing and Code of Conduct 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 CSP8i: The number of data protection breaches that were reported to the 

Information Commissioner's Office 

 CPCH014i: Negative news stories as a percentage of all news stories about the 

council 

 CH013i: The cumulative number of Internal Audit low assurance reports, financial 

year to date 

Residual Risk  

E2 – Moderate Risk: Rare / High impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 34: The risk that there is insufficient regulated care 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gill German and Councillor Elen Heaton 

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

Tudalen 64



 
31 

September 2023 review: 

Risk 34: The title of this risk has been amended from `The risk that demand for specialist 

care cannot be met locally to `The risk that there is insufficient regulated care’. 

 

The risk has been reviewed and critical controls updated. 

There residual risk score remains the same:  B2 – Critical Risk: Likely / High Impact. 

 

Description  

Availability of some regulatory adult and child service can be scarce, leading to the 

requirement to provide alternative and/or expensive services. A reduction in the availability 

of domiciliary care provision means we find it challenging to provide services needed 

(particularly in the south of the county). 

This continues to be a significant risk. We are still in a position of having circa 1,000 hours 

of domiciliary care being handed back to the council due to staff shortages. This means 

people are waiting for domiciliary care agency allocation. However, there are signs are that 

the number of hours being handed back is reducing, but this is still being managed 

extremely closely. 

As previously highlighted, the reasons for this situation are summarised as follows: 

 

 Recruitment and retention – This is a national issue for the care sector. At the 

root of this are many factors, including the relatively low wages, high demands, and 

sometimes a perceived lack of esteem/value in the care career path. Even internally 

in DCC, we struggle to recruit to care work positions. 

 Increase in scale and complexity of needs – The ageing population brings 

obvious additional pressures in this area. We have seen an increase in need for 

double‐handed packages. Some individuals currently awaiting domiciliary care have 

also had previous agencies withdraw, due to their being unable to manage the 

level/complexity of need. 

 Denbighshire’s rural geography – This presents a number of challenges, 

including because of costs, e.g. travel time can make a rural care package much 

less attractive to prospective providers, and recruitment, e.g. as usually care 

workers covering more rural areas must be able to drive. 

Tudalen 65



 
32 

 Citizens’ choice – A number of individuals currently awaiting care have been made 

offers that they have declined, on the basis that they are unhappy with the specific 

hours being offered.  

 The prevention and reablement agenda – Enabling people to remain independent 

and prevent the need for residential care, prolonged hospital stays etc. as far as 

possible ‐ while of course significant wellbeing goals and priorities for the council ‐ 

naturally creates additional pressures on domiciliary care/interim services. 

 

The wider long-term consequences of the pandemic are also making this issue more 

challenging. People are also making life changes with some leaving the sector altogether.  

The risk is also heightened as a result of risk 50. The Welsh Government’s Programme for 

Government makes a commitment to ‘eliminate private profit from the care of Children 

Looked After during the next Senedd term’. The objective of removing profit is a positive 

one and it has the region’s resounding commitment.  However, it is imperative that Welsh 

Government take steps in pursuit of not-for-profit arrangements that do not disrupt children 

and young people’s lives in the short term. Our key concern is that providers become 

unsettled and the sufficiency and suitability of placements will be affected, affecting the 

lives of Children Looked After, and increases this risk that demand for specialist care 

cannot be met locally. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

Currently, the risk associated with us being unable to meet the demand for regulated care 

locally is a critical risk, which is beyond our appetite. In the longer term, we hope to bring 

the risk under control and return to a ‘business as usual’ scenario. It is not clear how long 

this will take. 

Impact / Consequences  

 High cost 

 Individuals with eligible needs unable to receive suitable domiciliary care due to lack 

of resources and service provision 

 If far from home, there is a detrimental impact on a client's well-being (and that of 

their family) 

 Unable to meet need in preferred language 

 Staff become over-stretched 

Tudalen 66



 
33 

 Reputational damage. 

Inherent Risk  

A2 – Critical Risk: Almost certain / High Impact  

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls: 

These critical controls relate to action being taken to deal with the current demand and 
challenges for domiciliary care provision in the county: 

 Develop a new Children’s Assessment Centre (Bwthyn y Ddôl) jointly with Conwy 

CBC.  This is an ongoing project.    

 Micro‐enterprises/micro providers has been brought back in-house, previously we 

paid a provider called Community Catalysts to run our Micro-Provider project.  We 

now directly employ a full-time Deputy Team manager to run the service whose role 

includes: recruitment, training and monitoring of micro-providers. Maintenance of 

the Micro-Provider Directory.  Promoting Micro-Providers as an effective alternative 

to traditional forms of care support, amongst health and social care staff designing 

packages of care for vulnerable citizens and their un-paid carers.   

 Denbighshire now has a pool of 43 Micro-Providers able to deliver 900 hours of 

care and support per week, with an additional 20 recruits participating in the Micro-

Provider development programme. 

 Implementation of Welsh Government’s decision to fund the Real Living Wage 

(RLW) for registered social workers. 

 A corporate Social Care Recruitment and Retention Group is in place (see risk 01).  

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss. The Communications 

Team manage media and public relations and internal communications on the 

matter. 

 Our in‐house teams (Reablement, Interim and Health & Social Care Support 

Workers) are covering as many outstanding care packages as possible. 

 We are currently looking at how we can safely (in compliance with CIW/SCW 

requirements) draw on more support from other internal social care staff who do not 

currently deliver personal care. 

Tudalen 67



 
34 

 Working closely with health colleagues to manage workload and explore the 

potential to tap into their care applicants. 

 Continue to explore alternative ways of meeting people’s needs, within a strengths‐

based, enabling approach.  

 We are working with Procurement to look at contractual arrangements to respond to 

the exceptional circumstances. 

 We are returning to discussions with other local authorities to look at opportunities 

for joint commissioning. 

 We will continue working to ensure that carers have the support they need. 

 We are looking at ways that we can try to manage the expectations of 

citizens/families; to continue to honour preference as much as possible, while at the 

same time ensuring that we are realistic about what we can provide, and that we 

are ultimately led by need.  

Critical controls under usual circumstances include: 

 Single Point of Access is fully established and proving successful in providing 

advice and information to individuals in order for them to access community 

services themselves. 

 Community Led Conversations 'What Matters' project changing the way staff 

support individuals enabling them to take control of their own well-being and 

utilising other external resources where possible. 

 Developing a range of staff skill mixes through workforce development in order to 

enable staff to work in new ways that complement the new government agenda. 

 Series of meetings with providers across Adult Social Care are underway to discuss 

annual fee setting process. 

 Review and re-assessment project to ensure individuals are still eligible under new 

criteria  

 Further development of support budgets 

 Regional project considering issues. 

 Recommissioning domiciliary care project in progress - this includes the 

implementation of the new regional domiciliary care framework in Denbighshire to 

include patch based commissioning for difficult rural areas.  

A number of posts remain un-recruited to Reablement and Health and Social Care 

in the south of Denbighshire.  This does limit our ability to pick up care packages.  

Tudalen 68



 
35 

We have successfully recruited 4 staff members who will work across the whole of 

Denbighshire with the more complex cases, however this is funded with temporary 

funding.  We continue to work on a rolling recruitment programme with the support 

from a dedicated HR officer.   

 

Ancillary controls: 

 Recruitment fayres taken place in county to highlight the need for specific health 

and social care staff. 

 Continue to look at the use of grant monies in creative and combined ways to 

deliver better solutions. 

 CIW national review of domiciliary care - implementing recommendations. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 Delivery of the Social Care Recruitment and Retention Group’s action plan.  

 Vacancies (internal and external) and recruitment activity 

 Budget variance 

 ASCHAD005:  Of the number of new assessments completed for adults, the 

number where needs were only able to be met with a care and support plan 

Assurance: 

 CIW monitor progress through routine performance review activities and through a 

CIW local authority risk based approach to inspection planning. 

Residual Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Likely / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. The Risk 

Owner, together with the Head of Childrens Services, are actively managing this risk to 

bring it back under control. This is a national issue though and one that is unlikely to be 

resolved quickly. 

Tudalen 69



 
36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 37: The risk that partners don't have the resources, 

matching priorities or commitment to support delivery of 

shared plans and priorities 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Jason McLellan 

Risk Owner: Graham Boase 

Tudalen 70



 
37 

September 2023 update: 

 

Risk 37: The title of this risk has been updated to reflect the risk as a more generic risk 

around partnership working from `The risk that partners don't have the resources, 

matching priorities or commitment to support delivery of shared plans and priorities, and in 

particular, fail to reduce inequalities and deprivation’ to `The risk that partners don't 

have the resources, matching priorities or commitment to support delivery of 

shared plans and priorities’ 

 

The Risk Owner has changed from Tony Ward to Graham Boase. 

The description and controls have been updated. 

The residual risk score remains unchanged as : C2 – Major risk: Possible / High Impact 

Description  

With finite resources and competing priorities, there is a risk of a lack of commitment or 

capacity within strategic partner organisations to support shared plans, priorities and 

outcomes. 

In delivering services to our communities the Council is reliant on a number of strategic 

partners including Health (inc Public Health Wales), North Wales Police, National 

Resources Wales, Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council, City/Town/Community 

Councils, neighbouring authorities, etc. 

There is a complex structure of regional working, including Corporate Joint Committees 

(CJC), North Wales Economic Ambition Board (Ambition North Wales), Regional 

Partnership Board (RPB), Conwy & Denbighshire Public Service Board (PSB), Safer 

Communities Board etc. Much resource goes into attending and servicing these structures, 

but with budget pressures the risk is they become less effective, impacting on our ability to 

provide services to our communities. The biggest impact is likely to be on our more 

deprived communities. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

We therefore do not expect the risk to diminish in likelihood or severity soon.  

Tudalen 71



 
38 

Inherent Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Very Likely / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls (strategic relevance): 

 Denbighshire is represented at collaborative boards by senior managers and/or 

political leadership, for example, at the Regional Partnership Board (Corporate 

Director Social Services & Education and Lead Member Health & Social Care), 

North Wales Economic Ambition Board (CEO and Leader), Conwy & Denbighshire 

Public Service Board (CEO and Leader) etc 

 Collaborative plans and priorities have been developed by the regional boards for 

which there is commitment from partners. 

 Our Corporate Plan 2022 to 2027 has been approved, with Pledges that specifically 

address the need for working with partners 

 Partnership and Alternative Service Delivery Model Toolkit recommends an annual 

review of partnerships to ensure membership and shared commitment remains 

relevant. 

 

Ancillary control: 

 Corporate Director Economy & Environment has regular meetings with senior 

management in NRW. 

 

Assurance: 

 Feedback from the Welsh Government and the Well-being of Future Generations 

Commissioner on the Public Service Board’s Well-being Assessment and Well-

being Plan. 

 

Impact / Consequences  

 Objectives not delivered. 

 Failure to maximise opportunities to collaborate to resolve issues no single 

organisation is responsible for or capable of resolving on its own. 

Tudalen 72

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/plans/corporate-plan/corporate-plan.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/documents/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/alternative-service-delivery-model-toolkit-oct2021.pdf


 
39 

 Ineffective management of expectations among partners/public/Members leading to 

reputational damage. 

 Investment of council resources with minimal return. 

 

Residual Risk  

C2 – Major risk: Possible / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Yes. This risk fits within our open risk appetite in relation to operational and policy delivery. 

Further actions: 

To develop a clear escalation pathway to HoS, Directors, and/or Cabinet Leads as 

appropriate, where partnerships aren’t delivering as hoped. 

Action due date: 31 March 2024 

Person Responsible: Helen Vaughan-Evans 

 

 

 

Risk 45: The risk to the Council’s reputation of not responding 

swiftly or sufficiently enough in making our contribution to 

tackle climate change and bring about natures recovery 

following the declaration of a Climate Change and Ecological 

Emergency in July 2019. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Barry Mellor 

Tudalen 73



 
40 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

Description  

Since declaring a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency in July 2019, we have 

adopted the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy (2021-2030) and put in place the 

Climate and Ecological Change Programme to deliver on the strategy goals to become a 

net carbon zero and ecologically positive council by 2030. The delivery of Climate and 

Ecological Change Programme is a large part of the Council’s A Greener Denbighshire 

theme within the Council’s Corporate Plan 2022-2027. In addition to aspects around 

supporting communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts of climate change. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk is currently within our risk appetite. Following positive feedback from Audit Wales 

on our programme management and organisational ambition on this agenda we are 

reassured that we have a well-scoped action plan in place. However, a national report 

about the public sector’s response more generally, to becoming carbon neutral by 2030, 

broadly says organisations need to be bold and take risks if they are to stand a chance of 

meeting this ambitious target. Analysis of 2022/23 data suggests we are not currently 

delivering at the pace required for us to feel assured we will achieve Net Carbon Zero 

Council by 2030 and interdependencies of elements outside our control is also a limiting 

factor. The assessment for Ecologically Positive Council by 2030 is more promising 

although recent challenges with extending wildflower meadow grassland management 

approaches are acknowledged as concerning to further progress on this goal. We will be 

September 2023 update 

This Risk has been completely reviewed and updated in light of the following title 

change: 

Risk 45 title has been amended from: The risk that the council fails to become a net 

carbon zero and ecologically positive council by 2030 to: The risk to the Council’s 

reputation of not responding swiftly or sufficiently enough in making our 

contribution to tackle climate change and bring about natures recovery following 

the declaration of a Climate Change and Ecological Emergency in July 2019.  

The residual risk score remains unchanged as C2 – Major: Possible / High Impact 

Tudalen 74



 
41 

reviewing the Strategy, its scope, the targets within and our now 7-year Programme during 

2023/24. Careful communication planning will be required as part of that process and 

through the decision making board process the revised strategy document will go through 

(performance scrutiny, cabinet and council). This risk will require regular management to 

ensure controls are working as intended. We expect the likelihood to reduce, although the 

impact is anticipated to remain high.  

Impact / Consequences  

 Damage to the organisations credibility and reputation. 

 Public complaints and protest. 

 Deteriorating staff morale. 

 Inability to meet statutory obligations and avoid legislative offenses. 

 Opportunity loss in coproduction approaches with communities and partners around 

climate change impact, climate risk resilience and nature recovery. 

 Opportunity loss in securing external funding for work in this area. 

 

Inherent Risk  

A2 – Critical Risk: Almost Certain / High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls: 

 2023/24 Strategy Review and Refresh work has commenced and will require CET 

and SLT time and input, as well as Cabinet, Scrutiny and Council. It involves public 

involvement and engagement through surveys and a workshop. 

 Analysis of net carbon zero performance to date and forecasted progress to 2030 

following 2022/23 data return indicates there is a gap between what we forecast 

can be achieved and the carbon reduction/carbon sequestration increase targets.  

 A national report about the public sector’s response more generally, to becoming 

carbon neutral by 2030, broadly says organisations need to be bold and take risks 

now if they are to stand a chance of meeting this ambitious target.  

 The Climate Change and Ecological Emergency cross party political working group 

has been re-established and has met for first time. Cross party consensus around 

Tudalen 75



 
42 

being upfront with our knowledge to date on progress and forecast within the 

updated strategy document. 

 Communication representatives on the Greener Denbighshire Board and cross 

party political working group to enable the Communications Team to manage media 

and public relations and internal communications on the matter. 

 Effective programme management is in place, including communications and risk 

management. 

 Managers ensure the Communications Team is fully briefed, as early as possible, 

on any situation that may cause significant reputational loss.  

 Climate Change team has been established, with a programme board in place. 

Resource plans are in place for services for key areas of the Climate and Ecological 

Change Programme. 

 We have secured budget to deliver the 2023/24 programme, including recruiting a 

procurement business partner to reduce emissions in our procurements. Other roles 

being explored will largely be expansions of existing roles and teams.  

 The Climate and Ecological Change programme actively seek opportunities for 

external grant funding 

 Introduction to Climate Change training is available to all staff. All but one of the 

Senior Leadership Team have attended a one-day accredited Carbon Literacy 

course. Intranet pages launched to increase awareness of staff to the contribution 

they can make. 

 Active participation in national, regional and local strategy and operational groups to 

leverage benefits from collaboration. 

 Active engagement with Environmental Representative groups active in 

Denbighshire. Public engagement within strategy review and refresh every 3 years. 

 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls: 

 NCZCORP: Net Carbon Zero - Total carbon tonnage emitted and absorbed by the 

council (excluding supply chains)  

 CTOTALCORP: Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) for the Net Carbon 

Zero goal 

 STOTALCORP: Total carbon tonnage sequested (Corporately) for the Net Carbon 

Zero goal 

Tudalen 76



 
43 

 SRHIGHCORP: Percentage of DCC owned and operated land in highest categories 

of species richness  

 SRLOWCORP: Percentage of DCC owned and operated land in lowest categories 

of species richness 

 

Assurance: 

 Internal Audit Review planning prompts for testing-related controls in all relevant 

projects 

 Office Accommodation Internal Audit Review 2020 

 Included in Internal Audit 2022/23 plan 

 Audit Wales – Delivering Environmental Ambitions 2020-21 

 Audit Wales – Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero Carbon by 2030 

 Verto reporting capability to track projects that help, hinder or are neutral to carbon 

management and nature recovery 

. 

Residual Risk  

C2 – Major: Possible / High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Major risk. Risk Appetite suggests this risk should/could be tolerated as a major risk as 

long as appropriate steps have been taken to proactively manage community relations and 

media and coverage.  Although, clearly, our ambition is to meet the 2030 goals, we hope 

to be able to reduce the likelihood of the risk closer to 2030 once sufficient benefits and 

positive impacts have been achieved. 

Further actions: 

1. Ensure all of SLT, including any new members, attend one-day carbon literacy 

training 

Action Due Date: Rolling  

Person Responsible: Interim Climate Change Programme Manager 

Tudalen 77



 
44 

2. New action: Roll out ecological literacy training  

Action Due Date: 31/03/2024 

Person Responsible: Interim Climate Change Programme Manager 

3. Conduct a review of the Strategy, its scope, targets and the Programme pathway 

to 2030, include public engagement in the process and take refresh Strategy 

through decision making board 

Action Due Date: 31/03/2024 

Person Responsible: Interim Climate Change Programme Manager 

4. Develop a defined communication plan and messaging for revised and refreshed 

Strategy adoption (internal and external communications) and implement 

Action Due Date: 31/03/2024 

Person Responsible: Communications and Marketing Officer 

5. Complete more in depth stakeholder mapping exercise and include in Climate and 

Ecological Change Programme Communication Plan 

Action Due Date: 31/03/2024 

Person Responsible:  Communications and Marketing Officer  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 78



 
45 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 48: The risk that recruitment and retention issues leads to 

a loss of expertise and capacity resulting in poor or inadequate 

performance 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Julie Matthews, Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Gary Williams 

Tudalen 79



 
46 

September 2023 update: 

Risk 48: The risk title has been amended from `The risk that recruitment and retention 

issues, leading to a loss of expertise and capacity, worsen resulting in poor or inadequate 

services` to `The risk that recruitment and retention issues leads to a loss of 

expertise and capacity resulting in poor or inadequate performance'. 

 

Previous Risk 30 : `The risk that Senior Leadership capacity and skills to sustain service 

and corporate performance is not available’ has now been incorporated within this risk.. 

Accordingly Councillor Gwyneth Ellis has been added as a Lead Member (Lead Member 

for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets) 

Risk Owner has transferred from CEO to Corporate Director Governance & Business. 

Critical controls have been updated. 

 

While pressures in relation to recruitment and retention in social care and health, in 

particular, are acute, the risk level across the organisation and across all services remains 

the same as it was in February 2023.   

The residual risk score remains unchanged as: B3 – Major Risk: Likely / Medium Impact 

 

Description  

The Council has a regular turnover off staff as individuals move on for a host of reasons. A 

number of service areas then face difficulties to recruit to those vacancies, particularly but 

not limited to critical front line social care and highways and environment roles. This is a 

national issue. 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

From a corporate perspective the risk is likely to reduce as we embark upon finding 

significant savings. Vacant posts may need to be deleted from the structure to contribute 

to savings or be left open to offer redeployment opportunities in connection with savings 

elsewhere. It is anticipated that certain Services will retain the risk in their Service Risk 

Registers. 

Tudalen 80



 
47 

Impact / Consequences  

 Failure to recruit to and retain staff in key roles, including front line positions 

 Difficulty in sustaining services 

 Difficulty meeting statutory requirements 

 Declining performance in critical areas, particularly Childrens’ Services. 

 Deteriorating staff morale/well-being 

 Increased pressure on middle and senior managers 

 Well-being of staff members expected to cover additional work due to the Council 

carrying a high number of vacant posts 

 

Inherent Risk  

B3 – Major Risk: Likely / Medium Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Services are taking specific actions, to deliver targeted recruitment programmes. This risk 

though captures the impact on the organisation corporately and the following controls 

reflect a corporate response. Whilst these controls are regarded as important to undertake, 

we are not currently certain that they will reduce the risk. There are regional and national 

pressures around recruitment and retention and some of these pressures may resolve 

themselves.  

Critical controls: 

 The Council has completed the review of the Senior Leadership Team structure and 

has successfully recruited to all vacant SLT posts. 

 Corporate Plan Theme 9 will be considering issues of retention and recruitment 

 An Internal Audit has been completed of the workforce plan action plan, reported to  

Governance and Audit Committee in July 2023. 

In summary, the report confirmed that Human Resources (HR) have robust HR 

initiatives and strategies in place to support the Corporate Workforce Plan. The 

development of some policies and guidance has been delayed due to vacancies 

within the team and workload pressures, however these have new revised 

completion dates. 

Tudalen 81

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
48 

 Workforce planning actions are underway to progress the findings of the corporate 

and service-level workforce planning reviews. There continues to be a significant 

focus on recruitment, especially in social care and health roles. A six monthly 

update report on delivery of the action plan was presented to the Corporate 

Executive and Senior Leadership Teams during the period. An annual update was 

presented in April 2023. 

 A Group has been established looking a recruitment issue in social care, chaired by 

the Corporate Director for Social Services & Education. An action plan has been 

developed. 

 Work is taking place regionally to tackle particular/acute recruitment issues (such as 

those in social care and health).  

Ancillary controls: 

 The Denbighshire County Council Pay Grading Structure will need reviewing 

 Activities that are likely to be considered in relation to a taking a corporate approach 

to the issue could include a review of our marketing, recruitment process, and how 

managers and 121s support learning and development.  

 Work experience, career grade job roles, apprenticeships are available in the council. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 LHRD10i: % of people who started in the last 12 months and who are still working 

for DCC 

Qualitative indicators (delivery of activities): 

 CPCSP6a: Undertake an annual review of the Corporate Workforce Plan 2022 to 

2027 

 CPASCH4001a: Deliver the action plan of the Social Care Recruitment and 

Retention Operational group 

Assurance: 

 An Internal Audit has been completed of the workforce plan action plan, reported to  

Governance and Audit Committee in July 2023 (see above under Critical Controls). 

Tudalen 82

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
49 

Residual Risk  

B3 – Major Risk: Likely / Medium Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Yes. If operational and policy delivery is regarded as the most significant impact, our risk 

appetite in this regard is open.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 50: The risk that Welsh Government’s commitment to 

eliminate profit from the care of Children Looked After results 

in an unstable or unsuitable supply of placements 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gill German  

Risk Owner: Nicola Stubbins 

Tudalen 83



 
50 

September 2023 review: 

Risk 50: There has been no change to the risk title. 

The risk has been agreed Regionally for inclusion in Corporate Risk Registers 

The Risk Owner is to be a CET member and has been reverted back to Nicola Stubbins. 

The risk has been reviewed and in some cases, where a placement is necessary but 

cannot be sourced due to national placement insufficiency a bespoke arrangement may 

have to be established.  In this regard the residual risk score has been reviewed 

increasing from  C3 – Moderate Risk: Possible and Medium Impact to B2 – Critical Risk: 

Highly Likely and High Impact.  

Now a Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk.  

We continue to monitor the long-term implications of this commitment from Welsh 

Government on adult placements.  For now, the risk owner remains as Councillor Gill 

German but should it become a risk for adult placements Councillor Elen Heaton will be 

added as a Lead Member. 

Description  

The Welsh Government’s Programme for Government makes a commitment to ‘eliminate 

private profit from the care of Children Looked After during the next Senedd term’. 

The objective of removing profit is a positive one and it has the region’s resounding 

commitment.  However, it is imperative that Welsh Government take steps in pursuit of 

not-for-profit arrangements that do not disrupt children and young people’s lives in the 

short term. 

Our key concern is that providers become unsettled and the sufficiency and suitability of 

placements will be affected, affecting the lives of Children Looked After. 

This risk is closely linked to risk 34 (The risk that there is insufficient regulated care) 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk has been regionally agreed. We will review the anticipated direction of travel as 

our management of this risk progresses over the next few months. We always felt this 

would take time to be resolved but there have been delays, but there is a real desire from 

Welsh Government to implement but it is a complex and challenging issue to resolve. It is 

Tudalen 84



 
51 

becoming more challenging to find placements. In some cases, where a placement is 

necessary but cannot be sourced due to national placement insufficiency a bespoke 

arrangement may have to be established. This is known by CIW as Operating Without 

Registration (OWR) and is an offence. Work is ongoing between CIW, ADSSC, AWHoCS 

and WLGA to agree a process for the monitoring of OWRs. It is accepted that national 

placement insufficiency is leading to an increased use of OWR arrangements. 

Impact / Consequences  

 Reduction in the number of placements for Children Looked After both generally 

and within the region or reasonable travel distance to the region. 

 Current placements will be destabilised. 

 Reduced investment in the area to develop local supply by private providers. 

 Inability to source placements may result in the establishment of an emergency 

bespoke provision, contrary to regulations (OWR). 

Inherent Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Highly likely and High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

Critical controls: 

 Work with Welsh Government to ensure children are supported as close to home as 

possible. 

 Raise the issues connected with this approach with Welsh Government and stress 

that a detailed and informed approach, attuned timing, and compatible messaging 

is essential to the competent management of the journey. 

 Identify other alternative provision that is available 

 Raise awareness within the Regional Partnership Board and partner organisations. 

 The Regional Commissioning Board to consider other models such as In-house 

delivery 

Ancillary controls:  

 None. 

Tudalen 85



 
52 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls:  

 Costs associated with care for CLA will be available. 

Residual Risk  

B2 – Critical Risk: Highly likely and High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council's 

Risk Appetite?  

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk. 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 51: The risk that the economic and financial environment 

worsens and results in the Council’s inability to set a balanced 

budget. 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Liz Thomas 

Tudalen 86



 
53 

September 2023 update: 

Incorporates previous Risks : 

Risk 06 – The risk that the economic and financial environment worsens beyond current 

expectations, leading to additional demand on services and reduced income. 

Risk 27 – The risk that even if the settlement is as anticipated, decisions that are 

necessary to identify and deliver the savings programme and enable a balanced budget 

are not taken or implemented quickly enough. 

Risk 33 – The risk that the cost of care is outstripping the council’s resource. 

All sections have been reviewed to provide this new Risk 51: The risk that the economic 

and financial environment worsens and results in the Council’s inability to set a balanced 

budget. 

The Risk Owner for this new Risk being Liz Thomas and the Lead Member Councillor 

Gwyneth Ellis. 

Residual risk is C1 – Critical Risk: Possible / Very High Impact 

Description  

The Local Government indicative settlement for 2024 to 2025 is 3%, this compares to a 

settlement of 8.2% in 2023 to 2024. There continues to be an ever growing list of 

significant economic and demand pressures related to inflation (e.g. pay, energy), social 

care, support for schools, benefits, the supply of goods and services in the supply chain 

(and the impact on our capital plan).  

The economy has suffered several shocks in recent years. Leaving the European Union, 

Covid-19, war in Ukraine and increases in cost of living. Cost of fuel, goods and services 

have increased and led to concerns around the level of inflation in the UK, prompting The 

Bank of England to increase base rates.  

Although the position is based on a number of assumptions that can change the current 

projections indicate that pressures of £26m for next year will require funding. Even after 

taking into account the middle of the range of the Council Tax increase at 7% (a planning 

figure that has not yet been agreed), and the indicative RSG settlement of 3%, a shortfall 

remains of between £15m. Similar pressures are being experienced by other Welsh local 

Tudalen 87



 
54 

authorities. The position for 2025 to 2026 remains even more uncertain as the current UK 

Government spending plans end in 2024 to 2025 and therefore WG cannot provide an 

indicative settlement for that year.  

Any plans require the approval of Cabinet and in some instances Council, and must be 

implemented in a timely manner that complies with legislation.  While the budget process 

has been successful historically the Council has never faced the scale of financial 

challenges that we are currently. Substantial savings need to be made by the local 

authority and the political environment remains sensitive. 

As decisions are becoming harder lead in times are becoming longer. Decisions may 

become more challenging as the financial and economic environment becomes tighter. 

The investments and supply structures held by the council and its commissioned services 

could be placed in an uncertain position depending on the value of the pound. This is 

particularly of issue in the viability of some residential care homes, and the subsequent 

risk to the council if any of those private providers were no longer sustainable. 

The main areas of pressure relate to: 

 Social Care (Adults) – this pressure relates to the ever increasing demand due to 

need and demographic pressure. It is also impacted by inflationary pressures 

especially the annual increase in the Real Living Wage and the impact this has on 

the care home fees that are agreed on an annual basis. 

 Childrens Services – the main driver of pressures in this area is the increasing 

number and cost of external placements. 

 Pay and grading – the pressure for increases in public sector pay is a major 

concern for the Council’s finances when the expected settlement falls well short of 

inflation. It is expected that due to the RLW increasing at an even higher rate over a 

number of years that the Council’s whole grading structure will need to be 

redesigned – a project team has been established to carry out this work. 

 Other inflation – the main impact on the Council’s budget is the increase in energy 

costs. Finance are working closely with our energy experts in Property to assess 

both the in-year pressure and to project costs for 2024 to 2025. 

 School Budgets – the Council provides schools with inflationary pressures each 

year and then decides whether or not a savings target is applied. All the inflationary 

pressures (e.g. pay and energy) also impact schools’ budgets. 

Tudalen 88



 
55 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk remains outside of our risk appetite, and has the potential to worsen, as the scale 

of financial challenge has become clearer. We do have control on the likelihood of not 

being able to deliver a balanced budget, based on the decision-making processes we put 

in place.  The outlook has deteriorated significantly over the last twelve months. The 

outlook for public bodies has worsened and we are expecting a return to financial 

settlements well below the rate of inflation - at least in the near term. We continue to work 

closely with the WLGA and Welsh Government to ensure everyone is aware of the 

situation. Services have already made significant savings over the last 13 years and 

further savings will result in reductions in service which will be more difficult to prioritise 

and deliver. 

The direction of travel on the particular pressures are summarised below: 

 Social Care (Adults) – this year the pressure (excluding pay) was £8.2m, a further 

pressure of at least £4m is expected for 2024 to 2025.  

 Childrens Services - this year the pressure (excluding pay) was £2.7m, a further 

pressure of around £2m is expected for 2024 to 2025. 

 Pay and grading - this year the expected pay pressure is in excess of £4m 

(settlement agreed as this report is being written), a further pressure of around £5m 

is expected for 2024 to 2025. On top of this core pressure, the impact of the grading 

issue is currently included at a high level estimate of £6.5m  

 Other Inflation (energy) – a pressure of £3m was included in the budget for 2023 to 

2024 and a further £1m has been projected for 2024 to 2025. However these 

figures are currently under review. 

 School Budgets – Inflationary and demographic pressures of £4.2m was included in 

the 2023 to 2024 budgets. No savings target was given and a commitment was 

made to review the energy costs position in year. For 2024 to 2025 it is currently 

that a pressure of £6.2m will be required – however a savings target will be required 

and schools have asked to plan for a 3% savings target.  

Impact / Consequences  

 The council experiences increased costs. 

Tudalen 89



 
56 

 The council’s ambition and the scope of projects and programmes are curtailed due 

to increased costs. 

 Stretched resources, affecting our ability to deliver on statutory functions. 

 Low staff morale. 

 Regulatory action, and poor reputation if unprepared. 

 Reputational damage. 

 Ultimately the risk is that the Council cannot set a balanced budget which may lead 

to the issuing of a Section 114 notice and external intervention. 

 

Inherent Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

The council has no control over the global economy or the WG settlement. Therefore, the 

inherent and residual risk scores are likely to remain high. 

Critical controls: 

 A new Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was agreed in April 2023 and we 

are currently having two weekly CET and Cabinet meetings to agree actions. This 

forms the basis of how we identify the efficiencies, savings and cuts necessary in 

order to ensure the financial sustainability of the council. 

 Our level of financial reserves are kept at a sensible level so that shocks to 

economy can be dealt with. 

 The collaborative approach to partnership working and sharing lessons learned 

during the Covid-19 pandemic (with Welsh Government and the Welsh Local 

Government Association) has been mutually beneficial and we hope that this same 

approach could be established should we experience further economic shocks in 

the future. Working collaboratively, pan Wales, has been an effective way to 

develop solutions. However the financial capacity for Welsh Government to help is 

also very limited. 

 The MTFS details the latest detailed Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which 

contains different scenarios to try to ensure that it can deal with changes in the 

external environment.  

Tudalen 90



 
57 

 We try to reduce the likelihood of this risk occurring, where we can, for example 

through individual, regional, national lobbying and through other meetings/fora. 

 Annual, detailed budget setting process that considers economic environment 

 Regular (usually monthly) financial planning meetings between services and 

management accountants are in place. 

 Services routinely monitor supply issues and cost increases.  

 The Procurement Team supports services to ensure value for money and explore 

collaborative procurement where that may be a possibility.  

 Service's budgets and budget proposals are scrutinised by the Lead Member for 

Finance and the Head of Service during budget-setting talks. 

 The budget setting process involves Members, so they understand that difficult 

decisions are necessary, and they are involved with developing the proposals. This 

should make them more likely to support the recommendations made. 

 

Ancillary controls: 

 A detailed Communications Strategy has been developed to ensure that all 

stakeholders are informed and can have input into the budget process. Monthly 

meetings are held to monitor the progress of the detailed Communications Action 

Plan. This aims to provide clear communications around financial challenges and 

the budget process to Members and we try to ensure our residents are informed 

about how the council is funded and spends its funds. 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls: The Head of Finance and Audit’s 

service plan includes key performance indicators that are associated with effective 

management of this risk and provides a monthly budget report to Cabinet. 

 FINA101m The % of required efficiency savings identified for next year (Quarterly) 

 FINA102m The % of required efficiency savings achieved for this year (Quarterly) 

 Council reserves (£k) 

Assurance: 

Tudalen 91



 
58 

 The Budget Strategy is being reviewed regularly by the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

Residual Risk  

C1 – Critical Risk: Possible / Very High Impact 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk 52: The risk that insufficient funding leads to withdrawal 

or scaling back of services, even when a balanced budget is 

delivered 

Lead Member(s): Councillor Gwyneth Ellis 

Risk Owner: Graham Boase 

Tudalen 92



 
59 

September 2023 update: 

This is a new risk in addition to new Risk 51 The risk that the economic and financial 

environment worsens and results in the Council’s inability to set a balanced budget. 

 

Residual Risk:  B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

 

Description  

Description  

The Local Government indicative settlement for 2024 to 2025 is 3%, this compares to a 

settlement of 8.2% in 2023 to 2024. There continues to be an ever growing list of 

significant economic and demand pressures related to inflation (e.g. pay, energy), social 

care, support for schools, benefits, the supply of goods and services in the supply chain 

(and the impact on our capital plan).  

The economy has suffered several shocks in recent years. Leaving the European Union, 

Covid-19, war in Ukraine and increases in cost of living. Cost of fuel, goods and services 

have increased and led to concerns around the level of inflation in the UK, prompting The 

Bank of England to increase base rates.  

Although the position is based on a number of assumptions that can change the current 

projections indicate that pressures of £26m for next year will require funding. Even after 

taking into account the middle of the range of the Council Tax increase at 7% (a planning 

figure that has not yet been agreed), and the indicative RSG settlement of 3%, a shortfall 

remains of between £15m. Similar pressures are being experienced by other Welsh local 

authorities. The position for 2025 to 2026 remains even more uncertain as the current UK 

Government spending plans end in 2024 to 2025 and therefore WG cannot provide an 

indicative settlement for that year.  

The main areas of pressure relate to: 

 Social Care (Adults) – this pressure relates to the ever increasing demand due to 

need and demographic pressure. It is also impacted by inflationary pressures 

especially the annual increase in the Real Living Wage and the impact this has on 

the care home fees that are agreed on an annual basis. 

Tudalen 93



 
60 

 Childrens Services – the main driver of pressures in this area is the increasing 

number and cost of external placements. 

 Pay and grading – the pressure for increases in public sector pay is a major 

concern for the Council’s finances when the expected settlement falls well short of 

inflation. It is expected that due to the RLW increasing at an even higher rate over a 

number of years that the Council’s whole grading structure will need to be 

redesigned – a project team has been established to carry out this work. 

 Other inflation – the main impact on the Council’s budget is the increase in energy 

costs. Finance are working closely with our energy experts in Property to assess 

both the in-year pressure and to project costs for 2024 to 2025. 

 School Budgets – the Council provides schools with inflationary pressures each 

year and then decides whether or not a savings target is applied. All the inflationary 

pressures (e.g. pay and energy) also impact schools’ budgets. 

 

Anticipated direction of travel: 

This risk remains outside of our risk appetite, and has the potential to worsen, as the scale 

of financial challenge has become clearer. We do have control on the likelihood of not 

being able to deliver a balanced budget, based on the decision-making processes we put 

in place.  The outlook has deteriorated significantly over the last twelve months. The 

outlook for public bodies has worsened and we are expecting a return to financial 

settlements well below the rate of inflation - at least in the near term. We continue to work 

closely with the WLGA and Welsh Government to ensure everyone is aware of the 

situation. Services have already made significant savings over the last 13 years and 

further savings will result in reductions in service which will be more difficult to prioritise 

and deliver. 

The direction of travel on the particular pressures are summarised below: 

 Social Care (Adults) – this year the pressure (excluding pay) was £8.2m, a further 

pressure of at least £4m is expected for 2024 to 2025.  

 Childrens Services - this year the pressure (excluding pay) was £2.7m, a further 

pressure of around £2m is expected for 2024 to 2025. 

 Pay and grading - this year the expected pay pressure is in excess of £4m 

(settlement agreed as this report is being written), a further pressure of around £5m 

Tudalen 94



 
61 

is expected for 2024 to 2025. On top of this core pressure, the impact of the grading 

issue is currently included at a high level estimate of £6.5m  

 Other Inflation (energy) – a pressure of £3m was included in the budget for 2023 to 

2024 and a further £1m has been projected for 2024 to 2025. However these 

figures are currently under review. 

 School Budgets – Inflationary and demographic pressures of £4.2m was included in 

the 2023 to 2024 budgets. No savings target was given and a commitment was 

made to review the energy costs position in year. For 2024 to 2025 it is currently 

that a pressure of £6.2m will be required – however a savings target will be required 

and schools have asked to plan for a 3% savings target.  

 

Impact / Consequences  

 Further savings will result in reductions in service which will be more difficult to 

prioritise and deliver  

 Stretched resources, affecting our ability to deliver on statutory functions. 

 Leading to an inability to deliver current levels of service provision. 

 Overspends in Social Care place significant budget pressures on the council and 

could result in the scaling back or withdrawal of non-statutory services. 

 Denbighshire overspends on its budget. 

 Denbighshire cannot deliver savings. 

 Low staff morale. 

 Regulatory action, and poor reputation if unprepared. 

 Reputational damage. 

 

Inherent Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

Controls to Manage Risk (in place)  

The council has no control over the global economy or the WG settlement. Therefore, the 

inherent and residual risk scores are likely to remain high. 

Critical controls: 

Tudalen 95



 
62 

 A new Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was agreed in April 2023 and we 

are currently having two weekly CET and Cabinet meetings to agree actions. This 

forms the basis of how we identify the efficiencies, savings and cuts necessary in 

order to ensure the financial sustainability of the council. 

 Our level of financial reserves are kept at a sensible level so that shocks to 

economy can be dealt with. 

 The collaborative approach to partnership working and sharing lessons learned 

during the Covid-19 pandemic (with Welsh Government and the Welsh Local 

Government Association) has been mutually beneficial and we hope that this same 

approach could be established should we experience further economic shocks in 

the future. Working collaboratively, pan Wales, has been an effective way to 

develop solutions. However the financial capacity for Welsh Government to help is 

also very limited. 

 The MTFS details the latest detailed Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which 

contains different scenarios to try to ensure that it can deal with changes in the 

external environment.  

 We try to reduce the likelihood of this risk occurring, where we can, for example 

through individual, regional, national lobbying and through other meetings/fora. 

 Annual, detailed budget setting process that considers economic environment 

 Regular (usually monthly) financial planning meetings between services and 

management accountants are in place. 

 Services routinely monitor supply issues and cost increases.  

 The Procurement Team supports services to ensure value for money and explore 

collaborative procurement where that may be a possibility.  

 Service's budgets and budget proposals are scrutinised by the Lead Member for 

Finance and the Head of Service during budget-setting talks. 

 The budget setting process involves Members, so they understand that difficult 

decisions are necessary, and they are involved with developing the proposals. This 

should make them more likely to support the recommendations made. 

 

Ancillary controls: 

 A detailed Communications Strategy has been developed to ensure that all 

stakeholders are informed and can have input into the budget process. Monthly 

meetings are held to monitor the progress of the detailed Communications Action 

Tudalen 96



 
63 

Plan. This aims to provide clear communications around financial challenges and 

the budget process to Members and we try to ensure our residents are informed 

about how the council is funded and spends its funds. 

 

Relevant indicators of the effectiveness of controls: The Head of Finance and Audit’s 

service plan includes key performance indicators that are associated with effective 

management of this risk and provides a monthly budget report to Cabinet. 

 FINA101m The % of required efficiency savings identified for next year (Quarterly) 

 FINA102m The % of required efficiency savings achieved for this year (Quarterly) 

 Council reserves (£k) 

Assurance: 

 The Budget Strategy is being reviewed regularly by the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

 

Residual Risk  

B1 – Critical Risk: Likely / Very High Impact 

Is our risk exposure (based on the score) consistent with the council’s 

Risk Appetite? 

Critical risk. Risk Appetite suggests that this should be at most a moderate risk.  

Further Actions   

1.  Implement the Budget Strategy agreed in April 2023 

Action Due Date: January 2024 

 

2. Take action in year to reduce the projected in year overspend in order to ensure 

reserves are still available to fund exit costs, delays to savings identification and 

implementation, and the future financial challenges. 

Action Due Date: September 2023 to end March 2024 

 

Tudalen 97



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Appendix 4: Risk Scoring Matrix 

Grading the likelihood of an event 

Grade % chance Description 

A: Almost Certain Over 70% Event is almost certain to occur in most 

circumstances 

B: Likely 30% to 70% Event likely to occur in most circumstances 

C: Possible 10% to 30% Event will possibly occur at some time 

D: Unlikely 1% to 10% Event unlikely and may occur at some time 

E: Rare Under 1% Event rare and may occur only in exceptional 

circumstances 

Rating the impact of an event 

Rating Service performance Reputation 
Financial 
cost 

1: Very 

High 

Unable to deliver core 

activities. Strategic aims 

compromised. 

Trust severely damaged and 

full recovery questionable and 

costly. 

Over 

£5million 

2: High Significant disruption to core 

activities. Key targets 

missed. 

Trust recoverable at 

considerable cost and 

management attention. 

£1million to 

£5million 

Tudalen 99



 
2 

Rating Service performance Reputation 
Financial 
cost 

3: 

Medium 

Disruption to core activities  

/  customers 

Trust recovery demands cost 

authorisation beyond existing 

budgets. 

£250,000 to 

£1million 

4: Low Some disruption to core 

activities  /  customers 

Trust recoverable at modest 

cost with resource allocation 

within budgets 

£50,000 to 

£250,000 

5: Very 

Low 

Minor errors or disruption. Trust recoverable with little 

effort or cost. 

Less than 

£50,000 

 

The combination of impact and likelihood results in a risk exposure rating of: 

Risk Score Risk Severity Escalation Criteria 

C5, D4, D5, E4, E5 Minor Risk easily managed locally – no need to involve 

management 

A5, B4, B5, C3, C4, 

D3, E2, E3 

Moderate Risk containable at service level – senior 

management and SLT may need to be kept 

informed 

A3, A4, B3, C2, D1, 

D2, E1 

Major Intervention by SLT with Cabinet involvement 

A1, A2, B1, B2, C1 Critical Significant SLT and Cabinet intervention 

 

  

Tudalen 100



 
3 

Summary of Denbighshire’s Risk Appetite Statement  

(as agreed November 2022): 

Denbighshire County Council’s risk appetite in relation to different aspects of council 

business is summarised below: 

 Reputation and Credibility – Open risk appetite, willing to consider all options and 

choose one that is most likely to result in successful delivery with an acceptable 

level of reward (and value for money). This means we will tolerate minor, moderate 

or major risks. 

 Operational and Policy Delivery – Open risk appetite, willing to consider all 

options and choose one that is most likely to result in successful delivery with an 

acceptable level of reward (and value for money). Again, this means we will tolerate 

minor, moderate or major risks. 

 Financial Projects - Open risk appetite, willing to consider all options and choose 

one that is most likely to result in successful delivery with an acceptable level of 

reward (and value for money). As above, we will tolerate minor, moderate or major 

risks. 

 Financial Treasury Management – Cautious risk appetite, preference for safe 

options that have a medium degree of inherent risk and may have some potential 

for rewards. Within this risk appetite, we will only tolerate minor or moderate risks. 

 Compliance and Regulation - Safeguarding – Minimalist risk appetite, preference 

for ultra-safe options where the well-being of individuals is concerned, with a low 

degree of inherent risk and have a potential for only limited (safe) reward. This 

means we will only accept minor risks in this area. 

 Compliance and Regulation - Other – Cautious risk appetite, preference for safe 

options that have a medium degree of inherent risk and may have some potential 

for rewards. Again, we will only tolerate minor or moderate risks in this area. 

 People (Workforce) Learning and Development – Cautious risk appetite, 

preference for safe options that have a medium degree of inherent risk and may 

have some potential for rewards. As above, minor or moderate risks only will be 

tolerated. 

 People (Workforce) – Cautious risk appetite, preference for safe options that have 

a medium degree of inherent risk and may have some potential for rewards. Again, 

we will only tolerate minor or moderate risks in this area. 

Tudalen 101



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 30 Tachwedd 2023 

Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol Y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Ellis, Aelod Arweiniol Cyllid, 

Perfformiad ac Asedau Strategol 

 Helen Vaughan-Evans, Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth 

Cymorth Corfforaethol: Perfformiad, Digidol ac 

Asedau  

Awdur yr adroddiad Emma Horan, Swyddog Cynllunio a Pherfformiad 

Teitl Diweddariad ar Berfformiad y Cynllun Corfforaethol: 

Gorffennaf - Medi 2023 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Cyflwyno diweddariad ar berfformiad y Cyngor yn erbyn ei Gynllun Corfforaethol    ar 

ddiwedd Medi (chwarter 2), gan gynnwys amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol a’r saith 

maes llywodraethu allweddol, sef: cynllunio corfforaethol; cynllunio ariannol, rheoli 

perfformiad; rheoli risg; cynllunio’r gweithlu; asedau a chaffael. 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Mae adroddiadau rheolaidd yn un o ofynion monitro hanfodol Fframwaith Rheoli 

Perfformiad y Cyngor. Caiff adroddiadau perfformiad chwarterol eu rhannu’n 

rheolaidd â’r Uwch Dîm Arweinyddiaeth (UDA), y Cabinet a’r Pwyllgor Craffu 

Perfformiad, er mwyn cefnogi trafodaeth adeiladol ynghylch ein perfformiad a nodi 

ymyraethau, lle bo angen. 

2.2. Mae’r adroddiadau diweddariad ar berfformiad chwarterol hyn yn casglu tystiolaeth 

sy’n ffurfio rhan o’n Hunanasesiad o berfformiad yn erbyn ein swyddogaethau, fel 

sy’n ofynnol o dan Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021.  

Tudalen 103

Eitem Agenda 6

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/cy/eich-cyngor/strategaethau-cynlluniau-a-pholisiau/cynlluniau/cynllun-corfforaethol/cynllun-corfforaethol.aspx


 
 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod y Cabinet yn ystyried yr adroddiad ac yn cytuno ar unrhyw gamau pellach 

sydd eu hangen i ymateb i unrhyw faterion perfformiad a nodir ynddo. 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1. Yr adroddiad yn atodiad 1 yw ein Hadroddiad Diweddariad ar Berfformiad chwarterol 

cyfarwydd, sef ein proses ar gyfer hunanasesiad parhaus, ar gyfer y cyfnod 

Gorffennaf i Fedi 2023. Mae angen i’r Cyngor hunanasesu ein perfformiad yn erbyn 

cyflawni ein swyddogaethau eraill o dan y Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau 

(Cymru) 2021. 

4.2. Mae’n ail o bedwar diweddariad Hunanasesiad Perfformiad a gynhyrchir yn ystod y 

flwyddyn ar gyfer hunanasesu ein perfformiad yn erbyn darpariaeth ein 

swyddogaethau. Ar y cyfan, cyflwynir yr adroddiad mewn dau ran sy’n ceisio 

amlinellu cynnydd yn erbyn y meysydd allweddol canlynol: 

- Amcanion Perfformiad – sy’n cynnwys Amcanion ein Cynllun Corfforaethol / 

Cydraddoldeb Strategol (sydd hefyd yn ffurfio ein Hamcanion o dan Ddeddf Llesiant 

Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015). 

- Meysydd Llywodraethu – wedi’u pennu ymlaen llaw gan y canllawiau statudol ar 

berfformiad o dan Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021. 

4.3. Caiff bob adroddiad Diweddariad Hunanasesiad Perfformiad chwarterol eu rhannu â’r 

UDA, y Cabinet a’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad (cyflwynir chwarter dau a phedwar i’r 

pwyllgorau). Caiff adroddiadau chwarter 4 hefyd eu rhannu â’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 

ac Archwilio a’r Cyngor Sir, gan gynnwys Crynodeb o Hunanasesiad ar gyfer y 

flwyddyn. Dylai’r adroddiadau gael eu gweld fel adnoddau i gefnogi trafodaeth 

adeiladol, agored ac onest am ein perfformiad, gan helpu i adnabod ymarfer da a 

meysydd ar gyfer ymyrraeth neu graffu pellach. 

4.4. Mae’r Adroddiad Diweddariad ar Berfformiad hwn yn cyflwyno’r darlun diweddaraf o 

fis Gorffennaf tan fis Medi 2023, ac mae ei fformat wedi ei ddiweddaru ychydig i 

adlewyrchu trafodaethau yn dilyn Adolygiad Cyfran y Cynllun Corfforaethol ym Medi 

a chyhoeddi ein hadroddiad Ebrill i Orffennaf:  

Tudalen 104



 
 

- Mae’r adroddiad hwn nawr yn cynnwys adrannau sy’n rhoi crynodeb o fesurau a 

phrosiectau sy’n cefnogi bob addewid ar gyfer y naw thema yn y Cynllun 

Corfforaethol. 

- Mae Mynegai Amddifadedd Lluosog Cymru nawr yn ymddangos ar ddiwedd pob 

adran. 

- Mae mesurau Arolwg Budd-ddeiliaid nawr yn eistedd yn eu tabl eu hunain gyda 

cholofnau data i’r rhai a atebodd ‘cytuno’, ‘anghytuno’ a ‘dim barn/ansicr’, gyda 

statws i’r rhai a fynegodd farn a chytuno. Er rydym yn parhau i ystyried adrodd ar 

Arolwg Budd-ddeiliad. 

- Rydym wedi dechrau adolygu, gyda Phenaethiaid Gwasanaeth, trothwyon ar gyfer 

rhai o’n mesurau. Rydym wedi nodi ble mae’r rhain wedi eu diweddaru. 

- Mae prosiectau yn yr arfaeth wedi eu cynnwys. 

- Yn dilyn trafodaeth gan y Bwrdd newydd Cyngor sy'n cael ei Gynnal yn dda, ac sy’n 

Uchel ei Berfformiad mae geiriad yr addewidion o dan thema 9 bellach wedi ei 

ehangu. Gofynnir am gymeradwyaeth ar gyfer y newidiadau hyn gan y Cyngor Sir fel 

rhan o’n Hadroddiad Hunanasesu ar gyfer y flwyddyn yng ngwanwyn 2024.  Yn y 

cyfamser, byddwn yn gweithio ar y sail y bydd y geiriad newydd yn cael ei dderbyn. 

4.5. Bydd unrhyw gyfleoedd pellach i wella’r Fframwaith Rheoli Perfformiad ac 

Adroddiadau Diweddariad ar Berfformiad yn barhaus, yn cael eu cymryd gan y Tîm 

Cynllunio Strategol.  

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Gynllun 
Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: Y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

5.1. Mae’r Adroddiad Diweddariad Perfformiad yn cynnwys arfarniad o lwyddiant y 

Cyngor wrth gyflawni themâu ei Gynllun Corfforaethol. 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Nid oes unrhyw gostau ychwanegol yn gysylltiedig â’r adroddiad hwn. 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Nid oes angen Asesiad o Effaith ar Les ar gyfer yr adroddiad hwn.  Cynhaliwyd 

Asesiad o Effaith ar Les ar y Cynllun Corfforaethol, a chafodd ei gyflwyno i’r Cyngor 

Sir pan gymeradwywyd y Cynllun ym mis Hydref 2022.  Bydd prosiectau / rhaglenni 

Tudalen 105



 
 

gwaith newydd o fewn y Cynllun Corfforaethol yn cael eu hasesu’n unigol, fel ag y 

bydd unrhyw gamau gweithredu newydd wrth symud ymlaen. 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1. Cafodd yr adroddiad ei lunio gan y Tîm Cynllunio Strategol, mewn ymgynghoriad â 

gwasanaethau’r Cyngor. Mae’r wybodaeth ynglŷn â pherfformiad sydd wedi’i 

chynnwys yn y ddogfen wedi ei darparu gan Wasanaethau, ac mae wedi ei chymryd 

o'r system rheoli perfformiad Verto ac yn adlewyrchu, ble’n briodol, y drafodaeth gan 

Fyrddau’r Cynllun Corfforaethol neu gamau gweithredu yn dilyn yr Adolygiad Cyfran.  

8.2. Mae Trafodaeth eisoes wedi digwydd yn yr Uwch Dîm Arwain a’r Cabinet (Tachwedd 

21). 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Ni cheir goblygiadau ariannol uniongyrchol yn sgil yr adroddiad hwn. Dylid nodi, fodd 

bynnag, y gallai sefyllfa ariannol gyffredinol y Cyngor yn 2024-2025 a thu hwnt ei 

gwneud yn anodd i wasanaethau gynnal lefelau perfformiad mewn rhai meysydd yn y 

dyfodol. 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w 
lleihau? 

10.1. Byddai methu â chyhoeddi ein hadroddiadau diweddariad ar berfformiad, sy’n 

cyfrannu at ein Hunanasesiad blynyddol, yn debygol o arwain at argymhellion 

statudol gan Archwilio Cymru, gyda goblygiadau i enw da’r Cyngor. 

10.2. Mae risg y bydd perfformiad gwael yn cael ei adrodd allan o’i gyd-destun, gan 

effeithio ar ein henw da. Felly rydym wedi trafod y negeseuon allweddol gyda’r Tîm 

Cyfathrebu.  

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1. Rhan 6 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 2021 (pennod 1, adran 

89). 

11.2. Rhan 2 o Ddeddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 (adran 13). 

Tudalen 106



 
 

11.3. Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Statudol) (Cymru) 2011 (adran 

16); a Rheoliadau’r Ddeddf Cydraddoldeb (Awdurdodau sy’n ddarostyngedig i 

Ddyletswydd ynghylch Anghydraddoldebau Economaidd-gymdeithasol) (Cymru) 

2021. 

11.4. Mae Adran 21 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 ac Adran 7 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

amlinellu pwerau Craffu mewn perthynas â rheoli perfformiad. 

Tudalen 107



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Mae'r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is available in Welsh. 

 

 

Appendix 1 

Corporate Plan Performance 
Update: July to September 
2023 

This document presents the council’s performance against its Corporate Plan themes and 

governance areas between July to September 2023, including our application of the 

Sustainable Development principle, the Public Sector Equality Duty, and Socio-Economic 

Duty. 

  

Tudalen 109



 
2 

Contents 

Contents .............................................................................................................................. 2 

Contact details and more information .................................................................................. 3 

Summary position ................................................................................................................ 4 

A Note on Measuring Performance ...................................................................................... 9 

A Denbighshire of quality housing that meets people's needs ........................................... 10 

A prosperous Denbighshire ............................................................................................... 22 

A healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire .................................................................... 34 

A learning and growing Denbighshire ................................................................................ 46 

A better connected Denbighshire ....................................................................................... 60 

A Greener Denbighshire .................................................................................................... 69 

A fairer, safe, and more equal Denbighshire ...................................................................... 78 

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language ......................................... 89 

A well-run, high performing council .................................................................................. 100 

Tudalen 110



 
3 

Contact details and more information 

For more information, or to let us know what you think about anything in this report, 

contact us: 

By email: strategicplanningteam@denbighshire.gov.uk 

By telephone: 01824 706291 

Rydym yn croesawu galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg / We welcome telephone calls in Welsh. 

By post: 

Strategic Planning and Performance Team 

Denbighshire County Council 

PO Box 62 

Ruthin 

LL15 9AZ 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. There will be no delay in responding to 

correspondence received in Welsh. 

To keep up-to-date: 

Like us on Facebook 

Follow us on Twitter 

Visit the council’s website for information on the Corporate Plan  

Visit the County Conversation Portal and sign up for Y Panel! 

Subscribe to the County Voice Newsletter  

  

Tudalen 111

mailto:strategicplanningteam@denbighshire.gov.uk
https://www.facebook.com/denbighshirecountycouncil
https://twitter.com/denbighshirecc
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/corporateplan
https://countyconversation.denbighshire.gov.uk/KMS/elab.aspx?noip=1&CampaignId=510&SessionId=7FDKH2G792&CampaignUserRole=register
https://countyvoice.denbighshire.gov.uk/


 
4 

Summary position 

The chapters below provide a summary of activity that has taken place during the last 

period beneath our Corporate Plan themes, with a round-up of contributing news and 

committee items.  There will be aspects still in need of development and some gaps to fill; 

some of these will be confirmed in subsequent reports, others are more complex and will 

require further scoping – and often form part of the forward work plans for the new 

Corporate Plan Boards. Detailed comments for annual measures previously reported may 

be found in our performance self-assessment update reports January to March and April to 

June 2023 to 2024. 

Corporate Plan theme summary 

The measures evaluation for each theme below has been determined through the 

performance management framework that we have in place. The projects evaluation has 

been determined by the status of our projects. 

A Denbighshire of quality housing that meets people's needs 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Our Housing theme continues to show positive progress in relation to projects supporting 

this theme. As reported previously, we are aware and already responding to address 

weaknesses in our performance, especially in relation to homelessness where outcomes 

for our communities are not as positive as we want and aspire them to be. We are starting 

to see more people supported by My Home Denbighshire (the homelessness early 

intervention service), with a greater proportion of those supported not requiring a referral 

into the homelessness prevention service. The energy efficiency of council homes project 

is ‘At Risk’, affected by a number of factors. Affordable and extra care housing projects 

continue and are ‘On Target’ and the number of people on the Single Access Route to 

Housing (SARTH) waiting list, whilst remaining a concern, shows some improvement with 

fewer people on the waiting list this period. 

A prosperous Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Tudalen 112

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
5 

Shared Prosperity and Levelling Up funded projects are progressing in support of our 

Prosperous Denbighshire theme. However, we are facing some challenges regarding the 

Former North Wales Hospital project, whilst we await the section 106 agreement and 

funding. Some of our Rhyl-based projects are also experiencing delays (the Queen’s 

Building) or funding shortages (project to reconnect Rhyl High Street with the beach). The 

Rhyl Business Improvement Districts, it is hoped, will contribute to further regeneration of 

the town. The latest tourism figures show some significant improvement in terms of visitor 

numbers and the economic impact of tourism. However, some of the critical measures 

(about incomes and employment) for this theme are a ‘Priority for Improvement’. The new 

economic strategy for Denbighshire, which will, it is hoped, stimulate positive change for 

businesses, our economy and residents will be developed with support from the Well-

being for Future Generations Commissioner’s Office. 

A healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

In terms of a healthier, happier and caring Denbighshire, this report refers to the findings of 

the Draft Director of Social Services Annual Report, which notes that the demand on social 

care services had increased, and that performance had not progressed as well as the 

services would have liked due to national challenges and budgetary constraints. We are 

concerned about the increase in referrals made under Section 5 of the Wales 

Safeguarding Procedures (allegations about practitioners and those in a position of trust). 

However, the safeguarding report has highlighted the high level of safeguarding enquiries 

completed for adults within 7 days. Embedding the ‘Whole School Approach’ to mental 

health and well-being remains a priority. While the figure is lower this period compared to 

last, the distribution of specialist equipment that might enable single handed care means 

that some individuals are now receiving full or partial single-handed care, with potential 

cost savings of £1,500 per week.  

A learning and growing Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Attainment measures in support of our Learning and Growing theme are still to be 

confirmed as we wait for Welsh Government to publish comparable core data sets around 

Tudalen 113



 
6 

school standards. The Modernising Education Programme continues to experience delays 

for several reasons, but particularly due to issues with the feasibility of preferred sites. 

Early Years support, Llwybrau and Working Denbighshire are achieving some positive 

outcomes with individuals accessing childcare and parenting support, work and 

volunteering experience, and support into employment. We need to continue to work with 

schools in relation to community focussed activities.  

A better connected Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

In support of a better connected Denbighshire we have completed our annual Surface 

Dressing programme on a number of high priority roads and our annual Resurfacing 

Programme - on a number of roads across the county where the life has expired - is 

ongoing. The percentage of damaged roads and pavements made safe within target time 

(CAT1 - Category 1 defects dealt within timescale) remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. 

Discussions with Welsh Government to secure funding to deliver the most viable option to 

replace Llannerch Bridge are ongoing. We have also been making preparations for the 

upcoming 20mph speed limit coming into force from September 17. Levelling Up Fund 

(LUF) Projects will support this theme in terms of electric vehicle charging, public realm, 

active travel, and investment in community hub facilities, with an expected delivery date of 

March 2025. 

A greener Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Ensuring that we meet our net carbon zero commitment as an organisation by 2030 

continues to be a challenge and will not be easily achieved. Becoming an Ecologically 

Positive Council by 2030 is looking more promising. We have robust governance in place 

to test our progress and the plans we have in place. The first official review and refresh of 

the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy will be carried out this year, 2023 to 2024. 

Delivery of the strategy does not stop whilst this review is taking place; work continues at 

pace concurrently with the review to deliver Net Carbon Zero and Ecologically Positive 

Council and reduction in supply chain emissions. Data for reducing carbon tonnage from 

Tudalen 114



 
7 

our supply chains is currently pending (as are previous years), whilst we revisit the data 

collation methodology. 

A fairer, safe, and more equal Denbighshire  

Measures: Priority for Improvement 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Our overall judgement about our measures for a fairer, safe and more equal Denbighshire 

reflects the fact the majority of critical measures in this theme are a ‘Priority for 

Improvement’ and have been for some time. The obstacles and challenges in relation to 

poverty are perennial in some cases. Provision of Free School Meals continues to expand 

however, and it is hoped this will alleviate some of the effects of poverty on children. The 

number of repeat victims of domestic abuse has increased, so too the number of repeat 

offenders of domestic abuse. The significant spike in volumes is also evident for the rest of 

North Wales. Further work is required to understand the significant increase, but it is likely 

to reflect improvements in recording standards. Staff completion of key equality e-learning 

modules are a ‘Priority for Improvement’; however, some modules may be more pertinent 

to certain job roles than others. 

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

In terms of our vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language theme, the reduction of 

learners receiving Welsh medium education in September 2020 makes the ambitious 

targets of our Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP), very far-reaching. Support and 

investment are in place to deliver the WESP, bolstered by the county’s Welsh Language 

Strategy. A workshop is being planned for all elected members to brief them on what the 

council is doing to promote Welsh in the county. Our pledge to ‘Develop a cultural and 

heritage strategy and a programme of events’ remains on hold. Despite this, the council 

continues to support and promote a wide range of cultural projects and events. 

A well-run, high performing council 

Measures:  Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Tudalen 115



 
8 

The new Well-Run, High Performing Council Board, providing governance for this theme, 

will be established in October 2023. At the time of writing this update, the Board had met 

and agreed a way forward to progress the theme’s five pledges, which are aligned to our 

council’s five principles. Some changes to this theme’s pledges have been requested, 

which offer an expansion and clarification on each pledge. Approval for these wording 

changes will be sought from County Council as part of our Self-Assessment Report for the 

year in spring 2024. 

Our self-assessment against the seven key governance areas paints a largely positive 

picture of how well the council is performing.  We have also provided an update on the 

significant funding gaps the council is facing. The council’s Senior Leadership Team and 

Cabinet are working closely to deliver a balanced budget so that the council is financially 

stable now and in the future. 

  

Tudalen 116



 
9 

A Note on Measuring Performance 

In Denbighshire, our default approach to setting performance thresholds is to take the 

upper-quartile (best performing) from nationally comparable information as the point where 

performance is considered ‘Excellent’. The ‘Priority for Improvement’ threshold is usually 

the median. Midway between these two values determines the threshold between 

‘Acceptable’ and ‘Good’ performance. 

If no data is available that we can compare ourselves with (either nationally or by 

comparable grouping), then we will take a local view on what we feel reasonably 

determines ‘Excellent’ and ‘Priority for Improvement’ performance. This should represent 

our ambition. 

Our data tables use this same language, except for ‘Priority for Improvement’, which is 

truncated to ‘Priority to Improve’. Our data tables also show information about trend. Trend 

is identified as ‘Better’, ‘Worse’, or ‘Same’, and is based on a comparison with the previous 

period for which we have data. Where possible, we also show trend for projects and 

activities, which is determined by comparing the overall status of the project or activity with 

its status in the previous period. Project and activity statuses are identified as ‘On Target’, 

‘Experiencing Obstacles’, ‘At Risk’ or ‘Compromised’.  

For more information on how we manage performance, view the Performance 

Management Guide on our website. 

  

Tudalen 117

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/reviewing-the-councils-performance.aspx


 
10 

A Denbighshire of quality housing that meets people's needs 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Ensure that there is quality housing that meets the needs of vulnerable 

people, assisting them to lead independent lives in appropriate 

accommodation for as long as possible 

Delivering the Housing and Homelessness Strategy Action Plan is an important 

programme of work for the council and one that integrates a number of actions from 

across many services. The project continues to make good progress against its aims and 

is considered to be ‘On Target.’ In September, Performance Scrutiny reviewed the 

Housing and Homelessness Strategy, noting its progress. The Strategy and Action Plan 

will be scrutinised again in 12 months. 

The Ruthin Extra Care Housing project that continues to progress ‘On Target’ and will 

contribute towards meeting the specialist housing needs of vulnerable people in 

Denbighshire. The Corwen Extra Care project is at business case stage and will enhance 

this provision further. 

Prevent homelessness, and ensure that any instances of it are rare, brief, and 

unrepeated 

Preventing homelessness is a priority for the council, and a number of measures have 

started to be monitored to inform this service area. The number of referrals received into 

the homelessness Early Intervention and Prevention (My Home Denbighshire) service 

increased from 43 at the end of June, to 64 at the end of September. During the period, 

there was also an increase from 69.77% to 92.18% in the percentage of Early Intervention 

and Prevention referrals that were prevented from presenting to the homelessness 

prevention service. The council is taking steps to ensure early engagement with people at 

risk of homelessness, and we can report that 39 people were supported by the Citizens 

Advice Denbighshire Homelessness Prevention Team link officer by the end of 

September.  

Tudalen 118

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6751&LLL=0


 
11 

The council will continue to focus on early intervention and prevention, working in 

collaboration with partners such as the Salvation Army. A project to reduce the reliance 

on unsuitable temporary accommodation by establishing some in-house emergency 

housing facilities for homeless citizens is progressing with plans in place for assessing 

further sites for suitability.  

In August, it was reported that after listening to public feedback, plans to create 

temporary homeless accommodation at Maes Emlyn in Rhyl were no longer being 

pursued. The council now plans to redevelop the site to achieve the long-term goal of 

providing more social housing to meet demand. This is evidence of the council’s 

commitment to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act and the Sustainable 

Development Principle. By ensuring citizens are involved in decision making, the council 

hopes to foster good long-term relationships, prevent future problems from occurring and 

benefit those at a socio-economic disadvantage. A pre-planning consultation for the new 

development will be published where residents will have another opportunity to be 

involved and share their views on the new plans.  

Upgrade the council housing stock 

Since the last reporting period, one project remains ‘At Risk’ and that is to improve energy 

efficiency in council houses. It is believed that the new and soon to be implemented Welsh 

Housing Quality Standard will create an extra financial pressure on the service as 

additional measures will be required to comply with the new standard. Inflated costs and 

the lack of qualified trades in the sector are also contributory factors to the status of the 

project. There is progress, however, in that the average Energy Performance Certificate 

(EPC) rating across the council’s housing stock continues to rise. 

In July, a project to improve the energy efficiency of the Aberadda council flats in 

Llangollen was reported to be near completion. Denbighshire Housing has replaced the 

roof, improved insulation and increased the energy efficiency of the building. Similar 

projects are planned across Denbighshire in the near future. 

As well as pledging to upgrade the energy efficiency of council houses, the council has a 

duty to ensure they’re maintained, safe and suitable for the needs of residents. The 

percentage of emergency housing repairs completed within target time for the period has 

remained at an ‘Acceptable’ rate of 96.90%. Also, a further 56 disabled adaptations have 

been carried out for council house tenants between July and September. 

Tudalen 119

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=dd1523fc-01a6-45d0-8e5a-41214fc62eeb
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=402714f8-d632-437e-b795-9b77bf5f5528


 
12 

There has been a review of some performance thresholds which required updating in this 

theme. These relate to the Denbighshire Housing Tenant Survey, which is launched every 

two years to inform service provision. 

Signpost residents to opportunities to improve the efficiency of their homes 

A clearer picture of how people may be supported to improve the energy efficiency of their 

homes is emerging as new measures start to be monitored. We know that between July 

and September 2023, 143 households were signposted and helped through the ECO4 

scheme - a government scheme providing funding for eligible homeowners to make 

energy efficiency improvements to their homes. The number of recorded page views of the 

energy efficiency page on our website reached 357 up until September. This number is 

likely to be higher as we can only record visits to the webpage where browser cookies 

have been accepted. Discussions are taking place to overcome capacity issues relating to 

promoting the energy efficiency page on our website through social media channels. We 

are ‘On Target’ to signpost residents to the Welsh Government’s Nest scheme for energy 

efficiency support, with the awareness campaign complete and a mail out scheduled 

during the next few months. 

Deliver more homes to meet local need and demand 

Several projects aimed at delivering more affordable, specialist and council homes are 

running ‘On Target.’ This includes the project to provide affordable housing at Edward 

Henry Street and the Additional Council Housing Developments Project, which has an 

improved delivery confidence.  

An activity to ‘Work with the Rhyl Regeneration Programme Board to Contribute to 

Progressing the Rhyl Residential Strategy’ has been renamed to ‘Progress the Rhyl 

Residential Strategy’. The project is awaiting the publication of Welsh Government 

guidance to be able to complete a Strategic Flood Consequences Assessment, and as 

such is still ‘Experiencing Obstacles.’ 

The percentage of empty private properties brought back in to use through direct action by 

the council has increased from 2% during the last quarterly period to 7% for the period 

between July and September 2023, and performance is now considered ‘Excellent’. 

Also during the period, a public consultation whether to increase the council tax premium 

charges for both long term empty and second homes has taken place, with the majority of 

Tudalen 120

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4ce0553b-12cc-407e-a9fc-43fe493aa7cd


 
13 

respondents agreeing with proposals for additional charges. The proposals align with the 

council’s long-term aims to encourage home owners not to leave their properties empty 

and bring them back into use to meet local need and demand. In July, Cabinet met to 

discuss the findings of the consultation and consider the council tax premium proposals to 

these homes, agreeing to progress the matter by seeking County Council approval. In 

September, County Council discussed the proposals to increase council tax premium 

charges and agreed by majority vote to accept the recommendations, with one additional 

amendment. The recommendations were to retain the 50% premium charge for April 2023, 

increase to 100% from April 2024, and to 150% from April 2025. Also that properties 

unoccupied and unfurnished for 5 years or more pay a higher premium at 50% more than 

the standard premium and that there be parity between the standard second home and 

long-term empty premium, to minimise avoidance by taxpayers. The additional 

recommendation was that any extra funding generated by the proposals would be 

allocated for use by local communities and to tackle homelessness.  

Ensure that our residents are informed about available housing options and 

routes to housing, seeking also to reduce the Single Access Route to 

Housing (SARTH) waiting list.  

The development of a tenant involvement framework for Denbighshire Housing is ‘On 

Target’ with a plan in place to inform tenants about housing matters and deliver a range of 

activities.  

As at the end of September 2023, there were 1,760 people on the Single Access Route to 

Housing (SARTH) waiting list. The figure is yet to reach an ‘Acceptable’ threshold; 

however, it represents good progress when compared to the same period for the previous 

year (2,190).   

The project to bring Denbighshire’s SARTH system in-house has now been completed. 

The in-house system has been operational for five months and during that time, many 

obstacles have been successfully overcome by the programme team. The activity to 

develop performance and reporting systems following the implementation of the SARTH 

continues to be ‘Experiencing Obstacles.’ Work is now progressing with a planned system 

upgrade with full reporting expected to be available by the end of December 2023.  

 

Tudalen 121

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24516&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6776&LLL=0


 
14 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity related to the support offered to those experiencing 

homelessness please see our learning and growing theme and for connections between 

energy efficiency and fuel poverty, please see our theme for a fairer, safe and more equal 

Denbighshire.  

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
emergency housing 
repairs completed 
within target time - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

95.85% 

Acceptable 

Better 

94.72% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

97.22% 

Acceptable 

Better 

97.06% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

96.90% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

The number of 
disabled adaptations 
carried out for council 
house tenants – Count 
Only 

66 

 

64 

 

56 

 

53 56 

The number of 
households helped 
through the ECO4 
scheme – Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

85 143 

The number of page 
views of the energy 
efficiency page on our 
website – Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

319 357 

The percentage of 
empty private 
properties brought 
back into use through 
direct action by the 
local authority - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

8.5% 

Excellent 

Better 

6.4% 

Excellent 

Worse 

6.1% 

Excellent 

Worse 

2% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

7% 

Excellent 

Better 

Tudalen 122



 
15 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The number of people 
on the SARTH waiting 
list - Benchmarked 
Locally 

2,190 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

2,235 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

1,734 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

1,785 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

1,760 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

The number of 
referrals received into 
Early Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) – Count 
Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

80 

 

43 64 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that 
have been prevented 
from presenting to 
homelessness 
prevention service - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

89.36% 

Excellent 

 

69.77% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

92.18% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that are 
for people in 
employment – Count 
Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

22.5% 

 

13.04% 7.81% 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that are 
a) Privately Rented – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

63.75% 

 

53.49% 64.06% 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that are 
b) Local Authority – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

11.25% 

 

6.98% 1.56% 

Tudalen 123



 
16 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that are 
c) Housing Association 
– Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

2.5% 

 

0% 3.12% 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that are 
d) Owner occupied – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

5% 

 

4.65% 6.25% 

The percentage of 
referrals Early 
Intervention and 
Prevention (My Home 
Denbighshire) that are 
e) Unknown – Count 
Only 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
January 
2023 

17.5% 

 

34.88% 25.01% 

The number of people 
at risk of 
homelessness 
supported by the CAD-
HPT (Citizens Advice 
Denbighshire-
Homelessness 
Prevention Team) link 
officer – Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

28 39 

Of those people at risk 
of homelessness 
supported by the CAD-
HPT (Citizens Advice 
Denbighshire-
Homelessness 
Prevention Team) link 
officer, the % that are 
in employment – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

 

7% 29% 

Tudalen 124



 
17 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The number of dwellings improved with a 
disabled facilities grant - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

106 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

66  

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The number of people who were on the 
Complex Disabilities Specialist Housing Needs 
Register for whom supported housing has 
been secured - Benchmarked Locally 

13 

Excellent 

Better 

16 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of households successfully 
prevented from homelessness (section 66) - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

41.97% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

38.35% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of households successfully 
relieved from homelessness (section 73) - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

21.55% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

15.96% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of households positively 
discharged from homelessness (section 75) - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

44.75% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

50.22% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The total number of care leavers who 
experience homelessness during the year (As 
defined by the Housing (Wales) Act 2014) 
within 12 months of leaving care - 
Benchmarked Locally 

9 

Good 

Better 

3 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of council properties compliant 
with the Welsh Housing Quality Standard - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

100% 

Excellent 

Same 

100% 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of Council House tenants that 
were satisfied with the quality of their home - 
Benchmarked Locally 

84% 

Good 

Better 

No data: does not 
apply 

The percentage of tenants that were satisfied 
with the way Denbighshire Housing deals with 
repairs and maintenance - Benchmarked 
Locally 

77% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

No data: does not 
apply 

Tudalen 125



 
18 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of existing and acquired 
Council housing stock achieving an EPC 
(Energy) rating of C or above - Benchmarked 
Locally 

35.44% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

41.89% 

Acceptable 

Better 

The additional supply of affordable housing, 
including social housing, provided during the 
year - Benchmarked Locally 

271 

Excellent 

Better 

139 

Excellent 

Worse 

The additional supply of Council Houses 
provided - Benchmarked Locally 

13 

Acceptable 

Better 

15 

Acceptable 

Better 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that there is sufficient, 
good quality housing in 
Denbighshire, which meets 
people’s needs - Benchmarked 
Locally  

31% 47% 

 

22% 

 

40% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures  

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Tudalen 126



 
19 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Housing (Wales 
Index of Multiple Deprivation) – Benchmarked 
Nationally 

14% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

16% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

There are seventeen projects listed within this theme in the Corporate Plan. The number of 

these that are running ‘On Target’ has increased to eleven since our last report. One is 

complete, three are ‘Experiencing Obstacles’, one is ‘At Risk’, and one is at business case 

stage. 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Deliver and monitor the Housing and 
Homelessness Strategy Action Plan 

On Target  

Same 

No exception 

Ruthin Extra Care Housing (Phase 2) On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Corwen Extra Care At business 
case stage  

No exception 

Reduce the reliance on unsuitable 
temporary accommodation by establishing 
some in-house emergency housing 
facilities for homeless citizens 

On Target No exception 

Tudalen 127



 
20 

Title Status Exception  

Improving Energy Efficiency in Council 
Houses 

At Risk 

Same 

The average Energy 
Performance Certificate 
(EPC) rating across our 
housing stock continues to 
rise. However, it is 
expected that the new and 
soon to be implemented 
Welsh Housing Quality 
Standard will create an 
extra financial pressure on 
the service as additional 
measures will be required 
to comply with the new 
standard. Inflated costs, 
limited funding for the 
Optimised Retrofit 
Programme, and the lack 
of qualified trades in the 
sector are all issues 
contributing to the ‘At Risk’ 
status of this project. 

Work collaboratively with Flintshire County 
Council providing contact information and 
signposting on our website regarding 
homes’ energy efficiency 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Promote Energy Efficiency page on our 
website through our social media channels 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

Discussions are taking 
place to establish which 
teams are best suited and 
have capacity to deliver 
this activity.  

Signpost to Welsh Government’s NEST 
scheme through the post 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
Assessment (GTAA) 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Denbighshire replacement Local 
Development Plan 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Edward Henry Street On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Additional Council Housing Developments On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 128



 
21 

Title Status Exception  

Explore how we can protect housing 
through new Welsh Government 
legislation to regulate the impact of 
second homes 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Progress the Rhyl Residential Strategy Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The team continue to 
await the publication of 
Welsh Government 
revised Technical Advice 
Note (TAN) 15 to enable 
completion of the Strategic 
Flood Consequences 
Assessment. The TAN15 
is due to be published late 
2023 or early 2024. 

Develop performance and reporting 
systems following the implementation of 
SARTH and current Single Point of 
Access (SPoA) triage service to further 
understand citizens accessing housing 
information and SARTH      

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

There have continued to 
be system issues and full 
reports have been 
unavailable. Individuals 
have not been affected as 
the team have used 
manual processes and 
have been in regular 
contact with registered 
social landlords. Work is 
now progressing with a 
view to complete the 
system upgrade with full 
reporting available by the 
end of December 2023. 

Develop a tenant involvement framework 
for Denbighshire Housing 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

SARTH: Bring in-house Complete As this has been 
operational now for five 
months with the large 
majority of issues 
resolved, the project is 
complete. 

  

Tudalen 129



 
22 

A prosperous Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Work collaboratively with communities and partners to deliver projects and 

initiatives that will stimulate economic growth 

The council is focused on delivering a number of initiatives to stimulate economic growth. 

The first of these to mention is the Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF). The overall programme 

is running ‘On Target.’ This was highlighted in news detailing that 20 Denbighshire projects 

were awarded grants from the county’s allocation of the funding. Nine projects that made 

the shortlist are regional or sub-regional projects and will proceed to the next stage of the 

application process when all North Wales local authorities have finalised their investment 

decisions. Information about the projects approved so far can be found 

at  www.denbighshire.gov.uk/UKSPF-projects. 

The council is also engaged with the UK Government’s Levelling Up Fund (LUF) and has 

two overall programmes overseeing a number of sub-projects across service areas. The 

first programme is LUF Clwyd South, which is designed to improve connectivity and 

maximise the visitor economy resulting from the offer found at unique heritage and cultural 

assets in the areas around the Dee Valley. We report in this theme the progress of the 

programme overall, as well as that of a sub-project to regenerate Corwen High Street. The 

programme overall is ‘Experiencing Obstacles’. A Project Amendment Request has been 

submitted to UK Government, which includes an extension of time, corrections to some 

output targets and a change to the prioritisation of the phasing of the Active Travel Route 

project. An outcome is imminent and once approved would change the delivery status to 

being ‘On Target’. The detail of several sub-projects can be found in other themes relating 

to better connected and culture. Regarding the project to improve Corwen High Street, the 

work on the town centre’s infrastructure has begun and is ‘On Target.’ The second round 

LUF programme has oversight of Clwyd West projects which are intended to protect the 

unique heritage of the areas in and around Ruthin, and the wellbeing of its citizens, as well 

as for its surrounding rural communities. The programme overall is ‘Experiencing 

Obstacles.’ At the request of UK Government, projects have undertaken a full review of 

their delivery and financial profiles. This has identified some projects which would benefit 

Tudalen 130

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=a564d740-2fc7-4129-9c8a-d56a273c8144
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/UKSPF-projects
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=af6b442f-b04c-46d3-9135-9069bfc334d1


 
23 

from an extension of time. The LUF Programme Board is working with UK Government to 

formalise the changes. The detail of a number of sub-projects can be found in our better 

connected, greener, and culture themes. An information event was held at Ruthin Gaol in 

July to provide information to residents about the projects that have been successful in 

obtaining funding through the Clwyd West Levelling Up programme. In addition to the 

existing programmes of work, the council is actively developing funding bids for economic 

initiatives wherever possible. We await an update on a third round of Levelling Up funding. 

Meeting in July, Partnerships Scrutiny considered the work and progress of the North 

Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) during the financial year 2022 to 2023. 

Representatives from the Board presented their Quarter 4 and Annual Report and 

answered members’ questions. It was reported that the NWEAB, formed in 2016, had 

secured £240 million investment into North Wales and had a total investment target of £1 

billion over a 15 year period, creating 4,200 new jobs. Some of the challenges the Board 

had faced over the previous 12 months were explained, including the withdrawal and 

rescoping of three projects and the overall impact of cost inflation. The activity to enable 

and support North Wales Growth Deal projects in partnership with Ambition North Wales is 

therefore deemed to be ‘Experiencing Obstacles’. A portion of funds released has been 

redirected to progress other Growth Deal funded projects, such as the Former North 

Wales Hospital in Denbigh. Some progress has also been seen in other projects, with the 

approval of three outline business cases, including the “Last Few %” project to provide 

minimum superfast broadband to poorly connected communities across North Wales.  

The Former North Wales Hospital project remains ‘At Risk’ until the section 106 legal 

agreement is obtained, and the full funding is achieved. The project team continue to meet 

regularly to progress matters relating to planning and viability funding. 

The Queen’s Buildings Rhyl project continues to be ‘Experiencing Obstacles’. There is a 

delay in the sub-station work being carried out which has pushed back the handover date 

for construction. However, this is not expected to impact on future operation. The 

development will provide a mixed-use hall offering a collection of artisan eateries, retail, 

and events space. 

As part of the Welsh Government’s Transforming Towns Programme, the council is co-

ordinating funding streams and developing town regeneration summaries (formerly 

referred to as Town Centre Place Making Plans). Both of these activities are ‘On Target’. 

Tudalen 131

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=299ff024-c864-4192-8d9b-01fb1723a0bb
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24462&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24462&LLL=0


 
24 

As an indicator of economic activity, the percentage of out-of-work benefits claimants has 

shown marginal improvement up until August 2023 (September data is not yet published), 

though this remains higher than the Wales average, and is a ‘Priority for Improvement’ at 

3.5%.  

Develop an economic strategy 

We previously reported that a significant activity for the future within this theme will be to 

develop the council’s new Economic Strategy. It is encouraging to see that this activity is 

‘On Target’, with a specification being developed for procuring a consultant. The Strategy 

will focus on areas such as growing the green economy, supporting rural businesses, 

regenerating town centres, and enhancing tourism. 

The development of Rhyl’s town centre is an ongoing programme of work for the council, 

and a number of projects are being managed in this area. Plans to redevelop the Victorian 

Post Office are ‘On Target.’ The project to reconnect the top of Rhyl High Street with the 

beach remains ‘At Risk’ due to a funding shortage following the unsuccessful Vale of 

Clwyd Levelling Up Fund bid. We will ensure future proposals are well-developed in 

readiness for Levelling Up Fund 3 and that there is continued communication with the Rhyl 

Member Area Group. Two further projects to progress the Rhyl Public Realm Strategy and 

improve the appearance of poorly maintained Rhyl Town Centre properties are 

‘Experiencing Obstacles’. The obstacles facing the former relate to a shortage of funding, 

and regarding the latter, recruitment issues have resulted in delays. Two projects are in 

the process of being developed and are at project brief or business case stage, as seen in 

the tables below. 

County Council was presented with a Notice of Motion in July, in respect of the potential 

reinstatement of Rhyl Promenade kiosks, which are due to be demolished as part of the 

central Rhyl Flood Defence Scheme. It was agreed that the report would be taken to 

Scrutiny Committee in spring 2025 to consider an updated masterplan for the Rhyl 

Promenade including the option of creating new kiosks. 

The tourism offer in Denbighshire is an important aspect of its economy. The delivery of 

Denbighshire’s Tourism Strategy and Action Plan is ‘On Target’, as is the development of 

the AONB Sustainable Tourism Plan, which has been drafted. STEAM (Scarborough 

Tourism Economic Activity Monitor) data evaluating the economic impact of tourism for 

Denbighshire has been published showing that £628 million was generated in 2022, which 

is considered ‘Excellent’ and is a significant increase from the £432 million in 2021.  

Tudalen 132

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6775&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5d161c72-d174-43a9-833d-3b5cfa9ba5e4


 
25 

Figures shown in July regarding Rhyl’s town centre footfall figures indicated an 

improvement in visitor numbers to the town’s shops. An increase of over 110,000 visits 

were recorded for 2022, compared with figures for 2021. Rhyl’s total figure for 2022 was 

850,663 with the busiest period being between July and September.  

Provide advice and support 

The council supports business growth in Denbighshire in a number of ways. Through its 

Working Denbighshire service, the council runs a project working with employers to 

identify hard to recruit jobs and develop sector routeways to fill the gaps. The project has 

been ‘Experiencing Obstacles’ though it is expected that from October, the team will be in 

a strong position to implement sector routeways, especially as the training co-ordinator 

vacancy has now been filled. The number of paid and unpaid work experience placements 

offered through Working Denbighshire for the quarter is 33, which is an increase from the 

last period, and represents ‘Excellent’ performance.  

In September, the Working Denbighshire employability service offered free support and 

help to high school and sixth form leavers. Services included well-being activities and 

support to improve confidence and skills, as well as career development guidance such as 

CV writing. This is evidence of the council’s commitment to the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act and the Sustainable Development Principle. By supporting 

young people to plan for their futures, the council is taking action to benefit its citizens in 

the long-term, preventing future problems from occurring and benefitting those at a 

socio-economic disadvantage. 

Denbighshire’s business community receives regular advice and support through the 

council’s Economic and Business Development newsletter. The council is also ‘On Target’ 

towards taking action to raise awareness of the provision of Welsh training for adults who 

work in the business community.  

We continue to await national data that will give an indication of the rates of business 

births and deaths in Denbighshire for 2022 to 2023. As soon as those figures are 

published, they will be reported under this theme. 

In September, the Rhyl Business Improvement Districts (BID) Business Plan was 

approved by Cabinet. The BID second-term proposals were thoroughly scrutinised by the 

Partnerships Scrutiny Committee in July. Backing the Rhyl BID, Cabinet confirmed it would 

Tudalen 133

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ce1d33b3-2b13-40b2-a23c-85c5cb6b72a0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9f0ca6b1-764a-47e9-867d-aa17ddbf1778
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6738&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24464&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24464&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=fc4b0336-2cee-4fa5-a618-f462ca6664d0


 
26 

be using a single vote in the ballot to support a second term. The reason for supporting the 

Rhyl BID is that it is hoped it will contribute to the regeneration of the town. 

The council strives to secure local community benefits wherever possible. The activity to 

develop a Community Benefits Framework has been upgraded in status and is now ‘On 

Target’. The percentage of spend with suppliers based within Denbighshire has decreased 

from 33% to 15.9% (a ‘Priority for Improvement’) during this period. The percentage of 

Denbighshire contracts over £25k and under £1m containing community benefits has also 

fallen from 66% to 53.3%, which is now considered ‘Good’. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of skills, training and employment please see 

our learning and growing theme; for community development and benefits, see our theme 

for a better connected Denbighshire. Finally, for further themes connected to the local 

economy, see A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language and A well-

run, high performing council. 

Tudalen 134



 
27 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
working age people 
who are claiming 
Jobseeker’s Allowance 
or Universal Credit - 
Benchmarked 
Nationally 

3.5% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Same 

3.7% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

3.8% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

3.6% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

3.5% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

The number of paid 
and unpaid work 
experience placements 
offered through 
Working Denbighshire 
- Benchmarked 
Locally 

19 

Acceptable 

Better 

38 

Excellent 

Better 

16 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

26 

Good 

Better 

33 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of 
spend with suppliers 
based within 
Denbighshire – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

35% 

Good 

Worse 

35% 

Good  

Same 

35% 

Good  

Same 

33% 

Good 

Worse 

15.9% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The cumulative 
percentage of 
Denbighshire contracts 
over £25k and under 
£1m containing 
community benefits – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

64% 

Excellent 

Worse 

64% 

Excellent 

Same 

66 % 

Excellent 

Better 

66 % 

Excellent 

Same 

53.3% 

Good 

Worse 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

Average gross annual pay for people who live 
in the area and work full time (£) - 
Benchmarked Nationally 

26,780 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

27,121 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

External funding (in pounds) secured for 
economic development – Count Only 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

Tudalen 135



 
28 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of available funding awarded 
by Economic Business Development (EBD) for 
commercial property grants - Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

STEAM - Total Economic Impact of Tourism (£ 
million) - Benchmarked Locally 

£432m 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

£628m 

Excellent 

Better 

The number of businesses taking part in 
training events - Benchmarked Locally 

No data. 
Suspended due to 
the pandemic 

390 

Excellent 

Better 

Births of businesses per 10,000 of the 
population aged 16 to 64 - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

78 

Good 

Better 

National data 
pending 

Deaths of businesses per 10,000 of the 
population aged 16 to 64 - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

89 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

National data 
pending 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that Denbighshire has 
a prosperous economy that 
provides access to the right skills, 
jobs, and income - Benchmarked 
Locally  

32% 

Priority 
to 
Improve 

49% 19% 40% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

Tudalen 136



 
29 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Income (Wales 
Index of Multiple Deprivation) – Benchmarked 
Nationally 

14% 

Priority to Improve 

Same 

 

12% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Overall, good progress has been made with the twenty-three projects and activities 

identified in support of this theme. Twelve are ‘On Target’ and seven projects are 

‘Experiencing Obstacles’. Two projects are in development: one is at business case stage, 

and one is at project brief stage. Two projects are ‘At Risk’. 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Programme: Shared Prosperity Fund On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Programme: Levelling Up Fund – Clwyd 
South 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Overall, the Denbighshire 
Round 1 Clwyd South LUF 
projects are making good 
progress. There have been 
some challenges to 
delivery identified by the 3 
partners (Wrexham County 
Borough Council as lead 
applicant and Canal and 
Rivers Trust) which has 
led to an invitation from UK 
Government to submit a 
Project Amendment 
Request (PAR). This 
includes an extension of 
time, correction to some 
output targets and a 
change to the prioritisation 
of the phasing of the 
Active Travel Route 
project. An outcome is 
imminent and once 

Tudalen 137



 
30 

Title Status Exception  

approved would change 
the delivery status to ‘On 
Target’.   

Corwen High Street Project (Clwyd South 
LUF) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Programme: Levelling Up Fund – Clwyd 
West 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

Overall, round 2 Clwyd 
West LUF projects are 
making good 
progress. Following a 
formal request from UK 
Government, all projects 
have been required to 
undertake a full review of 
their delivery and financial 
profiles. This has identified 
some projects which would 
benefit from an extension 
of time. The LUF 
Programme Board is 
working with the UK 
Government to formalise 
the changes. No other 
issues to delivery are 
identified at this stage.      

Develop funding bids for future rounds of 
Levelling Up and Growth Deal funding 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Enabling and supporting North Wales 
Growth Deal projects in partnership with 
Ambition North Wales 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

 

Issues faced include the 
withdrawal and rescoping 
of three projects and the 
overall impact of cost 
inflation. A portion of funds 
released has been 
redirected to progress the 
Former North Wales 
Hospital project in 
Denbigh. Approval was 
obtained for three outline 
business cases, including 
the “Last Few %” project to 
provide minimum superfast 
broadband to poorly 
connected communities 
across North Wales. 

Former North Wales Hospital At Risk 

Same 

Until the section 106 
agreement is obtained, the 
project remains ‘At Risk’. 

Tudalen 138



 
31 

Title Status Exception  

The Project Delivery 
Group continue to meet 
regularly to progress 
matters relating to 
planning and viability 
funding. 

Queen’s Buildings Rhyl Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

There is a delay in the 
sub-station work being 
carried out which has 
pushed back the handover 
date for construction. 
However, this is not 
expected to impact on 
future operation. 

Coordinating Welsh Government 
Transforming Towns funding programme 
streams 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop Town Regeneration Summaries On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop the council’s new Economic 
Strategy 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Victorian Post Office (Rhyl) On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Progress the Rhyl Public Realm Strategy Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Discussions continue to 
take place with the 
relevant Programme Board 
to agree a way forward in 
view of the unsuccessful 
LUF bid.  

Reconnect the top of Rhyl High Street with 
the beach (Rhyl promenade) 

At Risk 

Worse 

Progress has halted and 
the team is considering 
how to fund pre-
construction works which 
would have been funded 
through the LUF bid. 

Seeking to improve the appearance of 
poorly maintained Rhyl Town Centre 
properties 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

There have been delays to 
this project resulting from 
recruitment issues. New 
temporary posts have 
been approved and await 
funding. Two main sites 
are the focus of 

Tudalen 139



 
32 

Title Status Exception  

improvement works in the 
meantime. 

Rhyl Gateway At project brief 
stage 

No exception 

Co-Relocation of Rhyl Tourist Information 
Centre and Rhyl Museum 

At business 
case stage 

No exception 

Develop the Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty Sustainable Tourism Plan and 
integrate into Local Tourism Plans 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Deliver the Denbighshire Tourism Strategy 
and Action Plan 2022 – 2027 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Work with employers to identify hard to 
recruit jobs and develop sector routeways 
to fill the gaps 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Employment co-ordinators 
have been working with 
employers to ensure that 
we are on target for work 
start placements. New 
sector routeways have not 
been developed due to the 
vacancy for the Training 
Co-ordinator and the late 
confirmation of funding 
from SPF for Years 2 and 
3. The work with 
employers places us in a 
strong position to 
implement sector 
routeways from October 
2023, now that the 
Training Co-ordinator has 
been recruited and started 
work. 

Raise awareness of the provision of Welsh 
training for adults who work in the 
business community 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Complete feasibility report for move-on 
accommodation at St Asaph Business 
Park 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop a Community Benefits Framework 
to align with the Social Partnership and 
Procurement (Wales) Bill 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Tudalen 140



 
33 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme: 

In July of this year, the council announced it was prepared for the increase of visitors into 

the county during the summer holidays, with extra park rangers and increased street 

cleaning provision at key tourism areas and events. In August, the council reminded bank 

holiday visitors to respect the countryside and act responsibly. A series of measures was 

introduced by the council to reduce congestion at popular sites such as Moel Famau and 

Horseshoe Falls.  

  

Tudalen 141

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=66aad87c-492b-479c-a33b-aaaa78b685a4
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f8f0e8ee-d128-4bd2-9e0a-fa3e2461d897
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f8f0e8ee-d128-4bd2-9e0a-fa3e2461d897


 
34 

A healthier and happier, caring Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update  

Ensure that the council’s social care offer is of a high standard 

At its meeting in July, Partnerships Scrutiny received the Draft Director of Social Services 

Annual Report which reviewed the effectiveness of the authority’s social care services for 

both children and adults during the financial year 2022 to 2023. It was noted that the 

demand on social care services had increased, and that performance had not progressed 

as well as the services would have liked due to national challenges and budgetary 

constraints. Recruitment and retention continued to be a challenge within the social care 

sector. 

The council aims to promote a strong culture of safeguarding children, young people and 

adults in the county. In July, Partnerships Scrutiny were presented with Denbighshire’s 

annual performance report for safeguarding adults for the financial year 2022 to 2023. 

Highlighted in the report was the high level of safeguarding enquiries completed within 7 

days. The quarterly figure for the period from July to September 2023 was 99% and is 

considered ‘Excellent’. An area of concern in the report was the increase in referrals made 

under Section 5 of the Wales Safeguarding Procedures (allegations about practitioners 

and those in a position of trust). Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards applications also 

increased (by 11%) from the previous year. Court proceedings had continued to increase 

and were noted to be impacting the capacity of operational teams as well as the legal 

team.  

A project to undertake a review of independent professional advocacy for all service 

provision continues and remains ‘On Target’. The percentage of young people offered the 

active option of advocacy from Education and Children’s Services during the period is a 

measure we are in the process of developing, and data for this reporting period is 

unavailable at present. 

Providing care and support through its corporate parenting role is an important area of 

work for the council. At the end of September, there were 206 children looked after in 

Denbighshire. The percentage of those children experiencing three or more placements 

Tudalen 142

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24332&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24332&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24463&LLL=0


 
35 

during the year remained at a low rate of 1.94% which falls within the ‘Excellent’ threshold. 

Progress continues ‘On Target’ with implementing the requirements of Foster Wales, the 

national network of Local Authority fostering services. 

The council plans to work with partners to develop a joint assessment centre for children in 

the region with complex needs. We also have a number of projects designed for 

supporting those with additional learning or complex needs, and updates on these are 

provided in the table below.  

Recognising the importance of supporting unpaid carers, the council is working with its 

partners to provide enhanced respite opportunities and general advice and support. An 

activity in support of this aim is ‘Experiencing Obstacles’. The total number of carers needs 

assessments for young carers undertaken during the period is data provided by a third 

party and we await up to date information. The total number of carers needs assessments 

for adults undertaken during the period was 203. 

From our Community Equipment Store records, we can report that from July to September 

2023, 31 individuals were issued with specialist equipment that might enable single 

handed care. We have confirmed from cost of care records available that 11 of these 

individuals are now receiving full or partial single handed care, with potential cost savings 

of £1,500 per week. It is possible that care packages for some of these individuals are still 

in transition or under review.  

Support the well-being, mental-health and resilience of individuals within 

communities 

In August, Denbighshire County Council’s Play Ranger service organised a free event as 

part of National Play Day. Rhyl’s Oak Tree centre hosted the event, which was attended 

by over 2,800 people. The Play Rangers are running two projects designed to enhance 

child well-being and access to play. The projects remain ‘At Risk’ due to a shortage of 

funding, though efforts are being made to source alternative funding. The percentage of 

schools in the county embedding the ‘Whole School Approach’ to mental health and well-

being for April to June 2023 was a ‘Priority for Improvement’ at 27%. An update for this 

measure for this reporting period is not yet available and will be reported in the next 

performance update report. 

The council provides well-being support to all citizens in Denbighshire. The number of 

Single Point of Access (SPoA) contacts for information, advice and assistance decreased 

Tudalen 143

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c8cbf435-c300-4469-9073-1d5183d126e3


 
36 

slightly during this period to 4,911. The percentage of citizens receiving information, advice 

and assistance from Talking Points who did not need to be referred into Adult Social Care 

remained at a high rate of 87%. For enquiries relating to children, the number of referrals 

and enquiries recorded on Children and Family Support Gateway during the period is 

being calculated and will be reported in the next performance update report.  

In July, the council hosted a drop in event at Denbigh Town Hall to promote the broad 

range of support services on offer to all its citizens, from mental health support to drug and 

alcohol well-being. Many projects and activities in support of this pledge - such as work 

towards becoming an age-friendly Denbighshire; delivery of intergenerational activities 

through the Story Pals project; and the Nature for Health Programme for example - are all 

‘On Target’. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of housing and homelessness, please see our 

Housing and Prosperous themes respectively.  For information about equality and 

deprivation, and safe environments, see our theme a Fairer, safe and more equal 

Denbighshire. Finally, for further detail around our work to support education and well-

being, see our Learning and Growing theme.    

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
safeguarding enquiries 
from adults completed 
within 7 working days 
from the receipt of the 
reported alleged abuse 
- Benchmarked 
Locally 

98.85% 

Excellent 

Better 

98.84% 

Excellent 

Worse 

98.8% 

Excellent 

 Worse 

100% 

Excellent 

Better 

99% 

Excellent 

Worse 

The percentage of 
young people offered 
the active option of 
advocacy from 
Education and 
Children’s Services - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

Data 
pending 

Data 
pending 

Tudalen 144

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=89f734b6-3eb7-4d56-a527-61ce4bc44538


 
37 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The number of children 
looked after in 
Denbighshire – Count 
Only 

Data 
pending 

Data 
pending 

200 203 206 

The percentage of 
children looked after 
on who have had three 
or more placements 
during the year – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

3% 

Excellent 

Better 

4% 

Excellent 

Worse 

1% 

Excellent 

Better 

2.46% 

Excellent 

Worse 

1.94% 

Excellent 

Better 

The total number of 
carers needs 
assessments for young 
carers undertaken 
during the year – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

Data 
pending 

Data 
pending 

The total number of 
carers needs 
assessments for adults 
undertaken during the 
year (cumulative) - 
Count Only 

197 303 401 92 203 

The number of care 
and support packages 
that have been right 
sized to single handed 
care with the right type 
of specialist equipment 
– Baseline Year 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

48 11 

The number of 
potential entrepreneurs 
provided assistance to 
be business ready for 
citizen care and 
support needs – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2022 to 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
2022 to 
2023 

20 22 25 

Tudalen 145



 
38 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
schools in the county 
using the Public Health 
Wales Whole School 
Approach to Mental 
Health and Well-being 
Tool – Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

27% 

Priority to 
Improve 

 

 

Data 
pending 

The number of 
referrals / enquiries 
recorded on Children 
and Family Support 
Gateway - Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

4,350 Data 
pending 

The number of Single 
Point of Access 
contacts for 
information, advice 
and assistance – 
Count Only 

4,988 4,586 5,134 5,307 4,911 

The number of Talking 
Point contacts for 
information, advice 
and assistance 
(libraries, One Stop 
Shops and hosted by 
Community Navigators 
etc) - Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

231 218 

The percentage of 
citizens receiving 
information, advice 
and assistance from 
Talking Points who did 
not need to be referred 
into Adult Social Care -
Baseline Year 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

87.5% 87% 

The number of sport 
and recreation related 
projects / groups 
supported by the 
Community Resilience 
Team – Baseline Year 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

42 34 

Tudalen 146



 
39 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of new assessments 
completed for children during the year 
that were completed within statutory 
timescales - Benchmarked Nationally 

76.59% 

Priority to Improve 

76.7% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The percentage of child protection 
conferences held within statutory 
timescales - Benchmarked Nationally 

90.63% 

Priority to Improve 

95% 

Good 

Better 

The percentage of adults where 
independent professional advocacy was 
provided after assessment of need – 
Benchmarked Locally 

No data. New to 2022 
to 2023 

72.5% 

Good 

The number of contacts by adult carers 
received by statutory Social Services 
during the year where advice or 
assistance was provided - Count Only 

1,037 1,159 

The cumulative number of new micro-
provider businesses created for citizen 
care and support needs – Benchmarked 
Locally 

No Data. New to 2022 
to 2023 

30 

Excellent 

The number of schools that have 
achieved Trauma Informed School status 
by 2027 -Benchmarked Locally 

No data. New to 2022 
to 2023 

1 

Excellent 

The number of young people who receive 
school-based counselling in Denbighshire 
– Benchmarked Locally 

330 

Acceptable 

338 

Acceptable 

Better 

The average improvement in young 
people’s core score for children and 
young people who received school-based 
counselling in Denbighshire – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

No data. New to 2022 
to 2023 

8.5 

Excellent 

The number of projects supported by the 
Community Development Team, and 
funded, offering a positive impact upon 
loneliness and isolation - Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. New to 2023 
to 2024 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

Tudalen 147



 
40 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The number of County Community 
Groups using in scope facilities 
Denbighshire Leisure Limited - 
Benchmarked Locally 

137 

Excellent 

134 

Excellent 

Worse 

The number of alternative (out of scope) 
facilities/venues used for the delivery of 
services to DCC residents - 
Benchmarked Locally 

107 

Excellent 

96 

Excellent 

Worse 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that they can live 
safely, happily, and independently, 
in Denbighshire and also receive 
good support when needed to 
promote resilience and well-being 
- Benchmarked Locally 

48% 39% 13% 55% 

Acceptable 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output 
Areas (LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 
10% most deprived in Wales in terms of 
Health (Wales Index of Multiple 
Deprivation) - Benchmarked Nationally 

10% 

Priority to Improve 

Same 

17% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Tudalen 148



 
41 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Of the twenty-one projects and activities listed under this theme, fifteen are ‘On Target’, 

three are ‘Experiencing Obstacles’, two are ‘At Risk’, and one is at project brief stage. 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Embed the All Wales Safeguarding 
Procedures into all aspects of 
Children’s and Adults Services  

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Work with partners to deliver the 
annual joint strategic plan for the North 
Wales Safeguarding Board 

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Undertake a review of independent 
professional advocacy for all service 
provision.   

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Monitor and implement requirements 
of Foster Wales and monitor 
effectiveness of national approach. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement Post 16 of Additional 
Learning Needs work 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Work has started with 
this activity. Regional 
and national discussions 
are ongoing to progress 
the implementation of the 
Act regarding Additional 
Learning Needs and 
young people who are 
post-16.  

Develop an in-county residential short 
breaks and emergency care provision 
for children with complex needs and 
disabilities within Denbighshire  

Update pending No exception 

County Residential Break Review At project brief stage No exception 

Tudalen 149



 
42 

Title Status Exception  

Implement and embed the Autism 
Code of Practice requirements at local 
authority level across Children’s 
Services. 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The Autism Code of 
Practice is still in 
progress. The lead 
manager is working 
closely with partners to 
support the action plan. 
There is a North Wales 
Regional Working Group, 
of which the 
Denbighshire team is a 
member. 

Bwthyn y Ddol Phase 2 (Activity) 
Develop and implement, including 
staffing, a new Children’s Assessment 
Centre jointly with Conwy County 
Borough Council and Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board 

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Ysgol Tir Morfa - Hydrotherapy pool On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Enhance the intervention work at Plas 
Brondyffryn and Tir Morfa in terms of 
play opportunities from Play Rangers. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Work with local unpaid carers to 
identify the respite opportunities they 
need, and how barriers are overcome 
to enable this. 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The Carers Think Tank 
meetings have taken 
place every 6 weeks and 
have enabled a wide 
range of professionals to 
consider solutions. There 
have been examples of 
volunteers successfully 
supporting carers and 
Micro Providers providing 
respite breaks to carers. 

Work in partnership regionally to 
embed the All Wales Dementia 
Pathway of Standards.   

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Embed the work of the Independent 
Living Team to support individuals 
through direct payments or Pre-Paid 
Cards, to increase efficiency  

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Tudalen 150



 
43 

Title Status Exception  

Work to enhance and extend the 
Access to Play project throughout the 
county. 

At Risk 

Same 

A significant funding 
shortage continues to put 
this project at risk. 
Further external grants 
are being explored as 
demand for the service 
continues to grow. 

Expand the Play Rangers offer Let’s 
Play Out Programme throughout the 
county 

At Risk 

Same 

A significant funding 
shortage continues to put 
this project at risk. 
Further external grants 
are being explored as 
demand for the service 
continues to grow. 

Work to reduce the Youth Services 
waiting list for support in Denbighshire. 

On target 

Same 

No exception 

Work towards becoming an age-
friendly Denbighshire, with World 
Health Organisation, in partnership 
with Ageing Well in Denbighshire 
multi-agency group.  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Enhance the Story Pals Project and 
Arts programme to deliver 
intergenerational activities (delivered 
through the Denbighshire Arts 
Strategy). 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Deliver a programme of activities and 
events to encourage children and 
adults to re-engage with their local 
library, to support engagement and 
wellbeing and to combat social 
isolation and loneliness. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Enhance the Nature for Health 
Programme within Denbighshire which 
offers multiple benefit – reducing 
isolation, improve health, rural skills, 
health and nature walks, arts and 
crafts)   

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme: 

Tudalen 151



 
44 

The national NHS, Social Care and Frontline Workers’ Day took place on July 5, and the 

council marked the occasion by raising a flag at County Hall in Ruthin in honour of the staff 

involved. 

This summer, Denbigh’s Dolwen Care Home residents created a memorial garden to 

honour the memory of residents lost during the Covid-19 pandemic.  

During the summer holidays, Denbighshire County Council’s libraries launched the free 

equipment loan programme with a range of sports equipment provided by Denbighshire 

Leisure Limited.  

At its September meeting, the Partnerships Scrutiny Committee received a verbal report to 

update members on the progress of the North Denbighshire Community Hospital Project. 

A representative from Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board informed the Committee 

that the Royal Alexander Hospital redevelopment was a priority project which had an 

approved business case that was unchanged since its development. Approval for 20% 

funding via the Welsh Government’s Integration and Rebalancing Capital Fund (IRCF) was 

to be sought from the Regional Partnership Board before being submitted to Welsh 

Government as part of their Capital Plans in October 2023. There was no timescale 

available for receiving a response from Welsh Government. 

The North Wales Regional Partnership Board Annual Report for 2022 to 2023 was also 

presented at September’s Partnerships Scrutiny meeting, and in September, Cabinet 

approved the North Wales Regional Partnership Board 10 Year Strategic Capital Plan and 

agreed Denbighshire’s capital priorities for improved integrated health and social care to 

meet future needs.  

Meeting in September, Communities Scrutiny received an update from the Adult Social 

Care and Homelessness Service on their engagement with Care Forum Wales (CFW) and 

Care Providers in Denbighshire. The report provided an account of efforts that had made 

to promote a positive dialogue and encourage the reengagement of CFW with the regional 

fee setting process. The Service is planning a programme of visits to care homes to 

proactively engage them in the care fee setting process for 2024 to 2025.  

In September, an event was held at Ruthin Market Hall to encourage the public to come 

and talk to Denbighshire County Council’s Community Resource Team. The team includes 

health, social care and third sector staff. 

Tudalen 152

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9388b375-a3cf-4bb8-bddc-0fd27acd5b6d
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7bd47b1e-b76c-4c46-8646-e548a4b526b6
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7bd47b1e-b76c-4c46-8646-e548a4b526b6
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4d5e42f3-3196-4d90-aa39-db207eca37fc
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4d5e42f3-3196-4d90-aa39-db207eca37fc
https://denbighshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/806000/start_time/371000
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=268&MId=6728&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6738&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=271&MId=6677&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ccdf734c-f1ce-4f81-9cfc-e326c1995e0f


 
45 

In September, the Council, in partnership with DVSC and Denbighshire Age Friendly 

Communities, hosted a free performance of ‘Over the Garden Fence’ at Denbigh’s Twm o’r 

Nant Theatre. The event was designed to raise dementia awareness and promote 

understanding.   

Tudalen 153

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=96271242-25fb-4405-acb7-70fc89e95ab4


 
46 

A learning and growing Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Promote the learning and development of our children and young people 

Our Corporate Plan places a clear focus on support for early years development with a 

number of key measures in this area of work. The number of children taking part in the 

Childcare Offer in Denbighshire has continued to increase to 624. A new childcare facility 

was opened at Ysgol Penmorfa, Prestatyn, in September. The extension has been funded 

by the Welsh Government Flying Start Capital Grant and has increased capacity of 

provision in the area, allowing more local families to benefit from high quality childcare. 

Family Link workers continue their work to support families throughout the county, 

delivering language and play sessions and providing guidance to parents. The number of 

parents reporting a positive difference after working with the team has unfortunately fallen 

from 96% to 86% this quarter, but this is due to activities only taking place during term-

time and not during the six-week summer holidays. 

The number of Schools in Estyn review, Significant Improvement or Special Measures 

remains unchanged from the previous period (two schools). Following an Estyn monitoring 

visit in June, Denbigh High School  has now been confirmed as having been removed 

from Special Measures, having made sufficient progress against the recommendations. 

Highlights of the report include the school having successfully refreshed its approach to 

rewarding and celebrating positive behaviour; teachers forming positive working 

relationships with their class; and a strengthened strategy to improve literacy skills. In 

September, Performance Scrutiny considered a report on progress made by Christ the 

Word School since being placed in Special Measures, following an Estyn inspection in 

May 2022. The committee resolved to be kept updated on progress. 

At its meeting in July and September, Performance Scrutiny also received a number of 

reports from the Head of Education Services  concerning key pieces of work that seek to 

remove barriers to learning. 

Tudalen 154

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e25c4407-6757-4030-9e54-ee81808573c0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=1fdbbbd3-f21e-4d93-99c9-66b297161b17
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/provider/6634026
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6751&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6750&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6751&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
47 

 The Curriculum for Wales – an update was provided on the progress made by 

schools on implementing the new curriculum since it became statutory in 

September 2022.  

 Additional Learning Needs – a report providing information regarding the actions 

taken to ensure that schools were ready to meet statutory requirements under the 

Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act.  

 Whole School Approach to Emotional and Mental Well-Being – An overview into 

the way in which schools are implementing the Welsh Government statutory 

framework. 

Having considered and accepted these reports, members requested that updates be 

provided in the latter half of 2024. 

As previously reported, there is one project within our Learning and Growing theme 

currently ‘At Risk’. The Modernising Education Programme is experiencing delays for 

several reasons, but particularly due to issues with site feasibility (as described in more 

detail in the table below). A site for a new build of Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn was approved by 

Cabinet members in their September meeting, with members agreeing to support the 

project’s progression through the planning process. 

In August, the council congratulated pupils across Denbighshire on their GCSE and A 

Level results. 

Support schools to transition to being Community-Focussed Schools, 

providing a range of services and activities to help meet the needs of pupils, 

their families, and the wider community 

A survey was undertaken during the summer to ascertain the number of schools within the 

estate that can provide community focussed spaces for events. Of the 25 schools that 

responded, 15 stated they were able to host activities. Further work will be done with those 

schools that did not respond to ensure a fuller picture emerges in relation to community 

focussed activities.  

In the meantime, the Prestatyn High Pilot for Community Focussed Schools is ‘On Target’ 

and meetings to continue this progress are taking place each term. A growing number of 

projects have taken place during the pilot, including environmental projects to develop 

Tudalen 155

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6738&LLL=0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=04687515-af0f-4fdd-bd17-c85880fb7619
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5320fe4b-d63d-4ec7-8720-1588370d1b85
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5320fe4b-d63d-4ec7-8720-1588370d1b85


 
48 

green and eco spaces, adult mental health support groups, and summer holiday provision 

to provide free activities for over 12s in Prestatyn.  

Several schools in Denbighshire are also part of a Wales-based research project, which 

includes developing an international partnership with the Centre for Community Schools in 

Florida. Funding has been secured to deliver future projects to support community 

engagement on school sites and work will continue throughout the school year. 

Work with partners (including colleges and universities) to ensure that people 

of all ages, including those who are vulnerable or in our care, are resilient 

and prepared for employment, further education, or training 

We are starting to receive encouraging data now as our new Llwybrau project gathers 

pace. Volunteering / work experience opportunities offered in this last reporting period 

increased to 13, which is excellent for this point in the academic year. Positive feedback 

has been received from learners and work is ongoing to secure future funding for the 

provision. However, only three opportunities have been offered by the council through its 

corporate website; and no employment opportunities were secured or jobs protected 

through our Community Benefits Policy during this period on the basis of there being no 

valid contracts. The percentage of businesses that have committed to work with Careers 

Wales to the benefit of our local schools and colleges also remains at none on the basis of 

there being no applicable contracts i.e. none over £1m. 

The number of people with learning disabilities that have achieved a positive outcome as a 

result of support provided through the council’s Work Opportunities services has fallen 

slightly from 43 to 40 during July to September. One person has also been supported into 

paid sustainable employment in this period as a result of the council’s Work Opportunities 

Job Finding Service. 

90% of people that are being supported through Working Denbighshire have travelled a 

positive distance on their journey towards or into employment during July to September, 

up from 82% in the last period. The team has been hosting a series of free weekly drop-

in sessions across the county, to offer employment support and guidance. Support 

included CV skills, interview preparation, basic IT skills and support to fill in 

applications. A free job fair showcasing a wide variety of job opportunities was also held 

in September at 1891 Bar and Restaurant, following the success of three prior events 

Tudalen 156

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e4aeaee0-2714-4ef0-ac38-b64e0de02a4f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e4aeaee0-2714-4ef0-ac38-b64e0de02a4f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=36c87f6d-831a-4080-b745-6d2714ab47da


 
49 

earlier in the year. Over 40 employers exhibited at the venue, including North Wales 

Police, Clwyd Alyn, Wynne Construction and the Armed Forces. 

The cumulative percentage of young people reached by youth service interventions has 

increased to 4.4% during this period, down slightly on 5.1% for the same period the 

previous year. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of well-being please see our Healthier, 

Happier and Caring theme; for equity in education, including free school meal support, see 

our theme for a fairer, safe and more equal Denbighshire. Finally, for further detail around 

our work to support volunteering and employment, see better connected and prosperous 

themes respectively. 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title 
Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The number of children 
taking part in the 
childcare offer – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

477 

Acceptable 

Worse 

521 

Acceptable 

Better 

570 

Acceptable 

Better 

570 

Acceptable 

Same 

624 

Good  

Better 

The percentage of 
parents supported 
through the work of the 
Family Link Service 
that report a positive 
difference – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

95% 

Excellent 

96% 

Excellent 

Better 

86% 

Excellent 

Worse 

The number of schools 
in either Estyn Review, 
Significant 
Improvement or 
Special Measures – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

2 

Good 

Same 

3 

Acceptable 

Worse 

3 

Acceptable 

Same 

2 

Good  

Better 

2 

Good 

Same 

Tudalen 157



 
50 

Title 
Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
pupils (using Pupil 
Attitudes to Self and 
School - PASS) who 
respond positively 
against pupils’ feelings 
about school – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
No Survey 

81.8% 
Good 
Worse 

No data. 
No Survey 

82% 

Good 

Better 

No data. 
No Survey 

The number of 
voluntary / work 
experience placements 
offered through 
Llwybrau – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

1 

Priority to 
Improve 

 

13 

Excellent 

Better 

 

The number of 
volunteering 
opportunities offered 
by the council through 
its corporate website – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

8 9 3 

The percentage of 
young people in 
Denbighshire reached 
by Youth Services 
(Cumulative) – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

5.12% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

6.39% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

20.93% 

Acceptable 

Better 

2.82% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

 

4.36% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

The number of people 
with learning 
disabilities that have 
achieved a positive 
outcome as a result of 
support provided 
through the council’s 
Work Opportunities 
services (Y Bont, 
Popty, Meifod, Garden 
Control, and Golden 
Group) – Count Only 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

34 43 40 

Tudalen 158



 
51 

Title 
Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The number of people 
with learning 
disabilities in paid 
sustainable 
employment as a 
result of the council’s 
Work Opportunities 
Job Finding Service – 
Count Only  

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

3 2 1 

The percentage of 
businesses contracted 
over £1m that have 
committed to work with 
Careers Wales to the 
benefit of our local 
schools and colleges 
(through our 
Community Benefits 
Policy) – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

100% 

Excellent 

Does not 
apply: no 
contracts 
over £1m  

Does not 
apply: no 
contracts 
over £1m 

The number of 
employment 
opportunities secured / 
jobs protected through 
our Community 
Benefits Policy on 
projects over £1m – 
Count Only 

No data. 
New 2023 
to 2024 

No data. 
New 2023 
to 2024 

No data. 
New 2023 
to 2024 

Does not 
apply: no 
contracts 
over £1m  

Does not 
apply: no 
contracts 
over £1m 

The percentage of 
people that, through 
Working Denbighshire, 
have travelled a 
positive distance on 
their journey towards 
or into employment – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

81% 

Good 

Worse 

82% 

Good 

Better 

82% 

Good 

Same 

82%  

Good 

Same 

90% 

Excellent 

Better 

Tudalen 159



 
52 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of children entering nursery 
that have been provided with a ‘Me in a 
Nutshell’ profile by Family Link Workers, 
supporting their effective transition – 
Benchmarked Locally 

81% 

Excellent 

 

82% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of parents that have reported 
a positive impact through attending Bookstart / 
Rhyme-time – Benchmarked Locally 

No data. New to 
2022 to 2023 

99% 

Excellent 

The percentage of parents that travel a positive 
distance by attending structured learning 
events through Families First and Flying Start 
– Benchmarked Locally 

53% 

Acceptable 

58% 

Good 

Better 

Attainment measure(s) to be determined No data No data 

The percentage of pupil attendance in primary 
schools – Benchmarked Locally 

No data. Covid-19 90.8% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse (than 2019) 

The percentage of pupil attendance in 
secondary schools – Benchmarked Locally 

No data. Covid-19 86% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse (than 2019) 

The percentage of pupils engaged through 
Llwybrau that achieve a positive outcome, 
including level 1 or 2 qualifications – 
Benchmarked Locally 

No data. New to 
2022 to 2023 

88% 

Acceptable 

The number of schools providing education 
through suitability and condition categories C 
and D – Benchmarked Locally 

27 

Excellent 

Same 

27 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of schools able to host 
community focussed activities – 
Benchmarked Locally 

No data. New to 
2022 to 2023 

Data pending 

The percentage of Year 11 Leavers from 
schools know Not to be in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET), at the 
preceding 31 August in Denbighshire – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

1.7% 

Priority to Improve 

Same 

2.3% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Tudalen 160



 
53 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of Year 11 pupils that do not 
have an identified Post-16 pathway in place – 
Benchmarked Locally 

4.14% 

Priority to Improve 

10.50% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of children or young people 
who are looked after that have a Personal 
Education Plan in place – Benchmarked 
Locally 

100% 

Excellent 

96% 

Good 

Worse 

The percentage of initial Care Leaver Pathway 
Plans completed during the year that were 
within the statutory timescales, where the 
young person has care leaver status – 
Benchmarked Locally 

20% 

Priority to Improve 

71% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The total number of care leavers in categories 
2, 3 and 4 who have completed at least 3 
consecutive months of employment, education 
or training in the 13 -24 months since leaving 
care – Count Only 

5 7 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that good quality 
learning and training is available in 
Denbighshire, allowing people of 
all ages to reach their personal 
and professional potential – 
Benchmarked Locally 

48% 30% 22% 62% 

Acceptable 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

Tudalen 161



 
54 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Education 
(Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation) – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

9%  

Priority to Improve 

Better 

9% 

Acceptable 

Same 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Employment 
(Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation) – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

12% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

12% 

Priority to Improve 

Same 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

There are sixteen projects and activities within this theme, eight of which are ‘On Target’, 

and five are ‘Experiencing Obstacles’. As reported previously, the Modernising Education 

Programme remains ‘At Risk’. The new Working Denbighshire Strategic Programme (a UK 

Shared Prosperity Fund project) is currently at the project brief stage. 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Implementation of the Childcare Offer for 
Wales Digital Platform 

Complete 

 

No exception 

Flying Start Expansion On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Recommissioning of Families First On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Support the regional project on Emotional 
Health, Well-being and Resilience 
Framework, which will provide resources 
for parents 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Capacity issue – to be 
discussed with new 
principal education 
manager. 

Review Early Years provision in the 
context of WG Early Years Transformation 
funding and the Early Childhood Education 
and Care (ECEC) agenda 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

There continues to be no 
progress due to current 
demand and a shortage of 
staff capacity. 

Tudalen 162



 
55 

Title Status Exception  

Embed new posts in the Flying Start 
Childcare and Early Language 
Development Teams from January 2023 to 
support the Flying Start Childcare 
Expansion 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

In partnership with GwE, Support schools 
and non-maintained settings to deliver the 
new curriculum for Wales to ensure our 
learners become capable, ambitious, 
enterprising, ethical, healthy and confident 
adults. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement requirements of the of ALN 
Reform Act within Education and 
Children's Services to ensure compliance 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement School Improvement Guidance: 
Framework for evaluation, improvement 
and accountability 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Support schools in developing digital 
competency through educational 
leadership of the EdTech project 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 163



 
56 

Modernising Education Programme At Risk 

Same 

A number of delays have 
affected the progression of 
Band B projects. Extensive 
feasibility work has 
continued on sites for 
Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn 
(which has also delayed 
the Denbigh High School 
project) and for Ysgol 
Pendref. Discussions on 
preferred sites have now 
progressed to allow these 
projects to move forward. 
The Ysgol Bryn Collen and 
Ysgol Gwernant scheme 
was shortlisted but 
ultimately unsuccessful in 
its application to Welsh 
Government as part of the 
Sustainable Schools 
Challenge. A revised 
design brief based on a 
reduced capacity has been 
prepared and will be 
developed during the 
autumn. 

The internal section of the 
Oaktree Centre is now 
complete with the external 
work due for completion by 
the end of September.  

The approval for a 
virement to enable the 
Twm o'r Nant project to 
progress has been 
received, and a contractor 
has been appointed, with 
work starting in the 
autumn. 

The project at Ysgol Dewi 
Sant remains stalled over 
drainage issues. The 
timescale for completing 
the drainage work is 
around 30 months, 
meaning the project is 
unable to be progressed 
within the next funding 
round. 

Business cases are being 
prepared for three new 

Tudalen 164



 
57 

Title Status Exception  

childcare projects (Ysgol y 
Llys, Clawdd Offa, Ruthin) 
and five Welsh Medium 
Capital projects. 

Community Focussed Schools: Prestatyn 
High Pilot 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Engage with the North Wales Ambition 
Board and the Regional Skills Partnership 
to ensure that skills and training secured 
through our Community Benefits Policy is 
fit for the future and / or transferrable 

Experiencing 
obstacles 

Same 

This is subject to some 
delays as statutory 
guidance and social 
clauses are not yet in 
place. We are working with 
Welsh Government to 
develop the statutory 
guidance that will inform 
the Statutory Instrument 
that will support the new 
Act. The new Procurement 
Strategy has though been 
approved and plans are in 
place for procurement to 
feature in the 2024 March 
for Business campaign. 

Through our Community Benefits Policy, 
secure business led strategy workshops 
for the benefit of residents seeking to 
upskill 

Experiencing 
obstacles 

Same 

This is also impacted by 
statutory guidance and 
social clauses not yet 
being place. Balfour Beatty 
though has committed to 
deliver workshops. A full 
update can be found in our 
governance section on 
procurement. 

Tudalen 165



 
58 

Title Status Exception  

Develop performance and monitoring 
systems for the Temporary Emergency 
Accommodation support contract as it 
develops, which will include various life, 
recreational and employability skills and 
benefits 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Statistics are reviewed 
though some key 
performance indicators are 
not possible to measure.  
We are working closely 
with the project to ensure 
we can monitor the 
performance through 
steering groups and 
operational groups.  
The Homelessness 
Prevention Team 
performance dashboard 
continues to monitor 
statistics across the 
service to ensure we can 
understand where projects 
are having an impact and 
where more focus is 
needed in line with Rapid 
Rehousing. 

New: Working Denbighshire Strategic 
Programme (UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
Delivery) 

At project brief 
stage 

This has been affected by 
the delay in SPF funds 
being cleared. This has 
meant that for the first 2 
quarters of the year staff 
were not in place and 
budgets were not 
available, so delivery was 
compromised. In the next 
reporting period, we will be 
able to give an 
assessment as to whether 
it is still possible to deliver 
this project given that the 
full funding will only have 
been available for roughly 
half the time it was 
originally planned for. 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme: 

In September, Denbighshire County Council reassured school staff, parents and governors 

that it had taken steps to ascertain the structural integrity of its buildings in the face of 

Tudalen 166



 
59 

nationwide concern about the use of Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC) in 

public buildings. Surveys had previously been completed in 2021 in response to the 

issue being raised by the Local Government Association. After reviewing these, the only 

school site identified as having RAAC planks was Ysgol Trefnant. However, surveyors 

have reported that they do appear to be in a stable and acceptable condition. The school 

was closed for one day in September whilst further investigations were carried out. 

Denbighshire County Council will be undertaking a review of the information it currently 

holds to determine whether further surveys are required and to better inform any 

processes put in place by Welsh Government. Please also refer to our governance 

section about assets. 

A campaign was launched in July to encourage more people to apply for the role of school 

governor. Schools across the county are looking for volunteers to become part of the 

governor team with successful applicants having the opportunity to use their skills and 

experience to make a positive difference to the lives of young people. Free online 

induction and training will be provided. Further information and guidance on how to 

apply to become a school governor can be found on the council’s website. 

Over the Summer, Denbighshire County Council’s Working Denbighshire Team created a 

new short film celebrating the people they support and the work of the organisation. 

Professional filming and editing equipment was provided during the shoot by arts and 

media charity, TAPE. The project gave aspiring filmmakers a chance to share their ideas 

and be involved in an exciting opportunity to experience working in the creative industries, 

that may lead to other opportunities in the future. The film will later be used in Working 

Denbighshire’s promotional materials going forward.  

Tudalen 167

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=b882a8b5-3803-450a-bf5b-bf65ac76fc16
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=b882a8b5-3803-450a-bf5b-bf65ac76fc16
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=45bed3db-47c4-425c-80a5-116656c97f8c
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7019530c-930b-48c4-9039-ce05c8f9d1b3
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=7019530c-930b-48c4-9039-ce05c8f9d1b3
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/education-and-schools/school-governors/being-a-governor.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=634b6503-4259-497f-8fcd-1493694b3733


 
60 

A better connected Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Maintain a quality road network 

Our annual road condition data for 2022 to 2023 for classified A, B and C roads was 

reported in our April to July report.  We have now completed our annual Surface Dressing 

programme on a number of high priority roads where this represents the most cost-

effective method of prolonging the life-span of the road.  Our further annual Resurfacing 

Programme on a number of roads across the county where the life has expired is ongoing 

and we are on target to deliver the remaining 2023 to 2024 programme. 

Throughout September we carried out cyclic maintenance work on a number of our roads 

which included grass cutting, litter picking, drainage cleansing and streetlight works.  

Advanced notice signage was installed and a letter drop to surrounding properties took 

place to inform residents of the works. 

The average for the percentage of damaged roads and pavements made safe within target 

time (CAT1 - Category 1 defects dealt within timescale) between July and September was 

23.33% and remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’ and an area of concern.  The service is 

working hard to improve performance in this respect. 

Discussions with Welsh Government to secure funding to deliver the most viable option to 

replace Llannerch Bridge are ongoing. They are already supporting us in funding the 

detailed design part of the process, which has now started, however, funding for the 

construction phase still needs to be sought. 

With the Welsh Government’s default 20mph speed limit coming into force from 

September 17, we consulted with the wider public with the proposal to retain five roads in 

the county as 30mph. 

 

 

Tudalen 168

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5fbc8ee2-c457-49e8-b20d-4430b9f639fd
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9191d072-b8b5-4f97-bf91-c0fc17359a12
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9191d072-b8b5-4f97-bf91-c0fc17359a12


 
61 

Working through the regional body, and within the context of the Wales 

Transport Strategy, we will enable people to access education, employment, 

services and activities 

The project to Develop a Sustainable Transport Plan (STP) has now developed annual 

and quarterly measures for inclusion in this theme, the Team is currently gathering 

baseline data for these measures which will be included once available. 

In July 2023, in partnership with Transport for Wales we extended the current Fflecsi 

scheme (demand responsive public transport) across Denbigh by introducing a second 

electric vehicle, a wheelchair accessible Nissan Dynamo E-NV200 EV micro bus.  This will 

provide people with a greater range of pick-ups and destinations along the new Denbigh 

77 route and extends the scope of public transport for the Denbighshire communities of 

Nantglyn, Prion, Peniel, Saron, Tremeirchion and Rhuallt. 

We wanted people to enjoy the great attractions Llangollen and the surrounding area has 

to offer and during the summer we worked collaboratively with police officers to manage 

and promote safe and responsible parking.  We also encouraged visitors to save parking 

spaces every Saturday by using the Dee Valley Picturesque Bus (which will run up until 

November 4, 2023) that provides a circular route, linking Llangollen and the surrounding 

villages to Horseshoe Falls and popular local attractions including Pontcysyllte 

Aqueduct, Wenffrwd Nature Reserve, Valle Crucis Abbey, Plas Newydd Historic House 

and the Horseshoe Pass. 

We are currently working with Sustrans Cymru to understand how to make travelling 

actively in the local area more accessible, safer, and more enjoyable for the whole 

community, encouraging more journeys to be taken on foot or cycle instead of by car.  On 

September 26, a survey was launched on future improvements for local walking, wheeling, 

and cycling around Ysgol y Castell in Rhuddlan. 

A further three Clwyd West Levelling Up Fund (LUF) Projects will support this pledge, for 

which Project Teams are currently being established. All with an expected delivery date of 

March 2025. The St Peter’s Square project will deliver a scheme of public realm 

improvements to enhance pedestrian and traffic flows around the square and to facilitate a 

more flexible central events space. The Ruthin Cae Dol project will improve connectivity 

through the park and between the park and the town centre. The project to improve Moel 

Tudalen 169

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e695b12f-7d22-464f-b589-4f9ae2a59098
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e695b12f-7d22-464f-b589-4f9ae2a59098
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=131c8653-72b3-47a0-ba4c-d0efa95c868c
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6680fa85-7e8c-4656-9936-2b760b8fac6c
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6680fa85-7e8c-4656-9936-2b760b8fac6c
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9c9b4a4d-2b8c-41c4-bf84-7a520e2a7ed4


 
62 

Famau Facilities and Cycle Paths will see new and improved toilet and refreshment 

facilities, with extended and sustainably managed cycle routes. 

Support our county’s green infrastructure 

As a result of funding from the UK Government’s Levelling Up Fund (LUF), enhancements 

to Green Lane car park in Corwen will be of benefit to residents and visitors with the 

installation of five electric vehicle (EV) charging points at the site due to come online.  

Further enhancements at the site are scheduled to commence in September with the 

refurbishment of the toilet block, signage works and a new bus layby and associated 

markings. This increased our total number of charging points across the county to 80.  

We also took the opportunity to highlight this increased network of chargers ahead of the 

August Bank Holiday to local and out of county EV owners as to their availability across 

the county to help support visits to tourist attractions, events and businesses.  

In August, following a comprehensive public consultation process to ensure that the final 

plans for Llangollen’s 4 Great Highways project, (also funded by LUF) reflected local 

thinking, we were pleased to have initiated the tendering process to find a contractor to 

complete the works with a view to appointing one in early to mid-September. The aim of 

the project is to enhance the landscape and improve accessibility, interpretation and 

signage in Llangollen.  It’s important to us to ensure that the signage in the area reflects 

how local people want the town to be portrayed and feedback on people’s preferred 

design options for the new interpretation and wayfinding that is due to be installed is 

currently being sought with a closing date of October 8. 

Support communities with improved digital networks and skills 

With internet access becoming a vital part of everyday life, with many essential services 

and schemes now moving online, we urged anyone who may need some help in this area 

to contact or visit their local library for more information.  We have been working with the 

Good Things Foundation, to help distribute free SIM cards and mobile data to local people 

living in data poverty through the National Databank Scheme in our Denbighshire’s 

Libraries. 

Telecare services are being digitised in readiness of analogue services ceasing in 2025. 

This theme includes an activity that reports progress towards achieving digitisation, and 

Tudalen 170

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c09bb035-46b5-47cf-bfe7-7778bb88cc31
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6d3b3cab-413d-4b49-9b4e-6e482f60cd10
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2f78c44c-2af2-4154-ba25-7828ace1110d
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2f78c44c-2af2-4154-ba25-7828ace1110d
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2dbe29d0-b775-4a01-b369-5385087bf2ad
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=46f62271-5304-4efe-8fe1-9c03cf9a3a8f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e482fec5-ecb4-40de-9f1e-dd31da808b6d


 
63 

we had previously intended on including a measure of the new digital service. However, a 

measure is no longer deemed necessary and has been removed.  

For further measures and activity in support of skills, training and employment, please see 

our learning and growing theme. 

Promote personal and community well-being 

This theme also includes measures in relation to personal and community well-being. Our 

Community Resilience Team has seen the number of projects or groups supported 

steadily grow.  In this period 73 groups and projects were supported which included 36 

new enquiries and 37 receiving ongoing support from the previous reporting period. 

The Gwyddelwern Community Hub LUF project has been included in this report this 

period. The project, with an expected completion date of March 2025, will provide a new 

energy-efficient community hub to increase the range of facilities available in the village. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

Within this theme there are several nationally benchmarked measures that give an 

indication of performance compared to other local authorities in Wales. For further 

measures and activity in support of well-being please see our Healthier, Happier and 

Caring theme; for community focussed school activity and developing digital competency 

please see our Learning and Growing theme.   

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

Year to date average 
for the percentage of 
damaged roads and 
pavements made safe 
within target time 
(CAT1 - Category 1 
defects dealt within 
timescale) 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

18% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Same 

16% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

16% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Same 

29% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

23.33%  

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The number of projects 
or groups supported by 

55 53 61 78 73 

Tudalen 171



 
64 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

the Community 
Resilience Team - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

Good 

Better 

Good 

Worse 

Excellent 

Better 

Excellent 

Better 

Excellent 

Worse 

The number of tenants 
involved in community 
projects – Count Only 

6 6 6 6 6 

Number of journeys 
using Fflecsi bus 
services 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

Data 
pending 

Number of journeys on 
service buses 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

Data 
pending 

Number of 
concessionary 
journeys on service 
buses 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

Data 
pending 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

Number of cycle journeys per annum on 
designated Active Travel routes (Sample) 

No data. New to 
2022 to 2023 

Baseline data 
being established 

Number of pedestrian journeys per annum on 
designated Active Travel routes (Sample) 

No data. New to 
2022 to 2023 

Baseline data 
being established 

The percentage of principle A roads that are in 
overall poor condition – Benchmarked 
Nationally 

2.6% 

Excellent 

Better 

2.2% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of non-principal/classified B 
roads that are in overall poor condition – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

3.8% 

Excellent 

Better 

3.5% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of non-principal/classified C 
roads that are in overall poor condition – 
Benchmarked Nationally 

7.5% 

Excellent  

Better 

16.4% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

Tudalen 172



 
65 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of premises that receive less 
than 30Mbps -  Count Only 

No data 4.57% 

The percentage of premises that receive less 
than 10Mbps - Count Only 

No data 2.88% 

The percentage of library users who say that 
using the library has had a positive impact on 
their digital skills and confidence - Count Only 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

65%  

Good 

The percentage of people who borrowed a 
digital device from a library who said it had 
made a positive impact on their digital skills 
and confidence - Count Only 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

The number of community projects co-
produced with the community and third sector - 
Count Only 

7 7 

The number of volunteer hours supporting 
community resilience and development activity 
- Count Only 

No data 700 (estimate) 

The number of contacts provided through the 
council's Edge of Care volunteer service - 
Count Only 

No data.  New to 
2022 to 2023 

795 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that Denbighshire has 
the transport and road 
infrastructure to support thriving, 
cohesive, and well connected 
communities - Benchmarked 
Locally 

30% 65% 5% 31% 

Priority to 
Improve 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that Denbighshire has 
the digital infrastructure (such as 
good broadband connectivity, 

49% 45% 6% 52.2% 

Acceptable 

Tudalen 173



 
66 

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

good mobile internet or mobile 
phone signal) to support thriving, 
cohesive, and well connected 
communities – Benchmarked 
Locally 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that Denbighshire has 
the social infrastructure needed to 
support personal and community 
well-being – Benchmarked 
Locally 

56% 34% 10% 62% 

Acceptable 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Access to 
Services (Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation) 
– Benchmarked Nationally 

14% 

Priority to Improve 

Same 

14% 

Priority to Improve 

Same 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

Projects or Activities 

This theme contains 18 projects and activities. Eight of which are ‘On Target’, three are 

‘Experiencing Obstacles’, five are in development and two have now been completed.  

Title Status Exception  

Implement an annual Resurfacing 
programme on a number of roads across 
the county where the life has expired. 

On Target No exception 

Tudalen 174



 
67 

Title Status Exception  

Implement an annual Surface Dressing 
programme on a number of high 
priority roads where this represents the 
most cost-effective method of prolonging 
the life-span of the road 

Completed No exception 

Aim to deliver the most viable option to 
replace the Llannerch Bridge 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Contribute to the development of the new 
Regional Transport Plan 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The Corporate Joint 
Committee is focussing on 
establishing appropriate 
governance arrangements 
before moving to delivery. 

Review, develop and modernise rural, 
urban and inter-urban transport services, 
where appropriate, working with partners 
within the Metro project and alongside the 
emerging bus reform 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop a Sustainable Transport Plan (to 
include Active Travel) 

At business 
case stage 

No exception 

Four Great Highways (Clwyd South 
Levelling Up Round 2) 

On Target No exception 

Wenffrwd (Clwyd South Levelling Up 
Round 2) 

On Target No exception 

Corwen to Cynwyd Active Travel Route. 
Phase 1 (Clwyd South Levelling Up Round 
2) 

At project brief 
stage 

No exception 

2a Moel Famau country park new cycle 
paths & visitor facilities (Clwyd West 
Levelling Up Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

No exception 

1a St Peter's Square (Clwyd West 
Levelling Up Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

No exception 

Green Lane Car Park Corwen (Clwyd 
South Levelling Up Round 2) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

2d Gwyddelwern Community Hub (CW 
LUF) 

At business 
case stage 

No exception 

Tudalen 175



 
68 

Title Status Exception  

Traffic modelling and design traffic 
improvement works 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Project is on hold whilst 
funding is being sought to 
progress or develop it 
further.  

 

 

Electric Vehicle Infrastructure - Public 
Charging Points 

Completed Awaiting two sites to 
become live. 

Progress towards digitalisation of telecare 
services before the 2025 deadline for 
ceasing of analogue telephone services. 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Clear options appraisal will 
allow decisions to be made 
in order to progress. 

Develop a community resilience action 
plan 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Replace our current backup infrastructure 
to remove the reliance on legacy 
technologies and improve resilience. 

On Target No exception 

  

Tudalen 176



 
69 

A Greener Denbighshire 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Deliver our Climate and Ecological Change Strategy to become a net carbon 

zero and ecologically positive council by 2030. 

Denbighshire County Council’s Climate and Ecological Change Strategy (2021 to 2022 

and 2029 to 2030) is scheduled to be reviewed and refreshed every three years. The first 

official review and refresh of the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy will be carried 

out this year, 2023 to 2024. Delivery of the strategy does not stop whilst this review is 

taking place; work continues concurrently with the review to deliver a Net Carbon Zero and 

Ecologically Positive Council and reduction in supply chain emissions. 

Ensuring the strategy remains relevant, up to date and bought into is integral to delivering 

upon the Council’s Climate Change and Ecological Emergency declaration (2019) which 

committed the Council to become Net Carbon Zero by 2030 and improve biodiversity in 

Denbighshire. 

There are a number of key annual performance measures that are being used to judge the 

performance of the council in achieving its 2030 goals including: reducing carbon 

emissions the council emits from various sources; increasing carbon sequestration of land 

the council owns, leases and manages; and increasing the species richness of the land 

the council owns, leases and manages, all of which were reported in our January to March 

2023 report. 

Data for reducing carbon tonnage from our supply chains measure for 2022 to 2023 is 

currently pending (as are previous years). The data collation methodology is currently 

being revisited in order to provide accurate annual figures. These figures will be reported 

as soon as they are available. 

A round up of all the great project work and activities progressed during July to September 

can be found in our “A round up of news” section. 

 

Tudalen 177

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/strategies-plans-and-policies/strategies/climate-and-ecological-change-strategy.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/documents/your-council/about-the-council/performance/report/performance-self-assessment-update-january-to-march-2023.pdf
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/documents/your-council/about-the-council/performance/report/performance-self-assessment-update-january-to-march-2023.pdf


 
70 

Improve recycling rates and reduce waste 

Throughout September, we invited school children to submit their creative names for our 

21 new recycling vehicles, including three electric vehicles in either Welsh or English.  The 

new fleet has been bought to replace the old fleet and is part of a range of measures we 

are taking to reach the county’s recycling target of 70%. We also sought more images to 

go on the livery for future vehicles in our waste and recycling fleet from local 

photographers.  We want our new vehicles to show our collective pride in the county. 

Support communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts of climate 

change 

The two Coastal Defence Improvement Schemes for Rhyl Central and Prestatyn Central 

remain ‘On Target’. The new Flood Risk Management (FRM) Strategy for the county of 

Denbighshire is still in its early stages with a meeting of the Task and Finish Group of 

nominated Members to take place towards the end of October to discuss the initial draft of 

the strategy. 

At the beginning of July, following the successful installation of new security gates, the part 

of the promenade that had been closed between the Pavilion Car Park and Old Golf Road 

to allow for coastal defence works was re-opened at weekends.  This allows uninterrupted 

access for both cyclists and pedestrians between Splash Point and SeaQuarium. 

However, access to the prom for heavy plant will still be required during the working week, 

including tidal working hours, therefore the gates will be closed Monday to Friday. 

The Clwyd West Levelling Up Fund (LUF) Loggerheads project will deliver internal 

improvements to the existing building, with an extended external undercover area and 

crucially, additional natural flood management measures. The project has an expected 

delivery date of March 2025. 

This pledge also includes supporting communities to mitigate and cope with the impacts 

of climate change by increasing allotments and community food growing opportunities. 

During the period, Countryside Services staff and volunteers linked up with Incredible 

Edible Denbigh to help prepare allotment spaces donated to the group for planting and 

growing.  The group is aiming to grow food with help from the local community, allowing 

people to access locally produced fruit and vegetable. 

Tudalen 178

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ec9cc271-abf7-4c0f-be88-773625a9a230
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ec9cc271-abf7-4c0f-be88-773625a9a230
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e6421678-0dac-410c-8ca7-31776bb1fcc1
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e6421678-0dac-410c-8ca7-31776bb1fcc1
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9231d73e-31be-4468-b119-d4ade1eb7cee
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6ff5aaf3-b131-4415-a55f-15ad70a52ab3
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6ff5aaf3-b131-4415-a55f-15ad70a52ab3


 
71 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of greener initiatives please see our Housing 

theme for energy efficiency and our Better Connected theme for sustainable travel and 

electric vehicle charging points. 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

Net Carbon Zero - Total carbon tonnage 
emitted and absorbed by the council (excluding 
supply chains) – Benchmarked Locally 

12,205 

Acceptable 

Worse 

11,832 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of DCC owned and operated 
land in highest categories of species richness 
– Benchmarked Locally 

40.62% 

Acceptable 

Better 

42.00% 

Acceptable 

Better 

Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) 
through fleet – Benchmarked Locally 

2,699  

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

2,302 

Acceptable 

Better 

Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) 
through business travel– Benchmarked 
Locally 

163 

Excellent 

Better 

251 

Excellent 

Worse 

Total carbon tonnage emitted (Corporately) 
through supply chains– Benchmarked Locally 

Data pending Data pending 

Capacity (in MW) of renewable energy 
equipment installed in our buildings (owned 
and operated) - Count Only 

No data. New to 
2022 to 2023 

1MW 

The percentage of municipal waste reused, 
recycled or composted - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

67.67% 

Excellent 

65.91% 

Good 

Worse 

The number of properties with a high or 
medium risk of flooding (DCC wide) - Count 
Only 

1,171 1,171 

Area of moorland (heather, gorse and bracken) 
managed per annum – Benchmarked Locally 

20 hectares 80 hectares 

Excellent 

Better 

Tudalen 179

file:///X:/Strategic%20Planning%20&amp;%20Performance/Performance%20Management/Quarterly%20Performance%20Report/2023-24/QPR1/Performance%20Self-Assessment%20Update%20-%20April%20to%20June%202023.docx%23_A_Denbighshire_of
file:///X:/Strategic%20Planning%20&amp;%20Performance/Performance%20Management/Quarterly%20Performance%20Report/2023-24/QPR1/Performance%20Self-Assessment%20Update%20-%20April%20to%20June%202023.docx%23_A_better_connected


 
72 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that Denbighshire is 
resilient against the impacts of 
climate change and nature’s 
decline - Benchmarked Locally 

44% 40% 16% 

 

52% 

Acceptable 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Physical 
Environment (Wales Index of Multiple 
Deprivation) – Benchmarked Nationally 

2% 

Good 

Better 

2% 

Good 

Same 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

This theme is supported by the overarching Climate and Ecological Change Programme 

2021 to 2030 and a further 18 projects and activities. Eight are ‘On Target’, eight are 

‘Experiencing Obstacles’ and one is in development. One project is as `At Risk’: the 

Behaviour Change Workstream- Climate Action and Nature Recovery.  This is due to staff 

resource and capacity, which is currently impacting on the progress and delivery of the 

project. 

Tudalen 180



 
73 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Programme: Climate and Ecological 
Change Programme 2021 – 2030 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

In year 2023 to 2024 
status update: Delays in 
project delivery, which 
means benefit realisation 
will also be delayed. 

Reducing carbon from buildings Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

2023 to 2024 projects look 
likely to save 
approximately 300 tonnes 
of carbon which is less 
than the target figure of 
around 660 tonnes per 
annum (to meet the 60% 
reduction from buildings by 
2030). Of the projects 
planned, preparations 
continue at pace to move 
these into delivery. There 
have been delays in 
mobilising projects even 
though work has taken 
place during school 
holidays. 

Corporate Fleet EV Phase 2  On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Carbon sequestration on existing land 
holdings 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Delays in the purchases of 
Moel y Plas and Llys 
Brenig will impact on 
woodland creation. 

Wildflower Meadow project Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Future of the project and 
plans for next year are to 
be finalised. 

Nature Reserve at Green Gates Farm, St 
Asaph 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

New cost estimates, 
resource capacity and 
availability constraints, 
could impact on project 
milestones, budget, scope 
of work and potentially 
funding. 

Behaviour change for climate action and 
nature recovery 

At Risk 

Worse 

Staff resource and 
capacity is currently 

Tudalen 181



 
74 

Title Status Exception  

impacting on the progress 
and delivery of this project 

Carbon reduction through procurement On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Land acquisition for carbon and ecological 
purposes 2023 to 2024 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Three sites are in the 
process of being 
purchased and one new 
site is being pursued as a 
potential opportunity. 

Implement Ash Dieback work as per the 
Action Plan across the county 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Enhance biodiversity and promote the 
resilience of ecosystems in all of our 
Council service areas 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Our Ecological and 
Biodiversity Team are 
working hard across 
council services to improve 
biodiversity, however, 
instigating any change 
takes time. 

Rhyl Green Infrastructure On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Remodelling Waste Service Operations Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Better 

Operations at the new 
Waste Transfer Station are 
subject to the approval of a 
bespoke permit, which was 
submitted in January 2023 
to Natural Resources 
Wales (NRW). The permit 
needs to be approved 
before the service change 
can take place. 

We will work towards reducing the use of 
plastics within Denbighshire County 
Council, including School Catering and 
Procurement, along with any future work 
(including its Alternative Delivery Models 
(ADMs) such as Denbighshire Leisure 
Limited (DLL) 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

We are continually looking 
for alternative drinks 
provision that would 
eradicate single use 
plastics.  The trial period of 
selling drinks in reusable 
cups was unsuccessful. 

Deliver improvement and expansion 
projects for Denbighshire County Council 
allotments 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 182



 
75 

Title Status Exception  

Develop a new Flood Strategy for the 
county 

On Target  

Same 

No exception 

Prestatyn Central Coastal Defence 
Improvement Scheme 

On Target  

Same 

No exception 

Rhyl Central Coastal Defence 
Improvement Scheme 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

2b Loggerheads country park new visitor 
facilities and flood management (Clwyd 
West Levelling Up Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

No exception 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place in this last period in support 

of this theme: 

Denbighshire County Council’s Property Section Energy Team has completed over 90 

working measures into 47 council-owned buildings in a drive to reduce building 

emissions. To date we have improved the efficiency of a range of buildings, from schools 

to leisure centres across the county, which has included complete mechanical, heating 

and ventilation overhauls, modifications to heating controls, heat recovery systems, 

heatpumps, solar PV (panels), LED lighting, battery storage, loft and wall insulation as well 

as emission reductions through behaviour change and ICT infrastructure. Work at Ysgol 

Dinas Bran was mentioned in the House of Commons and nominated for a national award.  

Earlier this year the Energy Team oversaw the installation of two air source heat pumps at 

Ysgol Tir Morfa and during the summer holidays they completed phase 2 with the 

installation of two solar PV arrays and battery storage to help generate electricity to power 

the pumps and store any excess.  This work not only further reducing the fuel bills but also 

saving a further six tonnes of carbon emissions per year. More schools are set to receive 

work over 2023 along with plans for drive through changes in other council buildings. 

September also saw the completion of phase two of work to improve energy efficiency at 

Csgod y Gaer care home in Corwen.  This has resulted in around three quarters less water 

heating energy use a day. The gas consumption has reduced from an average of 750kwh 

to 200kwh daily on top of the impact of the previous work. This is a further reduction of 

around another five to six tonnes of carbon emissions per year. The total emissions at the 

Tudalen 183

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=00450be4-6a61-4163-a2c3-32503378f3fb
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=00450be4-6a61-4163-a2c3-32503378f3fb
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=5b457e9d-28cd-404d-9884-ee455c4dca90
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c123b1bb-683c-4ab9-9160-571dd033beb7
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c123b1bb-683c-4ab9-9160-571dd033beb7


 
76 

care home are now around 10 tonnes per year lower than they were before the carbon 

reduction project work. 

In August, Marine Lake in Rhyl achieved the Green Flag Community Award for the 12th 

consecutive year.  The Green Flag Community Award delivered by environmental charity 

Keep Wales Tidy is the benchmark for parks and gree55n spaces, which are managed 

with the help of volunteers.   

Volunteers supported by Nature for Health alongside Countryside Service staff completed 

a new bridge at Brickfield Pond Nature Reserve to allow a much needed wildlife habitat to 

develop.  The bridge helps take the pathway and visitors over the new water vole habitat, 

an animal on the UK’s endangered list. Countryside staff and volunteers carried out 

identification work of moths at the allotments near Coed Morfa, Prestayn.  Developments 

of the land at Parc Bodnant in Prestatyn culminated in the creation of a new pond and a 

new outdoor classroom, which has a bat roof to give the nocturnal mammal a place to 

roost. Countryside staff have continued to work closely with Rhuddlan Reserve 

Management Advisory Group and during the period, the Rhuddlan Nature Reserve 

celebrated achieving an Outstanding `It’s Your Neighbourhood’ Award again for 2023, 

alongside another RHS National Certificate of Distinction. Vital new work is also underway 

to help protect and support Denbighshire’s curlew population.  

At the beginning of July, we reminded residents to be aware of Tree Preservation Order 

(TPO) rules.  The TPOs protect trees from unauthorised pruning or felling, and anyone 

carrying out such work on a TPO tree is committing an offence. In August, we launched an 

appeal to help preserve the lineage of ancient Denbighshire trees. In July, we thanked the 

vibrant volunteer community that supports the Tree Nursery at Green Gates Farm, St. 

Asaph. The Tree Nursery has exceeded last season’s results: producing nearly 8,000 

plants during its first growing season last year; growing 13,000 wildflowers this year; and 

increasing the number of trees grown from 1,000 last season to 11,500 for 2023. In 

September, the Tree Nursery took onboard an electric Avant loader and an electric van to 

help out with manual work at the nursery and support the low emissions delivery of trees 

and plants. 

In August, our Countryside Services had support from a 15 year old Gypsy Cob, Bill, as a 

traditional horse powered method to help resource wood to use following ash dieback 

prevention work at Loggerheads Country Park.  This type of forestry management, which 

has horses move trees from a felled location to a collection area, is more carbon friendly 

Tudalen 184

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c93f43bb-04ea-466f-8dc2-890f66d56703
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=c93f43bb-04ea-466f-8dc2-890f66d56703
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=723a8b07-6ba8-49f8-a951-05086ea949b0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4a867ed0-5bbb-4a5b-b8cd-3cd1b6296ba0
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=81288239-59ce-4d7e-8c64-430791a41615
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=367a4a98-a114-411d-9fd5-3454bc8eb948
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=d2a14a40-4240-4f9e-9229-23a42e90f243
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=113d129e-1eee-4ffb-968a-05011468d17a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=fb03ddf5-d0e3-4fed-8d69-900ac1c5db06
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4a8fb3df-5c64-455b-8d07-fd7f0e8d55b5
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=8187a0d2-1da2-4400-a383-cf8404580ea8
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=b343b559-b816-4902-aa84-2d5efba6900e
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=988672a6-045e-4618-b117-66ea83c7a04a


 
77 

and is kinder to the forest ecology.  Trees deemed a risk due to the disease were cut down 

at the park and left-over wood will be reused to create benches. 

We started preparations to introduce a natural process across eight county wildflower 

meadows to control grass length by preparing the meadows for seeding of yellow rattle 

seeds. With the flowering season finishing, our seasonal maintenance of our wildflower 

meadow sites began in August across the county with specialist mowing equipment to 

carry out the second cut, the first is carried out on the meadows during February and 

March each year. The Council’s Biodiversity team, working with volunteers and groups 

across the county, started a programme of plug planting and enhancement work across 

ten meadows.  Most recently, in September they were joined by volunteers from an award 

winning group, Denbigh in Bloom to add more colour and variety to a Denbigh roundabout.  

Plants donated by the Council’s Biodiversity team, which maintains the tree nursery, 

supported volunteers of the Friends of the Ffrith with the development of their own 

wildflower planters. 

Schools continued to play an important role in looking after biodiversity and helping tackle 

the climate and nature emergency, during the period July to September. We highlighted 

the work of pupils of Ysgol Penmorfa in creating a multitude of outdoor areas for wildlife to 

thrive. Pupils of Ysgol Caer Drewyn, Corwen and our Biodiversity team created a new 

wildflower meadow in the corner of the school grounds to help local nature. Our 

Countryside team supported Rhos Street school by carrying out traditional hedgelaying on 

their site. In September, Streetscene members joined the Mayor of Ruthin for a visit to 

Ysgol Borthyn.   

In September, the Farming and Wildlife Advisory Group Cymru together with the Clwydian 

Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) held a farm walk at 

Cefn-y-fedw, Pen-y-bryn, Pen-y-cae, Wrexham to highlight the theme of integration of 

conservation within a commercial farming enterprise. 

In September, we issued a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) of £250 to an individual for fly-

tipping waste on the street, violating Section 33 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 

This demonstrates that such behaviour will not be tolerated and that action will be taken 

when it occurs.  

  

Tudalen 185

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=fcc7a327-7890-456c-a3fc-763b47b87951
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=fcc7a327-7890-456c-a3fc-763b47b87951
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e2dccb1c-e37e-4369-987d-a7b5ab80b544
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e2dccb1c-e37e-4369-987d-a7b5ab80b544
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2596f471-679e-4ff0-b359-423e170df46b
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=2596f471-679e-4ff0-b359-423e170df46b
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=3dae5ca1-30dd-4053-ac6b-378381008dfb
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=3dae5ca1-30dd-4053-ac6b-378381008dfb
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=d397aad8-e093-4ff2-bcae-3dbe71b35499
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=d397aad8-e093-4ff2-bcae-3dbe71b35499
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=8c64f4c5-daa9-42c1-9f4c-9f4cb236116f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=3b05ca36-2009-4d2c-a2e1-4b8c8505c760
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=daca582b-e147-4be4-b9fd-2e18efe998d2
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=0901adbb-5f22-41bf-8d11-6d7a004c205e
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=0901adbb-5f22-41bf-8d11-6d7a004c205e
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=77dbb40b-7d1f-415d-814d-19ee4d0d4c4a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=77dbb40b-7d1f-415d-814d-19ee4d0d4c4a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=d78b912b-ab0e-46a5-8809-57769fdc0195
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=d78b912b-ab0e-46a5-8809-57769fdc0195


 
78 

A fairer, safe, and more equal Denbighshire  

Measures: Priority for Improvement 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Foster community cohesion by ensuring people are protected from harm, 

abuse and exploitation 

North Wales Police reported 368 repeat victims of domestic abuse for the period July to 

September 2023 (up from 99 between April to June), which compared to 266 for the same 

period last year. In terms of repeat offenders of domestic abuse reported for July to 

September, there were 73 offenders – up from 6 during April to June. The significant spike 

in volumes is also evident for the rest of North Wales. Further work is required to 

understand what has caused this anomaly. It is important to note that due to the way the 

repeat victims and offenders data are calculated means that volumes are liable to change 

as new offences are added to nominals, or as offences move out of the ‘last 12 months’ 

time period. North Wales Police has also revised the recording standards for these data, 

and the trend we are seeing (i.e. increased repeat offenders and victims), reflects these 

improvements. 

Denbigh town centre will have 5 new CCTV cameras and upgraded existing ones as part 

of plans to enhance security, with funding from the UK Government’s Shared Prosperity 

Fund. Cameras across the Denbighshire CCTV Partnership, a collaboration with North 

Wales Police and the town councils of Prestatyn, Rhuddlan and Rhyl, and soon Denbigh, 

will benefit from 24-hour reactive monitoring. 

Denbighshire’s Trading Standards team has been taking action to address non-compliant 

vaping products within the county. The council has urged business owners to be aware of 

the legal requirements that are in place to protect the health and safety of users as it is the 

responsibility of business owners to comply with the law. Advice is available from the 

Trading Standards team. In September, the team warned residents about rogue traders 

and doorstep crime. Information about legitimate doorstep trading practices is available 

here on the council’s website.   

 

Tudalen 186

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=ea4e8f54-8714-465f-8202-25eac964c82c
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4ac71bc6-18ba-4ef5-9b0c-de246a4bdae5
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=4ac71bc6-18ba-4ef5-9b0c-de246a4bdae5
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/licences-permits-and-trading-standards/forms/contact-us-trading-standards.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e6b852e6-0bc4-4efe-b0b0-3518183ae569
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=e6b852e6-0bc4-4efe-b0b0-3518183ae569
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/licences-permits-and-trading-standards/trading-standards/doorstep-and-workplace-sales.aspx


 
79 

Reduce inequalities  

87% of staff have completed violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 

violence e-learning module (not mandatory), which is considered ‘Good’. Our measure of 

the percentage of staff that have completed our modern-day slavery (not mandatory) e-

learning module is annual, and we previously reported it as a ‘Priority for Improvement’. 

Despite a slight improvement since June, it remains a ‘a ‘Priority for Improvement’. This e-

learning module is more pertinent to some job roles than others, and we need to ensure 

that the staff who need this training, access it. This is also the case for hate crime e-

learning. 

One activity to ‘Support diversity and engagement by embedding the framework on a 

whole-school approach to emotional and mental well-being’ continues to be ‘At Risk’. 

Following notification of a reduction of Welsh Government grant fund to support this work, 

the team is taking a more targeted approach. A number of training courses were 

commissioned between July and September for schools to access in the autumn term, and 

two clusters of schools have been approached to pilot two particular interventions and we 

will provide an update on those through future reports. 

A contacts list for advocates of groups of people with protected characteristics has been 

developed with the Regional Community Cohesion Officer and will be tabled at the next 

meeting of the council’s Strategic Equality and Diversity Group, both for information and to 

collectively consider how best to promote this list across the organisation. 

The council has supplied 15 public locations across Denbighshire with in case of 

emergency period products display units which the public can access for free, funded 

through the Welsh Government Period Dignity Grant. 

In September, the Deputy Minister for Social Partnership visited the Ty Pride project in 

Rhyl, which supports LGBTQ+ young people who are either homeless or at risk of 

becoming homeless. The only one of its kind in Wales, the project is a partnership 

between Denbighshire County Council, homeless charity Llamau, and the charity West 

Rhyl Young People’s Project and Viva LGBTQ+. 

Alleviate poverty 

As reported previously, according to the latest data from the National Survey for Wales, 

the percentage of people living in households in material deprivation has increased from 

Tudalen 187

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=8281f5e6-7cb3-4fb6-be5a-be789e971d3f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=8281f5e6-7cb3-4fb6-be5a-be789e971d3f
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=51cf3aaf-346c-46be-b889-4bf8ea17cfc2
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=51cf3aaf-346c-46be-b889-4bf8ea17cfc2


 
80 

9.1% in 2019 to 2020 to 14.8% in 2022 to 2023. On the basis of this deterioration - using 

our standardised methodology for calculating what poor and excellent performance looks 

like - performance is ‘Acceptable’. During 2022 to 2023, Neath Porth Talbot had the 

highest percentage of people living in households in material deprivation at 21.5% and 

Monmouthshire the lowest at 8.4%.   

19.3% of children in Denbighshire were living in workless households in 2022 and is a 

‘Priority for improvement’. This has improved slightly since 2021, at which point 21.1% of 

children were living in workless households. 

The national basic income pilot has commenced and 100% of Denbighshire’s eligible care 

experienced young people are taking part in the scheme, which is considered ‘Excellent’. 

We reported in our last report that we have made enquiries with colleagues in Data Cymru 

for suitable national measures of fuel poverty reported at a local authority level; however, it 

currently appears that none exist that are routinely reported upon. We are exploring 

whether any local measures exist or can be easily captured. 

Since September 2022, the Universal Primary Free School Meals (UPFSM) offer in 

Denbighshire has been successfully rolled out to Reception, Year 1 and Year 2 pupils. 

The UPFSM offer has been extended to Years 3 and 4 from September 2023, and the 

phased delivery approach will see all primary pupils offered free school meals by 2024. 

In response to the UPFSM roll out, schools such as Christ the Word in Rhyl have 

upgraded their dining capacity. The percentage of eligible primary and secondary school 

pupils taking Free School meals during the summer term of 2023 was 63% and 78% 

respectively. 

Denbighshire County Council has been collaborating with the Design Council to ‘design 

differently’ and take preventative action to tackle issues such as waste. As part of the 

project, the council has been working with ReSource, the operators of Ruthin community 

café Seconds. The café is sourcing local surplus food to prevent food waste and keep 

costs low for its customers, demonstrating an integrated approach to supporting people 

through the cost of living crisis whilst addressing long-term issues affecting the planet. 

In July, the council reminded parents and guardians that the School Essentials Grant 

was open for applications. To qualify, parents needed to receive at least one benefit, 

such as income support, but they must not already receive Working Tax Credit. Up to 

£200 was available depending on the age of the child. 

Tudalen 188

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=09ff58d7-11af-4fbd-a11a-a772d80b4bc9
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=76403ee5-d641-49b9-b704-0d7382408d1a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=11f6913c-63a5-4f93-ae8d-3384b49a350b
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=11f6913c-63a5-4f93-ae8d-3384b49a350b
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=afe43bf7-8dbe-4a57-a2ed-65882c1ac7ab
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=afe43bf7-8dbe-4a57-a2ed-65882c1ac7ab
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=3af484b8-06a9-4f57-9744-33c2a5030485


 
81 

Continue to support and resettle refugees through the UK Global 

Resettlement Scheme, in support of Wales’ declaration to be a Nation of 

Sanctuary 

Working Denbighshire has continued to offer one-to-one support for refugees from Syria, 

Afghanistan and Ukraine, including delivering the social group for English language skills 

practice for Ukrainian participants. We have also assigned employment co-ordinators to 

work with local employers on specific opportunities for those with the poorest English 

language skills.  In addition, we continue to run workshops designed to provide refugees 

from all areas with information on UK ‘employer expectations’.    

In August, an event held for resettled families in Denbighshire was organised by 

Denbighshire County Council, the British Red Cross and the North East Wales 

Community Cohesion Service. The free multi-cultural event provided activities and 

performances for families from countries such as Syria, Afghanistan and Ukraine. 

We have recalculated the number of families resettled within Denbighshire during 2022 

and 2023 and have made an amendment to the total (cumulative) number from 75 to 41. 

This discrepancy relates to the different schemes of support available. For clarity, the 

revised figure does not include families hosted through the Super Sponsorship Scheme. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

The majority of the measures below are new to this Corporate Plan and to the 2023 to 

2024 financial year. Some data is pending for this report and will be obtained for our next 

report. Other information, such as ‘the number of reported occurrences of prejudice related 

bullying in schools’, is expected by November 2023. 

For further measures and activity to support well-being, see our Healthier, Happier and 

Caring theme.  There is additional information to support housing and homelessness in 

our Housing theme; measures and activities to support employment and deprivation our 

Prosperous theme and education and volunteering in our Learning and Growing and 

Connected themes. 

Tudalen 189

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=55b05aa8-e241-4ef1-9496-0259057ec1be


 
82 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The cumulative (year 
to date) number of 
repeat victims of 
Domestic Abuse 
reported including non-
crime occurrences (3 
or more in 12 months, 
measured as year to 
date) - Count Only 

266 

 

386 

 

537 

 

99 368 

The cumulative (year 
to date) number of 
repeat offenders of 
Domestic Abuse 
reported (3 or more in 
12 months) - Count 
Only 

28 

 

42 

 

56 

 

6 73 

The number of young 
people referred to the 
Youth Justice Service 
during the year from 
Denbighshire - 

Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

70 Data 
pending 

The percentage of 
eligible primary school 
pupils taking Free 
School meals 
(Denbighshire) – 
Count Only 

No data: 
does not 
apply 

68.3% Data 
pending 

Data 
pending 

63% 

The percentage of 
eligible secondary 
school pupils taking 
Free School meals 
(Denbighshire) - 
Count Only 

No data: 
does not 
apply 

80.52% 

 

Data 
pending 

Data 
pending 

78% 

Tudalen 190



 
83 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

2019 to 2023 data 

Title 2019 to 2020 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of people living in households 
in material deprivation – Benchmarked 
Nationally 

9.1% 14.8% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

2021 to 2023 data 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of personnel within DCC who 
have undertaken the hate crime e-learning 
module (not mandatory) - Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data 7% 

Priority to Improve 

 

The percentage of personnel within DCC who 
have undertaken modern day slavery e-
learning module (not mandatory) - 
Benchmarked Locally 

No data 25% 

Priority to Improve 

 

The percentage of personnel within DCC who 
have completed violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence e-learning 
- Benchmarked Locally 

New to 2022 to 
2023 

87% 

Good 

Better 

The number of reported occurrences of 
prejudice related bullying in schools - 
Benchmarked Locally 

No data Data pending. 
Expected 
November 2023 

The percentage of adults who say their library 
is an enjoyable, safe and inclusive place - 
Benchmarked Locally 

93% 

Excellent 

Same 

93% 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of children in poverty in 
Denbighshire – Benchmarked Nationally 

34.9% 

Priority to Improve 

28.1% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

The percentage of children living in workless 
households – Benchmarked Nationally 

21.1% 

Priority to Improve 

19.3% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

Tudalen 191



 
84 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

Measures of all households and vulnerable 
households living in fuel poverty in Wales 
(placeholder) - Benchmarked Nationally 

Data pending Data pending 

The percentage of eligible young people 
leaving care in receipt of the basic income pilot 
from the Welsh Government - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

No data. Pilot 
Scheme across 
Wales to be 
undertaken 

100% 

Excellent 

The cumulative number of families resettled 
within Denbighshire – Count Only 

6 41 

The number of Unaccompanied Asylum-
Seeking Children (UASC) in Denbighshire -
Benchmarked Locally 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

The number of customer complaints received 
by the council related to race – Count Only 

No data. New to 
2023 to 2024 

Data expected 
April 2024 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agreed that people in 
Denbighshire are treated fairly and 
equally, and have access to 
opportunities to promote their well-
being and community cohesion - 
Benchmarked Locally 

36%  44% 20% 46% 

Acceptable 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation Measures 

Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) data is published infrequently - every four to 

five years - with the most recent data being available for 2019. Unless new data is 

published, we will not comment on WIMD but we will retain the measures in this report as 

they provide important context and help to inform our overall measures status for each 

theme. Welsh Government’s next WIMD update is expected in late 2025 or early 2026. 

Tudalen 192



 
85 

Title 2014 2019 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales in terms of Community 
Safety (Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation - 
WIMD) - Benchmarked Nationally 

14% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

10% 

Priority to Improve  

Better 

The percentage of Lower Super Output Areas 
(LSOAs) in Denbighshire in the 10% most 
deprived in Wales (Wales Index of Multiple 
Deprivation - WIMD) - Benchmarked 
Nationally 

14%  

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

12%  

Priority to Improve 

Better 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

There are 20 projects supporting this theme of the Corporate Plan.  15 are ‘On Target’, 3 

are ‘Experiencing Obstacles’ and one is ‘At Risk’, with exceptions for those reported 

below. One activity is being scoped. 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Undertake preventative work, in partnership 
with the Police Licensing and Local 
Authority Licencing, in relation to business 
premises (including sales to minors, alcohol, 
tobacco and e-cigarettes) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop and deliver Gypsy, Roma and 
Traveller awareness raising community 
events 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Purchase of ANPR cameras - The purchase 
of six specialist ANPR specification 
redeployable surveillance cameras which 
will enable us to monitor and gather 
information in respect of environmental 
crime hotspots. 

On Target No exception 

 

Commit to the Welsh Government’s Anti-
Racism Wales Action Plan through Service 
Business Plans 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The detail of some actions 
and lines of responsibility 
is still being agreed with 
services. 

Deliver upon the pledge to promote zero 
racism in Denbighshire 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

Capacity pressure is 
slowing progress. This will 

Tudalen 193



 
86 

Title Status Exception  

be progressed during 
January and March. 

Promote to schools English as an Additional 
Language Programme in terms of tackling 
racism and ensure anti-racism policies at 
schools are up to date (this includes raising 
awareness of ARWAP) 

This activity 
is being 
scoped. 

No exception 

Engage and support tenants most likely to 
be experiencing social inequality to access 
services and take an active role in their 
community 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Bruton Park, Rhyl (working with Bruton Park 
residents to maximise community well-
being). 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop Croeso Cynnes hubs throughout 
the County. 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

No indication as yet from 
Welsh Government of any 
funding being allocated 
this year to support local 
groups to set up hubs. 
Libraries have continued 
throughout the year to offer 
warm spaces along with 
free tea and coffee 
facilities. We continue to 
work with local community 
groups to assist in setting 
up new hubs, supporting 
existing ones and with 
promotion and branding to 
promote these spaces. We 
are looking for further 
funding to support this 
work. 

Support diversity and engagement by 
embedding the framework on a whole-
school approach to emotional and mental 
well-being 

At Risk 

Same 

A number of training 
courses were 
commissioned between 
July and September for 
schools to access in the 
Autumn term, using the 
authority Wellbeing Grant. 
Interventions are chosen 
for their evidence base and 
impact. Given that the WG 
Wellbeing grant has been 
reduced this has impacted 
on the breadth of training 
and school activity that 

Tudalen 194



 
87 

Title Status Exception  

could be offered. Two 
clusters of schools have 
been approached to pilot 
two particular 
interventions. 

Review and revise the Youth Council for 
Denbighshire. 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Embed the DCC Anti-Bullying Strategy 
throughout all schools  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Period Dignity On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop a network to engage people and 
groups with protected characteristics 
(through the Strategic Equality and Diversity 
Group) 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Universal Free School Meals for all Primary 
School Pupils  

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Develop and deliver the county wide Food 
Strategy and Food Partnership Network 
(including social supermarket project – 
Cogog) around Denbighshire    

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Enhance the School Holiday Enrichment 
Programme to support children to eat well 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Enhance the offer, through Working 
Denbighshire, for all refugees who have 
settled in Denbighshire to gain support of an 
employment mentor (all adults are actively 
involved in English as a Second Language 
(ESOL) classes 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

In partnership with Denbighshire Leisure Ltd 
and the Third Sector, secure funding for 
creative and cultural activities to work with 
resettled families in the county 

On Target 

Same 

 

No exception 

Greener community 
infrastructure:  Accessible Play Area 
Provision to deliver play areas in strategic 
locations across the county that are 
accessible to all by installing specialist 

Started 

On Target 

No exception 

Tudalen 195



 
88 

Title Status Exception  

equipment and making improvements to 
footways and street furniture in the public 
realm and immediate vicinity 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place between July and 

September in support of this theme: 

Emergency Services Day took place on September 9, and the council marked the 

occasion by raising a flag in their honour at County Hall in Ruthin. Earlier in the month, 

Denbighshire County Council showed its support for Merchant Navy Day (September 1) by 

raising the Red Ensign flag.  

Tudalen 196

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=a485107a-b0e9-4d81-a9bc-10580182c85a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=b87549a2-23ef-464e-93fd-ee81027fa633


 
89 

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

Measures: Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

Play our part in achieving one million Welsh Speakers in Wales by 2050, by 

delivering the Welsh Language Strategy with partners and communities 

We previously reported that the number of people who could speak Welsh (aged 3 or 

older) as at the end of March 2023 stood at 35,000, which was 38%, and that whilst the 

percentage had increased overall for the whole of Wales, this was not replicated in 

Denbighshire with 900 fewer people reporting they could speak Welsh (a 0.9% decrease) 

compared to the end of March 2022. It has been decided that it will be most helpful, going 

forward, to focus on the percentage of year one pupils receiving their education through 

the medium of Welsh, and so this indicator of self-reporting of Welsh will be removed 

henceforth from our Performance Management Framework. Furthermore, Menter Iaith Sir 

Ddinbych is currently analysing the most recent Census data to determine the vibrancy of 

the Welsh language in smaller areas. We are also keen to gather examples where the 

language is thriving and is connected to our culture and our economy (for example, 

farming and agriculture), which better demonstrate people’s experiences of a thriving 

language in their community. We will identify ways to capture these experiences.   

28.4% of year one pupils received their education through the medium of Welsh during the 

academic year 2022 to 2023, a 1% increase on the previous year.  Our ambition, 

according to our Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP), is to increase this to 32% by 

2027 (the end of this new Corporate Plan), working towards 40% by 2032. Our ambition 

was based on projections, which included assumptions regarding growth in demand in 

existing Welsh medium schools and the transition of existing English medium schools to 

offer a Welsh medium foundation phase. The main area of concern is a reduction in the 

percentage of learners who received education in year 2 in 2022 to 2023, in part as a 

result of the Covid-19 pandemic. This has reduced the baseline in the plan from 28% of 

learners receiving Welsh medium education in September 2020, to 26.4%. This reduction 

will make the ambitious targets of WESP very far-reaching. We had hoped to confirm our 

threshold for intervention, i.e. what will constitute a ‘Priority for Improvement’, in our 

previous report but the changing baseline has made determination of our thresholds 

Tudalen 197



 
90 

difficult. An additional issue is the expectation around schools’ changing language 

category. At the time of developing the plan there was a greater expectation of the 

language outcome for schools transitioning from English to Welsh medium provision and it 

is unlikely that these pupils will contribute to this target now. Welsh Government is aware 

of the current position, and this will be kept under regular review. The council has also 

shared its annual progress report with the Welsh Government and we are awaiting their 

response. There is a clear, county-wide vision to develop Welsh in Education and effective 

collaboration is happening with committees working on specific projects and initiatives. 

The Welsh in Education Support Team now includes six members of staff who offer 

support and guidance to staff and schools in all sectors. The council’s officers have met 

with school leaders and shared development plans with all primary schools to assist them 

in their endeavours to increase Welsh provision and develop Welsh oracy skills. Progress 

in relation to Welsh medium provision in schools was also discussed at Performance 

Scrutiny in September. The main area of concern (a reduction in the percentage of 

learners who received education in year 2 in 2022 to 2023) was discussed. However, 

positively, Welsh medium pre-school education was reported to be thriving and over the 

summer of 2023, the Council was invited to submit business cases for capital funding of 

£5.8m for five projects to assist with Welsh Medium provision. The projects in four primary 

schools and the development of an immersion provision in Ysgol Brynhyfryd will assist in 

progressing towards these targets. Strong retention of pupils in Welsh Medium schools 

throughout their education is key to delivery of the plan together with the expansion of 

provision either via re-designation of the language category of schools or the development 

of new Welsh Medium schools where appropriate. To support this, investment in training 

programmes to ensure there is sufficient capacity for Welsh Medium teaching provision, 

including enhancing the Welsh Language skills of current second language staff, is key to 

the delivery of the plan. We are in continual dialogue with Welsh Government and will 

review our targets regularly. Furthermore, we are developing a new webpage that will 

promote the benefits of Welsh medium education and offer support and resources to 

families, which include a list of schools under the new categorisation, Welsh medium 

education myth busting, case studies and videos. We are developing the website with the 

Welsh Language Forum, and we will include links to advice and resources from other 

organisations. Menter Iaith Sir Ddinych has agreed to fund the production of a postcard 

containing a QR code to link to the website. This is an action from our Welsh Language 

Strategy. 

Tudalen 198

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6751&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6751&LLL=0


 
91 

Following approval of the Welsh Language Strategy 2023 to 2028 in June, officers have 

been developing ideas and guidance to inform recruitment of staff with Welsh essential 

and Welsh desirable skills. HR staff have attended a workshop with the Welsh Language 

Commissioner to get advice and guidance to help us comply with Welsh Language 

Standards. We would like to recruit more Welsh speaking staff, including more staff that 

are happy to identify some Welsh language skills and grow in confidence. The aim is to 

move to a position whereby every job has at least, as a minimum, a Level 1 Welsh 

language skills requirement (some positions will require a Level 5 skill). Guidance for 

managers is being produced and we are developing information for applicants outlining the 

skills required for each Level, and will outline the training and development opportunities 

we have in place to support and enable their progression. New starters and staff will be 

supported to develop their confidence and skills to achieve this. We want to see staff who 

would describe themselves as lacking confidence or fluency currently, having more 

informal conversations in Welsh and growing in confidence to write short emails in Welsh 

for example. Elected members and officers with fluent Welsh skills already discuss items 

at Committees through the medium of Welsh and we are seeing more members and 

officers who are learning making a commitment to introduce themselves and the item in 

question through the medium of Welsh. Furthermore, more staff have been learning entry 

level Welsh this year than any previous year, with 16 staff currently learning Welsh. 

Another course will start in October. Altogether there will be around 40 members of staff 

that have entered the entry level course. We have a learner’s agreement for managers 

and staff, and we ask that these are signed before staff undertake additional training. We 

will bolster this agreement to include measures to encourage staff to ensure they use their 

new learning after their course has finished. 

By the end of September 2023, 79.2% of staff had completed Welsh language awareness 

e-learning (a small decrease since June 2023) and is a ‘Priority for Improvement’. New 

starters are required to complete the e-learning module within their six month probationary 

period. We have interrogated our data and based on the period January to July 2023, 499 

staff had not completed the e-learning. 167 of those had joined in the period January to 

July 2023 and the remaining 332 had joined prior to 2023. This suggests that we need to 

ensure all staff undertake the training during their probationary period and support staff 

that have not yet completed it, to do so. Strengthening the induction process from a Welsh 

language perspective is a priority for the coming months. 

Tudalen 199

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6736&LLL=0


 
92 

During the period, we continued to run our ‘Paned a Sgwrs’ sessions, which are open, 

informal online meetings to give people an opportunity to practise using their Welsh. These 

will be suspended momentarily from October, due to staffing. On October 16, Diwrnod 

Owain Glyndwr, we created a fun quiz about Owain Glyndwr, Welsh, culture and heritage 

and shared a video we created about Owain Glyndwr and his association with Corwen and 

Denbighshire more widely. During the period, a meeting of the Welsh Language 

Champions took place. The Group has agreed to develop a video featuring children from 

across Denbighshire schools with the theme of the Rugby World Cup for Shwmae Su’mae 

Day on October 15.  

A workshop, due to take place before the end of the financial year, is being planned for all 

elected members to brief them on what the council is doing to promote Welsh in the 

county, e.g. through the Welsh Language Strategy and the Welsh in Education in Strategic 

Plan. 

Develop a cultural strategy and programme of events 

Our pledge to ‘Develop a cultural and heritage strategy and a programme of events’ 

remains on hold. We will develop a plan about how a cultural strategy, in the broadest 

sense, could connect and contribute to wider outcomes in terms of our economy and 

personal well-being for example. Despite this being on hold, the council continues to 

support and promote a wide range of cultural projects and events. For example, we are 

continuing to develop a planning application as part of the project to develop Bodelwyddan 

Castle as a Country Park and a gateway to Denbighshire. 

From October, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) will be inviting feedback on an initial Area 

of Search map for a proposed new National Park in North East Wales. The engagement 

period will run from October 9 until 23:59 on November 27, 2023. Welsh Government has 

commissioned NRW, as the Designating Authority in Wales, to evaluate the case for a new 

National Park based on the existing Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONB). The case for a new National Park will be considered within the 

existing Senedd term (2021 to 2026). A questionnaire to capture feedback is now live on 

the project website.  

We are also progressing with the Denbighshire Heritage Service Forward Plan for 2023 to 

2026 and are about to start wider staff consultation on the draft Plan. The Plan sets out 

our objectives, the resources we need, links to current heritage projects (including those 

funding by the Levelling Up Fund, the Shared Prosperity Fund and the Heritage Lottery 

Tudalen 200

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Fx_Z2SNvnJg
http://www.shwmae.cymru/?lang=en
http://www.shwmae.cymru/?lang=en
https://ymgynghori.cyfoethnaturiol.cymru/north-east-gogledd-ddwyrain/national-park-designation-project-engagement-2023


 
93 

Fund) and the costs of future projects. Throughout there is a focus on long term 

sustainability for all our heritage sites, in line with the Sustainable Development Principle. 

During the period, Nantclwyd y Dre was accredited as a Quality Assured Visitor Attraction 

and awarded, once again, Hidden Gem status following an assessment by Visit Wales. 

The Denbighshire Tourism Ambassador scheme gave a presentation to Llangollen 

Eisteddfod Welcome Host students in July and plans are progressing for Wales 

Ambassador Week, which is due to take place during 20 to 26 November. Activities will 

include an online event and sponsorship of the Skills Award at the Go North Wales 

Tourism Awards 2023. There are now 375 Bronze, 290 Silver and 265 Gold Level 

Ambassadors. 6,030,000 tourists visited Denbighshire in 2022, which is a significant 

increase on the 2020 figures (reflecting the disruption due to Covid-19 social distancing 

restrictions). The figure is the highest yet, since we started data collection in 2013. Ruthin 

Gaol has seen record high visitor numbers since its re-opening earlier in the year, with 

over 7,000 visitors so far (as at September 2023). The Gaol reopened on April 1st after 

two years’ flood renovation works. 

Whilst the activity to “Develop a new Library Strategy for Denbighshire reflecting the 

priorities and ambitions of the Corporate Plan and the Welsh Government Culture 

Strategy” is ‘Experiencing Obstacles’, Denbighshire Libraries continues to support this 

theme. At the start of the summer, Denbighshire Libraries launched an LGBTQ+ timeline, 

depicting important moments from history from the 1600s until the present day. The 

timeline was developed following training commissioned by the Welsh Government in 

2021 to encourage the celebration of local stories of sexual orientation and gender 

identity. The Timeline is now available online. During the summer holidays Denbighshire 

Libraries held another successful Summer Reading Challenge, themed around play, sport, 

games and physical activity. The Summer Reading Challenge has been running since 

1999 and helps to improve children’s reading skills and confidence over the summer 

holidays. Materials are available bilingually and the council encouraged families to take 

part to help children keep up with their Welsh skills over the summer holiday. In 

September, Denbighshire Libraries welcomed Waterstones Children’s Laureate (2022-

2024) Joseph Coelho to Denbigh Library as part of his nationwide ‘Library Marathon’ 

mission. The tour included a special event at Denbigh Library, where Coelho became a 

member of Denbighshire Libraries, borrowed a book, and read and performed his works 

for pupils of Ysgol Pendref. Library users can now borrow five brand new ‘Memory Boxes’, 

all set in the 1950s, which can be borrowed just like a book. Created by Making Sense 

Tudalen 201

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=195bb6dc-1e74-47c7-b227-339f4fe8d46a
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9ab12c49-e197-4de2-94a2-4c207a3c7a8d
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=9ab12c49-e197-4de2-94a2-4c207a3c7a8d
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/leisure-and-tourism/libraries/lgbtqplus-timeline/lgbtqplus-timeline.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=be16b7ff-76f6-40fe-8c90-9f97b4d032df
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=0079469e-0161-4dd6-819e-d1756d03972d


 
94 

CIO, and funded by Dementia Aware Denbighshire, these boxes contain carefully chosen 

items from the 1950s, designed to spark conversations and rekindle memories.  

Of importance to this theme are some of the successful Levelling Up Fund Projects 

relating to culture and heritage. Clwyd South Round 1 projects are already underway. The 

majority of works as part of the project at Plas Newydd, Llangollen to ‘Enhance the visitor 

experience to include improvements to the grounds’ are complete. Some remaining path 

work, planting, signage and interpretation is in progress. The Horseshoe Falls project will 

be undergoing its procurement phase between September and October. Clwyd West 

projects continue to be under development and remain at Project Brief stage. All projects 

have reviewed their delivery and financial profiles, and this has provided a more realistic 

timeframe for projects as requested by the UK Government. Most projects have design 

teams in place, initial surveys are underway and, in some cases, complete and awaiting 

final reports. Project Boards are in place for each of the projects with first meetings due to 

take place over the next quarter. Public engagement is slightly delayed and will start in 

November to December. Expected construction start dates are noted below. 

Working in partnership to deliver an improved and sustainable archive 

service for North Wales 

The Denbighshire and Flintshire Joint Archive Project continues to be ‘At Risk’, on the 

basis that funding has yet to be secured and therefore the funds are not in place to 

proceed as planned with the accommodation solution and the activity plan. Subject to the 

necessary approval from Cabinet, who now also wish to review alternative options in 

Denbighshire (Flintshire County Council’s Cabinet has endorsed the project in Mold), a 

funding application to the National Lottery Heritage Fund (Welsh capital grant funding) will 

be submitted in November 2023, and the outcome should be known some four months 

later. In the meantime, both archive services will continue to work collaboratively and 

develop the service under the North East Wales Archive brand. 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of Welsh language and culture (for example, 

our pledge to be close to our communities), please see our Well-Run, High Performing 

Council theme. 

Tudalen 202



 
95 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of staff 
that have completed 
Welsh Language 
Awareness e-learning - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

No data. 
New to 
quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

73%  

Priority to 
Improve 

80.3% 

Acceptable 

Better 

79.26% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

Measure: The number 
of Denbighshire 
Artisans supported 
(DLL Contract KPI) - 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data No data 55 (annual 
figure) 

Excellent 

30 

Excellent 

39 

Excellent 

Better 

Annual or Biennial Measures 

2019 to 2023 data 

Title 2019 to 2020 2022 to 2023 

Heritage income generated over the year (£) - 
Benchmarked Locally 

44,224 

Count only 

12,861 

Count only 

2021 to 2023 data 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage of year 1 pupils receiving 
Welsh medium education - Count Only 

27.4% 28.4% 

Thresholds 
pending 

STEAM - The number of tourists visiting 
Denbighshire - Benchmarked Locally 

4,350,000 

Acceptable 

Better 

6,030,000 

Excellent 

Better 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

Tudalen 203



 
96 

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that Denbighshire is a 
county where the Welsh language 
is a living, thriving language - 
Benchmarked Locally 

55% 33% 12% 62% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the rich cultural 
heritage and natural assets of 
Denbighshire are being used to 
their full potential - Benchmarked 
Locally 

44% 42% 14% 51% 

Acceptable 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Project Update 

This theme contains 18 projects and activities. Four have not yet started and are at project 

brief stage; one is on hold; ten are ‘On Target’; two are ‘Experiencing Obstacles’ and one 

is ‘At Risk’.  

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Implement the WESP to support 1 million 
speakers by 2050 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Deliver the Welsh Language Strategy 
2023-28 to promote and increase the use 
of Welsh in the county 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

Deliver the service delivery, policy making 
and operational standards of the Welsh 
Language Policy 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

SUGGESTED ACTIVITY: Develop a 
cultural and heritage strategy and a 
programme of events 

On hold To be scoped during 2023 
and 2024 

Develop phase 1 Bodelwyddan Castle as a 
Country Park and a gateway to 
Denbighshire 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

The original planning 
application received 
objections from CADW and 
Clwyd-Powys 
Archaeological Trust for 
certain elements of the 
project. A revised planning 

Tudalen 204



 
97 

Title Status Exception  

application is being 
developed before moving 
the delivery of the project 
from Royal Institute of 
British Architects (RIBA) 
Stage 2 onto RIBA Stages 
3 and 4. These stages are 
scheduled to be completed 
by the end of March 2024 
so that work on the ground 
commences in April 2024 
and is completed by 
December 2024. 

Work with partners on the proposed 
designation of a National Park in North 
East Wales 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Seek the designation of the AONB as a 
Dark Sky Community  

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop and deliver the Denbighshire 
Heritage Service Forward Plan 2023 to 
2026 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop and deliver the Ambassador 
Scheme in Denbighshire and across Wales 
in partnership 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Develop a new Library Strategy for 
Denbighshire reflecting the priorities and 
ambitions of the Corporate Plan and the 
Welsh Government Culture Strategy 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Welsh Government’s 
Cultural Strategy has not 
yet been published and is 
expected during 2024 to 
2025. 

Support and implement the National Music 
Service 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Plas Newydd, Llangollen: Enhance the 
visitor experience to include improvements 
to the grounds (Clwyd South Levelling Up 
Round 1) 

On Target No exception 

Horseshoe Falls (Clwyd South Levelling 
Up Round 2) 

On Target 

 

No exception 

Ruthin Clock Tower: Renovation of Clock 
Tower exterior (Clwyd West Levelling Up 
Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

Works expected to 
commence from May 
2024. 

Tudalen 205



 
98 

Title Status Exception  

Ruthin Gaol/46 Clwyd Street, Ruthin: 
Premises restoration including new access 
and improved public facilities (Clwyd West 
Levelling Up Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

Works expected to 
commence from November 
2024. 

Nant Clwyd-y-Dre, Ruthin: Restoration to 
the Grade 1 listed building (Clwyd West 
Levelling Up Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

Works expected to 
commence from November 
2024. 

Cae Ddol, Ruthin: Public Realm Upgrade 
and connect to the heritage theme (Clwyd 
West Levelling Up Round 2) 

At project brief 
stage 

Works expected to 
commence from July 2025. 

Denbighshire and Flintshire Joint Archive 
Project 

At Risk 

Same 

Funding has yet to be 
secured. Funds are not in 
place to proceed as 
planned with the 
accommodation solution 
and the activity plan. 

A round up of news 

The following additional news and committee items took place between July and 

September in support of this theme: 

In August, the council showcased some of its campaigns and services at the Denbigh and 

Flint 2023 show. The Climate Change Programme team were on hand to talk about how 

the council is working to tackle the impact of climate and ecological change. Tourism 

teams promoted their sustainable work in the Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty; Working Denbighshire promoted their role in helping young 

people get into work; and Archives staff offered people the opportunity to see how the 

county had changed over time. Flintshire County Council staff were also on hand 

promoting fostering, early years support and support for people with disabilities.  

In August, families were invited to attend a free event to turn marine sourced litter into 

artwork. The session was led by artist Tim Pugh, an environmental artist based in 

Flintshire who works with a wide range of mixed materials and media to create drawings 

and temporary installations. 

An exhibition, part of the Our Picturesque Landscape project funded by the National 

Lottery Heritage Fund, opened at the Dory Gallery in Llangollen this September. Following 

a rich tradition of the Dee Valley inspiring artists, poets and tourists for centuries, the 

Tudalen 206

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6070f1b2-d191-4079-8d11-2d21fc0a5b87
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6070f1b2-d191-4079-8d11-2d21fc0a5b87
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f8908d95-4f61-49bd-bc8b-e3fe424baa29
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=f8908d95-4f61-49bd-bc8b-e3fe424baa29
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=015fd069-ca5b-4fc3-aa20-1f4604ce5f44


 
99 

exhibition will host over sixty contemporary works of art inspired by the picturesque 

scenery of the Dee Valley. 

In August, a member of the public donated a portrait of the family of Private Henry Jones, 

of Mwrog Street, Ruthin, who lost his life during The First World War. The North East 

Wales Archives in Ruthin already held a collection of postcards and letters sent by the 

Royal Welsh Fusilier from The Front and researchers can now put a face to a name with a 

picture of his wife and children.  

In September, North East Wales Archives in Ruthin hosted a free ‘open doors’ event 

welcoming visitors to explore some of the historical photographs in the collection. The 

event included activities for families, including Cyanotype printing with a local artist. A 

guest exhibition by local photographer Jac Williams was also held, named “Honest 

Agriculture”.  

 

  

Tudalen 207

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=bda34210-c837-44f7-bcd5-9503c6c66d02
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=bda34210-c837-44f7-bcd5-9503c6c66d02
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/news/news-detail.aspx?article=6fe0bcbe-b653-455a-9213-27b42f94bfc2


 
100 

A well-run, high performing council 

Measures:  Acceptable 

Projects:  Experiencing Obstacles 

Corporate Plan Update 

This section relates to our Corporate Plan pledges for this theme. There is, inevitably, 

some cross over with the seven governance areas. For transparency, our self-assessment 

as to how well we are performing specifically in each of the seven governance areas can 

be found in the Self-Assessment: Governance Areas section.  

As we explained in our previous report, we have held discussions to determine the right 

strategic set of measures and activity to monitor through these performance reports. There 

is though, still some work to do before a final indicator set, which should include qualitative 

measures better suited to this theme, which is about our organisational culture.  

The new Well-Run, High Performing Council Board, providing governance for this theme, 

will be established in October 2023. At the time of writing this update, the Board had met 

and agreed a way forward to progress the theme’s five pledges, which are aligned to our 

Council’s five Principles. A full update on that will be included in our next update report, 

but for now, some changes to this theme’s pledges have been requested. These changes 

offer an expansion and clarification on each pledge. Approval for these wording changes 

will be sought from County Council as part of our Self-Assessment Report for the year in 

spring 2024.  

Embed a positive culture of ambition, transparency and continuous 

improvement 

For this pledge, the Board is requesting to add additional wording (Instilling a “one council” 

ethos), which it believes captures the overall ethos of theme 9.  

In July, the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) attended Governance and Audit Committee to 

present the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2022 to 2023. The council has a 

statutory duty to publish an AGS and forms part of the Statement of Accounts. The AGS is 

drawn up following evaluation of the council’s governance functions, using information 

from the self-assessment and reports presented to committees throughout the year. The 

following key improvement actions were identified: 

Tudalen 208

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&LLL=0


 
101 

 Review and update the Officers’ Code of Conduct and the process for recording 

and capturing the response taken to declarations of interest, gifts and hospitality. 

 Workforce capacity and resilience and reliance on key positions. 

 Review the Whistleblowing Policy. 

 Address exceptions, exemptions and variations from Contract Procedure Rules 

(CPRs). 

 Continuing budget pressures and uncertainty over funding. Also, address any 

actions arising from the review of the Financial Management Code. 

 Uncertainty over future funding arrangements following EU Exit. 

The delivery of these actions will be monitored by the Governance and Audit Committee, 

and the Corporate Governance Officers Group. 

In September, the Corporate Director: Governance and Business presented a draft annual 

report of the Governance and Audit Committee for the same committee’s approval, prior to 

the report being submitted to Council for approval in November 2023. The report covers 

the periods 2020 to 2021, 2021 to 2022 and 2022 to 2023 and summarises the 

composition of the committee and its work. The edition of this report to be presented next 

year (in respect of 2023 to 2024), as well as setting out how the Committee has met its 

terms of reference, will also include the results of the Committee’s annual self-evaluation 

of its effectiveness against the ‘Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities 

and Police’ and associated guidance, which was published by the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy in 2022. This will enable the Committee to raise any 

concerns it may have had during the year, what it has done to escalate these and/or make 

recommendations as necessary. 

Again in September, the annual report of the council’s Scrutiny Committees 2022 to 2023 

was presented to Council for approval. The report outlined processes, summarised the 

work undertaken during the year, outcomes from Scrutiny and requests from residents. 

One of the main objectives of the scrutiny process is to add value and to try and ensure 

that decisions taken by the Council have a positive impact on the lives of people who live, 

work and visit Denbighshire. The report gave on example of a positive outcome whereby a 

Moorlands Management Officer role was established as a direct result of a 

recommendation made by Communities Scrutiny Committee. This post was established in 

2020 following the Committee’s Review into the Llantysilio Mountain Fire 2019. An update 

report was presented to the Committee in March 2023 highlighting the positive impact of 

having a Moorland Officer fostering good relationships and co-ordinating multi-agency and 

Tudalen 209

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6776&LLL=0


 
102 

stakeholder working in relation fire response plans and habitat/fuel load management over 

key areas of the Clwydian Range, Llantysilio Mountain and Llandegla Moor. 

Robust whistleblowing arrangements support good governance throughout the council, 

which in turn enables effective delivery of priorities. To support this the Monitoring Officer 

gave a report in September to the Governance and Audit Committee about the operation 

of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy during January 2021 and April 2023. During this 

period, six new concerns had been raised. The report was sensitive and restricted. 

We have, in this period, confirmed arrangements for the Panel Performance Assessment 

with Governance and Audit Committee. The Local Government and Elections (Wales) 

Act 2021 places a duty on councils to arrange for a panel to undertake and respond to a 

corporate, organisational level assessment, of the extent to which the council is meeting 

its performance requirements. Responsibility for these assessments has been agreed as 

sitting with the Corporate Executive Team and a constitutional amendment is being 

sought to reflect the duty. We will be meeting with the Welsh Local Government 

Association in October to discuss practical arrangements for the Panel Performance 

Assessment. 

Be close to our communities 

The Board has requested that an additional sub-pledge be added here (“Empowering 

and enabling our communities by encouraging community leadership and community 

resilience”), to capture the support the council offers to communities across the county. 

During the period, we have been finalising our draft Public Participation Strategy and 

Engagement Policy ready to seek approval from the Special Democratic Services 

committee in November. The Public Participation Strategy is a legislative requirement 

under the Local Government and Elections Act (Wales) 2021, which requires principal 

authorities to have a strategy promoting ways to raise awareness of the council’s 

functions, how to become a councillor, and how to get involved in local decision-making 

processes. Our Engagement Policy will set out best practice and the Strategy will focus 

our efforts on areas for improvement, which should complement other objectives such as 

equalities and diversity.  

The council’s new Procurement strategy was approved by Cabinet in September. Five 

collaborative procurements were awarded during the period, and no collaborative 

Tudalen 210

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&LLL=0


 
103 

procurement opportunities were missed. For more detailed information about performance 

in relation to procurement (the council’s spend with local suppliers and contracts 

containing community benefits), please see our prosperous theme and governance 

section about procurement.  

Following the tranche review, thresholds for the percentage of negative news stories about 

the council have been reviewed and adjusted. ‘Priority for Improvement’ was previously 

considered to be 7% or below, which is felt to be unrealistic given news tends to have a 

negative bias. The threshold has therefore been changed to 31% or above. These new 

thresholds have been applied to data points since the start of the new Corporate Plan 

(October 2022). The percentage of negative news stories about the council (taken as a 

proportion of all news stories about the council) has decreased from 12.5% to 5.3% this 

period, and is considered ‘Excellent’.  

The percentage of external complaints upheld or partly upheld over the last quarter has 

increased from 29% to 55%.  This represents 33 from 60 complaints upheld or partly 

upheld and is considered ‘Acceptable’. In July, the Head of Adult Social Care and 

Homelessness presented the Your Voice Complaints report for 2022 to 2023 to 

Governance and Audit Committee. The report captures any compliments, suggestions and 

complaints received by Denbighshire County Council under the council’s customer 

feedback policy. The report also included Social Services complaints received under its 

statutory complaints procedure. The Committee was briefed on the role of the Complaints 

Standards Authority, which has responsibility for monitoring all complaints received about 

councils in Wales. The council had recently received the Ombudsman’s draft report for 

Denbighshire that stated they had received 32 complaints in the previous year but had 

only intervened in two of those complaints; both of which were resolved informally. 

Whilst ‘On Target’, the activity to ‘Implement the new requirements of the UK Elections Act 

2022 and other electoral reform’ is worth noting as challenging. The pace, scale and 

diversity of the electoral reform programmes from the Welsh and UK Governments pose a 

considerable challenge and risk to every principal council. The council has taken steps to 

strengthen its core electoral team and is keeping pace with the various timescales for 

implementation of the measures including voter identification and reform to absent voting 

and oversees voters. During this period, the electoral team has continued to undertake 

training and engage in national and regional discussions on electoral reform 

implementation activities. The second tranche of the Elections Act reforms will be 

implemented from October 2023, and these bring with them significant complications and 

Tudalen 211

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&LLL=0


 
104 

risks. For this reason, we will monitor this risk closely through our Corporate Support 

Service: People Risk Register. 

Have clear performance expectations 

Following resumption of our Service Performance Challenge, the Board has suggested 

we add delivery of those challenges to this pledge.  

The challenges are instrumental in ensuring accountability of and support to services, 

and for shaping a collective understanding of our strengths, weaknesses, opportunities 

and threats. An action to improve the way services work with our customer service system 

was agreed following the Service Performance Challenge for Highways and Environmental 

Services. Continuing to engage with members and ensure they are kept informed was 

identified as continually important during the Planning, Public Protection and Countryside 

Service Performance Challenge. These align with the other pledges within this theme and 

will be explored further by our new Well-Run, High Performing Council Board. 

We have received no formal recommendations for improvement from external regulators 

(Estyn, Care Inspectorate Wales and Audit Wales). There have been no low assurance 

reports in this period from Internal Audit.  Between April and September, seven of the ten 

Internal Audit reviews published had a high assurance level; the remaining three had a 

medium assurance level. The Annual Governance Statement for 2022 to 2023 found that 

none of the referrals made to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales during the year 

were upheld. 

The Head of Education attended Governance and Audit Committee in September to 

discuss the report following the joint Inspectorate Review of Child Protection 

Arrangements (JICPA) that took place in Denbighshire in February 2023, involving Care 

Inspectorate Wales (CIW), Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and 

Rescue Services (HMICFRS), Healthcare Inspectorate Wales (HIW), and Estyn. The 

report was presented to the Committee as a confidential Part 2 item.  

Audit Wales shared with Governance and Audit Committee its Assurance and Risk 

Assessment report for the audit year 2021 to 2022. The review focused on the implications 

of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 (including self-assessment 

arrangements), and carbon reduction plans. Audit Wales made the following 

recommendation: “The Council needs to fully cost its action plan to ensure the plan is 

Tudalen 212

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&LLL=0
https://www.hiw.org.uk/we-have-published-our-joint-review-child-protection-arrangements-jicpa-denbighshire#:~:text=JICPA)%20in%20Denbighshire-,We%20have%20published%20our%20joint%20review,protection%20arrangements%20(JICPA)%20in%20Denbighshire&text=The%20joint%20inspection%20took%20place%20in%20February%202023.
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&LLL=0


 
105 

achievable. This should include detailed costings for the period covered by the Medium 

Term Financial Plan and broader estimates for the remainder of the plan.” 

Our measure on budget variance for the period (i.e. what we have and receive versus 

what we are spending) was £3.119million. The council’s reserves remained at 

£5.531million. 

As reported previously, we have started to monitor the revenue outturn expenditure per 

head of population, which we benchmark nationally. Data for 2022 to 2023 has not yet 

been published nationally and will be available in our next report. Whilst this is a single 

crude measure that could warrant being examined alongside council tax rates for example, 

it does offer a lens into a debate about value for money, which is one of the pledges within 

this theme; a pledge that will be scoped further by the new Board. 

Our Corporate Risk Register, as at February 2023, had a total of 20 risks on the register, 

11 of which are inconsistent with our risk appetite (55%). This is considered to be a 

‘Priority for Improvement’. Our review of the Register commenced in September 2023, with 

reports scheduled to be presented to Cabinet Briefing, Governance and Audit Committee 

and Performance Scrutiny in November. Whilst not yet signed off, as at September, 54% 

of our corporate risks are inconsistent with the council’s risk appetite statement. 

All projects were updated during the period, and performance is ‘Excellent’.  This is an 

improvement of 1.9% on the last reporting period.  There were no projects presenting as 

‘Compromised’. Just under half (46.2%) of all Corporate Plan measures were showing as 

a ‘Priority for Improvement’ during July to September, which is considered ‘Acceptable’. 

Promote strong staff and elected member relations 

On reflection, a fundamental element of this pledge is missing from our description and for 

this reason, the Board has requested the following additional wording: “Having good 

communication and close working relationships between elected members and officers”. 

In July, County Council was asked for its view and direction on the requirements for 

member training. The report asked for Council’s support for mandatory training in respect 

of the Members’ Code of Conduct, any other training that should be mandatory; timescales 

for completion; and sanctions for non-compliance (and exemptions). It was agreed that 

member training be added to the next Group Leaders meeting and be brought back to a 

future Council meeting.   

Tudalen 213

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6748&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6775&LLL=0


 
106 

The Standards Committee assured Council in September that it had taken a proactive role 

over the year in ensuring compliance with the Code of Conduct and ethical behaviour 

along the Nolan Principles of Public Life, which also reflect our four values. A key role for 

the Committee going forward will be receiving an annual report from each Group Leader 

on the efforts being made that contribute to compliance with their new duty to take 

reasonable steps to promote and maintain high standards of conduct of their members 

under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. A new group, the Ethical 

Liaison Group, has been established and will meet regularly to discuss behaviour as part 

of the new duty placed upon political group leaders to promote ethical behaviour. 

Ensure Denbighshire County Council is a good employer and is an excellent 

place to work 

As at September 2023, the percentage of staff who were eligible for and who had at least 

one or three one-to-one meetings in the last 12 months stood at 56%, down from 58% in 

the last period. This is a rolling total. Following the Service Performance Challenges that 

have already taken place, it is apparent we need a wider action to ensure all staff have 

regular one-to-one meetings. It may be that these meetings are taking place but are not 

being recorded. This will be explored further by our new Well-Run, High Performing 

Council Board. Given the importance of one-to-one meetings the Board has asked for an 

explicit reference to “ensuring all staff have regular one-to-one meetings with their line 

manager” within this pledge. 

Sickness absence data for the period April to June 2023 is now available and stood at 

8.83 days per full time equivalent. Performance remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’ this 

period, at 8.82 days.  We will review our performance thresholds once national 

benchmarking data is available with one year’s worth of data unaffected by Covid-19-

related restrictions.  

The percentage of employees that have completed all 9 mandatory e-learning modules 

(excluding schools) stood at 49.8% at September (slightly less that the 51% in the 

previous period) and remains a ‘Priority for Improvement’. From this period onwards we 

will monitor this annually instead of quarterly. We are anticipating that this data will start to 

look very different as we start to look at whether courses are overdue and not just 

completed. For this reason, we anticipate that the percentage of staff that have completed 

the mandatory e-learning will dip. HR will monitor completion rates closely through their 

monthly reporting systems. 

Tudalen 214

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6776&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=23270&LLL=-1
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=23270&LLL=-1


 
107 

This theme has, up until now, included two measures of staff turnover: the percentage of 

employees who leave Denbighshire as a percentage of the total workforce excluding 

schools, and the percentage including schools. On the basis that the latter measure, which 

includes schools, has been harder to obtain national comparative data for, we will focus in 

future on the measure that excludes schools. As for sickness absence, we will review our 

thresholds for performance in relation to staff turnover in April 2024. 

Performance Framework: Measures Update 

For further measures and activity in support of procurement and community benefits, 

please see the Prosperous theme. 

Quarterly or Biannual Measures 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The percentage of 
Corporate Plan 
Measures showing as 
‘Priority for 
Improvement’ – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

51% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Same 

No data: 
does not 
apply 

49.5% 

Acceptable 

Better 

 

48.3% 

Acceptable 

Better 

46.2% 

Acceptable 

Better 

The number of projects 
on the project register 
showing as 
‘Compromised’ – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

2 

Acceptable 

Worse 

1 

Good 

Better 

1 

Good 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Better 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

The percentage of 
projects whose 
delivery confidence 
was updated in the last 
three months – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

100% 

Excellent 

Better 

95% 

Good 

Worse 

96% 

Good 

Improved 

96% 

Good 

Same 

100% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of 
corporate risks 
inconsistent with the 
council’s risk appetite 
statement – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

55% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

No data: 
does not 
apply 

55% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Same 

No data: 
does not 
apply 

54%  

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

Tudalen 215



 
108 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The cumulative 
number of negative 
reports from external 
regulators – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

0 0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

The cumulative 
number of Internal 
Audit low assurance 
reports, financial year 
to date – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

0 0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

0 

Excellent 

Same 

Corporate and Service 
Budget Variance (£k) – 
Count Only 

2,661 2,189 1,585 3,348 3,119 

Council reserves (£k) – 
Count Only 

7,135 7,135 5,531 5,531 5,531 

Negative news stories 
as a percentage of all 
news stories about the 
council – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

11% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

12% 

Excellent 

Worse 

14% 

Excellent 

Worse 

12.5%  

Excellent 

Better 

5.3% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of 
external complaints 
upheld or partly upheld 
over the last quarter – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

67% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

53% 

Acceptable 

Better 

42% 

Good 

Better 

29% 

Excellent 

Better 

55% 

Acceptable 

Wrose 

The percentage of 
Members that have 
completed Code of 
Conduct training – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

No data. 
New to 
2023 to 
2024 

100% 

Excellent 

98% 

Excellent 

Worse 

Tudalen 216



 
109 

Title Quarter 2 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 3 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 4 
2022 to 
2023 

Quarter 1 
2023 to 
2024 

Quarter 2 
2023 to 
2024 

The rolling average 
The number of working 
days / shifts per full 
time equivalent (FTE) 
local authority 
employee lost due to 
sickness absence – 
Benchmarked 
Nationally 

10 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

 

9.8 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

9.8 

Priority to 
Improve 

Same 

8.83 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

8.82 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

The percentage of staff 
who are eligible for 
one or three one-to-
ones and who have 
had at least one or 
three one-to-ones in 
the last 12 months (by 
person) – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

52% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

53% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

61% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

58% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

56% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of staff 
for whom we have 
equality monitoring 
information – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

76% 

Excellent 

Better 

72% 

Excellent 

Worse 

71.5% 

Excellent 

Worse 

 

67% 

Excellent 

Worse 

69.4% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of 
employees that have 
completed all 9 
mandatory e-learning 
modules by the end of 
the year (excluding 
schools) – 
Benchmarked 
Locally 

No data No data 49% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

51% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Better 

49.8% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Worse 

The number of actual 
collaborative 
procurements – Count 
Only 

2 1 2 0 5 

The number of missed 
collaborative 
procurements – Count 
Only 

0 0 1 1 0 

Tudalen 217



 
110 

Annual or biennial measures 

2019 to 2022 data 

Title 2019 to 
2020 

2020 to 
2021 

2021 to 
2022 

The percentage of new appointees from 
applications where it was disclosed that they 
are either from a racial or religious minority 
group, have a disability, are gay or bi-sexual, 
or had their gender reassigned – Count Only 

15% 4% 21% 

2021 to 2023 data 

Title 2021 to 2022 2022 to 2023 

The percentage difference in the mean 
hourly rate of pay for women – 
Benchmarked Locally 

6.7% 

Acceptable 

-13.4% 

Excellent 

Better 

The percentage of the lowest paid 
salaries (bottom quarter) that are 
women – Benchmarked Locally 

79.3% 

Priority to Improve 

Better 

80.7% 

Priority to Improve 

Worse 

The percentage of attendance by 
elected members (expected and 
present), year to date - Benchmarked 
Locally 

89% 84% 

Good 

Worse 

The percentage of employees who 
leave Denbighshire as a percentage of 
the total workforce (excluding schools) 
– Benchmarked Nationally 

10.6% 

Good 

Worse 

12.4% 

Acceptable 

Worse 

Revenue outturn expenditure per head 
of population (£s) - Count Only 

2,913.25 

Thresholds pending 

Data pending. Available 
November 2023 

Stakeholder Survey 2022 to 2023 

We have amended the way we analyse Stakeholder Survey responses to include a status 

for those who expressed an opinion and agree (we previously included “Don’t know” and 

“No Opinion or Unsure” responses in our analysis).  

 

Tudalen 218



 
111 

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council is 
transparent, well-run, and high 
performing – Benchmarked 
Locally 

41% 42%  17% 49% 

Priority to 
Improve 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council works 
well with partners – Benchmarked 
Locally 

41% 

 

15% 44% 74% 

Good 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that there is a good 
working relationship between 
political leaders and senior 
management – Benchmarked 
Locally 

29% 

 

24% 47% 55% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council 
manages its performance well – 
Benchmarked Locally 

42% 

 

38% 20% 53% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council 
manages its risks and challenges 
well – Benchmarked Locally 

42% 

 

34% 24% 55% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council 
manages its finances well – 
Benchmarked Locally 

37% 

 

41% 22% 48% 

Priority to 
Improve 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council has 
effective long-term plans in place – 
Benchmarked Locally 

38% 

 

30% 32% 56% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council treats 
its workforce well – Benchmarked 
Locally 

48% 16% 36% 76%  

Excellent 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council makes 
best use of its assets and 
resources – Benchmarked 
Locally 

28% 52% 20% 35% 

Priority to 
Improve 

Tudalen 219



 
112 

Title Agree Disagree No opinion 
or unsure 

With an 
opinion, and 
agree 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council 
purchases its goods and services 
in a fair and efficient way – 
Benchmarked Locally 

28% 25% 47% 54% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council acts on 
the concerns of residents – 
Benchmarked Locally 

39% 42% 19% 48% 

Priority to 
Improve 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council treats 
all people fairly – Benchmarked 
Locally 

42% 31% 27% 58% 

Acceptable 

The percentage of stakeholders 
who agree that the council’s 
Corporate Plan and priorities 
reflect the needs of the local 
community - Benchmarked 
Locally 

37% 36% 27% 51% 

Acceptable 

Corporate Plan Performance Framework: Projects Update 

There are 20 projects of activities in support of this theme. Currently, nine activities are ‘On 

Target’, six are ‘Experiencing Obstacles’, two are complete and three are on hold. Our 

next report will include an update on progress of the Well-Run, High Performing Council 

Board in respect of the theme’s five pledges. 

Projects or Activities 

Title Status Exception  

Prepare for Peer Review for Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 
2021 

On Target 

Better 

No exception 

SUGGESTED ACTIVITY: Develop and 
launch a new customer service framework 
(linked to our Welsh Language Strategy 
and Policy) 

On hold This is on hold. Task and 
finish groups for each of 
the five pledges within this 
theme have been 
established and will be 
considering this over the 
coming six months. 

Tudalen 220



 
113 

Title Status Exception  

SUGGESTED ACTIVITY: Procure a new 
corporate CRM (timescale 2025) 

On hold This is on hold. Task and 
finish groups for each of 
the five pledges within this 
theme have been 
established and will be 
considering this over the 
coming six months. 

Implement the Public Participation Strategy On Target A draft strategy will be 
taken for approval to the 
Special Democratic 
Services committee in 
November. 

Develop a co-production strategy (DCC 
wide) 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

Currently looking at 
models used by other local 
authorities and seeking to 
make contact with co-
production network Wales 
from October 2023. We 
are looking at how this 
links to, and can support 
delivery of, the Corporate 
Plan themes. 

Update the procurement strategy (to 
become a new project: Implement the new 
procurement strategy to deliver 
decarbonisation and the principles of the 
Social Partnership and Public Procurement 
(Wales) Bill) 

Complete No exception 

Develop and secure Asset Management 
Group adoption of new Asset Management 
Strategy 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

The first revised portfolio 
plan was planned to be 
reported to the Asset 
Management Group in 
September but has been 
postponed until November. 
Portfolio plans will inform 
the development of the 
new Asset Management 
Strategy. It is anticipated 
that the next phase of the 
project will look at the 
council’s office estate, i.e. 
what it needs and where, 
as part of the New Ways of 
Working project. 

Develop and deliver portfolio plans to 
determine the shape, size and future use 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Work has commenced on 
the remaining portfolio 

Tudalen 221



 
114 

Title Status Exception  

of assets for each of the council's asset 
management portfolios 

Worse plans and these will be 
presented to Asset 
Management Group over 
the remainder of the year. 
This is also subject to 
delay following 
postponement of the report 
to Asset Management 
Group from September to 
November. 

Undertake an annual review of the 
Corporate Workforce Plan 2022 to 2027 

On Target Workforce planning will 
commence once all new 
Heads of Service are in 
post, which is expected to 
be November 2023. 

SUGGESTED ACTIVITY: Ensure value for 
money is embedded within our 
organisational culture, and that decisions 
are balanced by considering service quality 
and social value. 

On hold This suggested activity is 
on hold. Task and finish 
groups for each of the five 
pledges within this theme 
have been established and 
will be considering this 
over the coming six 
months. 

Establish the Ethical Liaison Group Completed The Group has been 
established and will be 
meeting on a regular basis. 

Update the Members' Code of Conduct to 
include a timeframe within which Members 
are expected to have completed Code of 
Conduct training 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Better 

A report will be taken to 
Council in the autumn of 
2023. 

Develop a framework to guide councillors 
in handling harassment, abuse and 
intimidation 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Implement the new requirements of the UK 
Elections Act 2022  and other electoral 
reform 

On Target No exception 

Ensure that the Constitution is fit for 
purpose following the changes brought 
about by the Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act 2021 

On Target No exception 

Raise awareness of mental health issues 
across the council through delivery and 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Tudalen 222



 
115 

Title Status Exception  

embedding of the Time to Change action 
plan 

Embed the new agile working policy and 
support any learning and development 
needs from it 

On Target 

Same 

No exception 

Improve the information we have about our 
workforce, including equality information, 
to support more detailed analyses in future 
Public Sector Duty Reports 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Same 

A data collection survey 
will be launched during 
October to December to 
ensure that we have as 
much data in the HR 
system as possible. 

Deliver the action plan of the Social Care 
Recruitment and Retention Operational 
group 

Experiencing 
Obstacles 

Worse 

Continuing to formalise 
‘Home grown’ route for 
Occupational Therapy with 
partners, and working with 
colleges to provide local 
authority and provider 
placements as a route into 
employment. Social Care 
Wales Workforce 
Development Programme 
Partnership Coordinator 
post is currently being 
advertised and some 
activity is on hold. 

3rd Generation - North Wales Construction 
Framework 

On Target No exception 

Self-Assessment: Governance Areas 

The following is our self-assessment against the seven key governance areas and seeks 

to paint a picture of how well the council is performing, how we know that (linking to 

evidence where it is available), and what we can do to improve. Our news round up is 

included in each governance section. 

Corporate Planning 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Corporate Planning is about how the council sets out and makes 

arrangements to deliver on its strategic objectives. 

Tudalen 223



 
116 

Corporate Plan Governance Arrangements 

Final arrangements concerning the governance of the 2022 to 2027 Corporate Plan were 

shared with County Council in July. Subsequently, the Strategic Planning and 

Performance Team have been working with the Chief Executive, corporate directors and 

cabinet members to agree programme definition documents and a forward programme of 

meetings for the five Boards, namely: 

 Housing and Homelessness Board 

 Prosperous Denbighshire Board 

 Greener Denbighshire Board 

 Fairer, Safe and more Equal Board 

 Well-Run, High Performing Council Board 

For those themes that are not overseen by a Board (Healthier, Happier and Caring 

Denbighshire; Learning and Growing Denbighshire; Better Connected Denbighshire; and 

A Denbighshire of Vibrant Culture and Welsh Language) quarterly meetings have been 

arranged between Strategic Planning and Performance Officers and the relevant Cabinet 

member and Corporate Executive Team leads to monitor performance and identify areas 

for improvement. These arrangements are in addition to regular quarterly reporting through 

the Senior Leadership Team, Cabinet and Performance Scrutiny, our annual Self-

Assessment to Governance and Audit Committee and County Council, and six monthly 

tranche reviews with all Heads of Service and Cabinet members. 

Corporate Plan Tranche Review 

In September, Cabinet and the Senior Leadership Team held its second tranche review on 

the Corporate Plan, which focussed on reviewing performance information put forward in 

the annual Self-Assessment of Performance Report (the first report based on the new 

Corporate Plan Performance Management Framework). The meeting identified a number 

of actions for the new Corporate Plan Boards and strategic leads to explore and take 

forward, but discussion focussed primarily on the need to be clear about our performance 

expectations and the accuracy of our reporting. In the present financial context, it is 

important that the council keeps under review the relevance of the performance measures 

that it uses, the appropriateness of agreed thresholds, and particularly the viability of 

projects. 

Tudalen 224

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6775&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
117 

Senior Leadership Team 

Further appointment panels took place in July for the three remaining vacant Head of 

Service posts. Catrin Roberts was confirmed as the new Head of Corporate Support 

Service: People; Helen Vaughan-Evans as the new Head of Corporate Support Service: 

Performance Digital and Assets; and Elizabeth Thomas as the new Head of Finance and 

Audit. These appointments conclude the restructure of the Senior Leadership Team. For 

more information on the new structure, visit our website. 

Agree and implement a whole council approach to New Ways of Working 

Following the restructure of the Senior Leadership Team, responsibility for the New Ways 

of Working project has now moved to the Corporate Director for Governance and 

Business. It is anticipated that the next phase of the project will look at the council’s office 

estate, i.e. what it needs and where. 

Respond to the requirements of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) 

Act 2021. 

Following the publication of the WLGA's methodology in June, and our initial discussions 

around arrangements for the Panel Performance Assessment with the Corporate 

Executive Team and Cabinet, we have in this period tabled a paper with the Governance 

and Audit Committee to seek their recommendation to amend the council’s constitution. 

This is to provide clarity around the matter of local choice allowed in the legislation 

concerning responsibility for the assessment process - i.e. whether it sits with the 

Executive team or with County Council. The proposal that the Executive be responsible 

was accepted, and a recommendation for a constitutional amendment will be tabled with 

County Council in November. In the meantime, having also had a steer on preferred 

timetabling and approach, we can now progress discussions with the WLGA around 

practical arrangements. An initial meeting has been scheduled for late October. A 

procurement exception is also being sought through legal and procurement teams. 

Financial Planning 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Financial planning relates to the management of our income and expenditure. 

Tudalen 225

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-council/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/management-structure.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&Ver=4&LLL=0


 
118 

Finance Update Reports 

At its meetings in July and September, Cabinet received an update on the council’s 

financial position. The net revenue budget for 2023 to 2024 was £250.793million (up from 

233.696million in 2022 to 2023). The position on service and corporate budgets was a 

forecast overspend of £3.119million (2.395million overspend last month).  The increase 

was mainly due to additional pressures within children social care and homelessness. 

Services were prompted to review all the expenditure and income in their areas to mitigate 

the impact of the overall budget overspend. The budget mitigation reserve could cover this 

overspend in the current year, however that would reduce the resources available to meet 

unforeseen pressures in future years. The 2023 to 2024 budget required service savings 

and efficiencies of £8.172million to be identified and these are assumed to have been 

achieved. At the end of August, the council’s borrowing totalled £264.454million at an 

average rate of 4.28%. Investment balances were £10.7million at an average rate of 

3.53%. 

In the report, the budget for Education and Children’s Services remained as an area of 

concern as the forecast overspend was £1.041million, mainly due to pressures in 

children’s social care. The Adult Social Care and Homelessness Service budget also 

remained a high-risk area; with the outturn prediction being £2.152million due to pressures 

in placement costs (£1.3million) and (£0.9million) in homelessness. For schools, the 

budget agreed by the County Council for 2023 to 2024 included a total net additional 

investment (excluding increases in Welsh Government grants) in schools delegated 

budgets of £3.03million. The latest projection for school balances to be carried forward into 

2024 to 2025 is a net credit balance of £2.624million, which represents a decrease of 

£6.315million on the balances brought forward into 2023 to 2024 of £8.939million. The 

high opening balances were mainly due to receipt of one-off funding to be spent on catch-

up and recovery programmes in school. There is a small underspend of £162,000 on non-

delegated school budgets. Corporate budgets were projected to break-even in the report, 

however, risks around pay settlements, energy and other inflationary pressures were 

highlighted as requiring close monitoring in future months due to it being difficult to 

quantify them at this early stage of the year. 

With regards to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), the latest revenue position 

assumed a decrease in balances at year end of £804,000 compared to £922,000 at the 

time the budget was approved. The decrease related to a reduction in estimated rental 

income, offset by a reduced contribution to the HRA capital programme. HRA balances are 

Tudalen 226

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6737&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6738&LLL=0


 
119 

therefore forecast to be £764,000 at the end of the year. The Capital budget of £24million 

is largely allocated between planned improvements to existing housing stock (£12million) 

and new build developments and acquisitions (£12million). 

The report also gives a summary of the council’s Capital Plan. The approved capital plan 

is £113.2million, with expenditure to date of £25.1million.  

Statement of Accounts 

The council has a statutory duty to produce a statement of accounts that complies with 

approved accounting standards. As explained in previous performance update reports, the 

task of ensuring that the Statement of Accounts for 2021 to 2022 could be signed off by 

Audit Wales had taken longer than expected. However, at September’s meeting, an 

audited final set of accounts for 2021 to 2022 was approved by the Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

The first draft of the Annual Statement of Accounts for 2022 to 2023 has been submitted to 

the external auditors and was submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee in 

September for information. After consulting with Audit Wales, it is currently planned that 

the audited accounts will then be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee in 

spring 2024 for formal approval. 

Annual Treasury Management 

At meetings in July and September, Governance and Audit Committee and Cabinet 

reviewed the Annual Treasury Management report, which outlines the council’s investment 

and borrowing activity for 2022 to 2023. The report also provides details of the economic 

climate during that time and shows how the council complied with its Prudential Indicators. 

The council’s outstanding borrowing at 31 March 2023 was £261.5million at an average 

rate of 4.15% and the council held £24.2million in investments at an average rate of 

3.41%. Members were reminded of the three priorities when investing funds, of these 

three, the key factors for Denbighshire were security and liquidity.  

Governance and Audit Committee also scrutinised the Treasury Management Update 

Report, which provides details of the council’s treasury management activities during 2023 

to 2024 to June. The update set out the borrowing strategy of the authority, which would 

likely be required to take out additional borrowing. The main reason for the increase in 

borrowing was due to the Rhyl Flooding scheme. The project would have to be funded by 

Tudalen 227

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6669&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=24576&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6738&LLL=0


 
120 

the council to later reclaim the funds from Welsh Government. Interest rates were currently 

high, this impacted borrowing costs. The council did try to borrow short term where 

possible from other authorities, and was receiving advice from Arlingtonclose Ltd Treasury 

Management consultants. The budget position and the Capital Plan would be monitored in 

the light of the worsening financial outlook for the medium term. A review of the money 

laundering policy had begun, with a draft of the new policy available.  

Other developments in the last period  

Budget pressures  

The council is facing significant funding gaps in future years. This funding gap (or budget 

pressure) has come about due to high rates of inflation (everything is costing us more), 

pay settlements and increased demand for our services, particularly in relation to 

children’s and adult’s social care. The council’s Senior Leadership Team and Cabinet are 

working closely to deliver a balanced budget so that the council is financially stable now 

and in the future. We are looking at all options as to how best to find the savings next year 

that can cover this funding gap, so we can set a balanced budget. Senior managers have 

been asked to identify potential efficiencies and savings within their services so that we 

can come up with a comprehensive list of potential savings across everything we do. This 

is going to involve many difficult decisions about the level of services we currently offer. 

We are no different to all other local authorities in this regard. We have invited staff to 

contribute ideas for areas of savings or efficiencies that could help contribute to ensuring 

that the council can set a balanced budget over the coming years. The suggestions will be 

considered by the Finance and Audit Service, the Corporate Executive Team and Cabinet 

during October and November. During the period we implemented a series of measures to 

introduce corporate budget controls including vacancy control procedures, and a 

requirement for Head of Service authorisation for use of agency staff, overtime and credit 

card payments. 

Performance Management 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Performance management means the structures and processes we have in 

place to ensure that we deliver what we said we would, whilst encouraging active 

involvement and challenge from across the council, our elected members, and residents. 

Tudalen 228



 
121 

Internal Audit Reviews 

The Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) attended Governance and Audit Committee in July, to 

update the committee on the Internal Audit Team’s progress as well as providing 

summaries of Internal Audit reports. The report confirmed that seven audits had been 

completed since April, none of which received a low assurance rating. Please also see our 

section on clear performance expectations. 

Self-Assessment of Performance 

At its meeting in July, County Council approved its Self-Assessment report for 2022 to 

2023. Identified Improvement Actions will be taken forward through Service Plans and, 

where appropriate Corporate Plan Boards or strategic leads. Progress will be monitored 

through our quarterly reports. Additionally in this period, the Strategic Planning and 

Performance Team has published the council’s first quarter Performance Update Report 

for 2023 to 2024, which will be available to view with our earlier reports on 

denbighshire.gov.uk/performance. Combined with this present report, these are the first 

two of four that make up our ongoing Self-Assessment for the year. 

Corporate Plan 2022 to 2027: Performance Management Framework 

By the time of this, our third report on the new Corporate Plan performance management 

framework, the flow of data and information is becoming steadily smoother as the 

framework becomes more embedded. The Strategic Planning and Performance Team 

continue to work closely with Services to address any gaps or aspects still in need of 

development. 

Update the Performance Management Guide 

Following agreement of the new Corporate Plan’s Performance Management Framework 

and governance arrangements, as well as changes to the Senior Leadership structure, it is 

timely to review the council’s Guide to Improving Services – the guide that explains the 

council’s approach to performance management. Work has been ongoing on this through 

the summer, and should be finalised by the autumn. 

Annual Stakeholder Survey 

In this period, we have launched our Stakeholder Survey for 2023 to 2024, inviting 

feedback on how the council is performing. The Survey will run until February 29, 2024, 

Tudalen 229

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=6668&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=6775&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/performance
https://countyconversation.denbighshire.gov.uk/kms/elab.aspx?CampaignId=948&noip=1&SessionId=MD4E547RWG


 
122 

and may be completed online or through paper copies available on request at our libraries. 

It will also be promoted through our partner networks, social media and the press. The 

results of the survey will again feed into our end-of-year Self-Assessment report, and will 

be shared with our managers to inform service improvement. 

Service Performance Challenge 

The Service Performance Challenge Programme continues, with Education and Children’s 

Services having been through the process in this last period. Some challenges were also 

rescheduled in this period to accommodate newly appointed Heads of Service. Key 

actions arising from these discussions are discussed in the clear performance 

expectations section and will be noted with the Improvement Actions below, and progress 

will be captured in future performance update reports. 

Risk Management 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Risk management refers to our planned approach to identify, assess, control 

and monitor risks and opportunities facing the council. 

Corporate Risk Register 

As reported above, our review of the Register commenced in September 2023. Whilst not 

yet signed off, as at September, 54% of our corporate risks are inconsistent with the 

council’s risk appetite statement. The current review has included a significant 

rationalisation of the Register with some risks being merged and removed, some being 

deescalated back to be managed through service risk registers and two new risks being 

added. This has enabled a greater focus on the risks associated with not being able to 

deliver a balanced budget, or where insufficient funding leads to a withdrawal or scaling 

back of services, even when a balanced budget is delivered. 

Workforce Planning 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Workforce planning means the process by which we analyse, forecast and 

plan workforce supply and demand, and assess gaps to ensure that we have the people 

and skills - now and in the future - to deliver our services and fulfil our strategic objectives. 

Tudalen 230



 
123 

Staff Training, Development and Mental Health 

Since the Agile Working policy was approved in July, four training sessions for managers 

have taken place, which have been attended by over 60 managers. HR Business Partners 

have attended all service management team meetings to discuss the new policy.  

The Time to Change action plan is nearly complete. The only remaining action is to ensure 

that Mental Health Champions are in place. The Champions will have a role in ensuring 

that support for mental health and well-being is embedded across the council. We have 

also changed our Employee Assist Programme to a new provider, to ensure we can offer 

support services through the medium of Welsh.  

Improve the information we have about our workforce 

This information includes equality information to support more detailed analyses in future 

Public Sector Duty Reports. Due to continual changes in staff, the equality information we 

have about our workforce tends to fluctuate. By the end of September, we had equality 

information for 69.4% of staff. A data collection survey will be launched during October to 

December to ensure that we have as much data in the HR system as possible. It should 

be noted however that some staff choose not to disclose information about themselves. 

Workforce planning 

As reported previously, workforce planning was identified as a continually important area 

of work for the Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Service, during its Service 

Performance Challenge. HR Business Partners work closely with all services on a regular 

basis by issuing monthly reports.  

A fresh workforce planning process will commence in the new year, by which time the new 

senior leadership structure will be in place, with all new Heads of Service in post from 

November. Furthermore, a follow up review of the Internal Audit Review of workforce 

planning undertaken in May, is due to take place between January and March 2024. 

In the meantime, there continues to be a significant focus on recruitment, especially in 

social care and health roles. In July, a report was presented to Performance Scrutiny 

Committee providing information and progress on the workforce plan including recruitment 

and retention activities, together with turnover and sickness absence data for 2022 to 

2023. A further report will be presented to the Committee in 12 months’ time detailing the 

progress made in relation to workforce planning and recruitment and retention. The 

Tudalen 231

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/jobs-and-employees/my-employment/leave-and-attendance/flexible-working.aspx
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6750&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=269&MId=6750&LLL=0


 
124 

Committee requested that Heads of Service for those services where staff recruitment and 

retention are proving to be a persistent challenge be invited to that meeting to discuss the 

potential impact of those challenges on service delivery and how they are addressing staff 

shortages in the short to medium term, until long-term solutions are found.  

As reported for our Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language theme 

above, following approval of the Welsh Language Strategy 2023 to 2028 in June, officers 

have been developing guidance to inform recruitment of staff with Welsh essential and 

Welsh desirable skills. The aim is to move to a position whereby every job has, as a 

minimum, a Level 1 Welsh language skills requirement (some positions will require a Level 

5 skill). 

Progress in delivering the action plan of the Social Care Recruitment and Retention 

Operational group continues. Two places have been awarded on the Open University full 

BA (Hons) programme, and a further three candidates are starting the Higher Certificate 

pathway. Furthermore, several care homes are employing Ukrainian refugees with great 

success and both Denbighshire County Council care homes are providing placements to 

Working Denbighshire citizens. 

Service Challenge Action: DBS Compliance 

Safer recruitment remains a high priority for the council and continued efforts to increase 

compliance means this action is now complete. We will continue to monitor compliance on 

a monthly basis as part of our core HR business as usual work.  

Assets 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. By assets we are referring to our management of the council’s estate 

(including office buildings and highway infrastructure owned and / or controlled by the 

council) and digital assets. 

Asset Management Strategy 

During this period, the council has taken steps to ascertain the structural integrity of its 

buildings in the face of nationwide concerns about the use of Reinforced Autoclaved 

Aerated Concrete (RAAC) in public buildings. Discussion about RAAC in relation to school 

buildings has been reported in our Learning and Growing theme. The Asset Management 

Team has been reviewing data from previous RAAC Surveys and this has been prioritised 

Tudalen 232

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6736&LLL=0


 
125 

above all other work. Welsh Government has asked for information about the presence or 

risk of RAAC in non-school buildings.  

The first revised portfolio plan was planned to be reported to the Asset Management 

Group in September but has been postponed until November. Portfolio plans will inform 

the development of the new Asset Management Strategy. The New Ways of Working 

project was established to look at the capacity and use of offices to seek ways to maximise 

the use of space across the council’s portfolio. This will be reviewed with the Corporate 

Executive Team over the coming months.  

ICT strategy 

Having a good robust ICT infrastructure that can innovate as well as handle growing 

pressures from across the council was discussed during the Highways and Environmental 

Service Performance Challenge. It was agreed that the service should work with ICT to 

improve the way the service delivers its functions and that the ICT Strategy should 

prioritise service needs in the face of limited resources. 

Procurement 

Below are improvement actions that have been identified in support of this area of 

governance. Procurement is the process by which the council meets its needs for goods, 

services, works and utilities in a way that achieves value for money and good outcomes for 

society, culture and the economy, whilst contributing to decarbonisation and nature’s 

recovery. 

Denbighshire Procurement Strategy 

A new and updated Denbighshire Procurement Strategy was approved by Cabinet in 

September. It reflects and supports the council's corporate priorities and the seven well-

being goals and aligns with the upcoming UK Government Procurement Bill and the Social 

Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act. Expectations about what we buy and 

how we buy it are increasing, and we will be expected to deliver not only value for money 

but also have a positive impact on the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-

being of our communities, known as socially responsible procurement.  

New procurement regulations, that streamline over 300 current individual regulations, will 

be introduced and we need to prepare, raise awareness and train all officers affected. New 

powers, responsibilities and obligations are included in the Procurement Bill and this 

Tudalen 233

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6738&LLL=0


 
126 

currently includes obligations to consider small businesses, including local businesses; 

produce a pipeline of future procurements that is visible and easily accessed; and publish 

contract reports. 

A joined up and streamlined approach to commissioning, procurement, contract 

management and reporting will be required to ensure Denbighshire gains the best possible 

outcomes from new procurement regulations. This will involve working across the council 

to support Denbighshire’s local supply chain. 

Governance arrangements to manage implementation of the new strategy are being 

determined. 

Decarbonisation Procurement Expertise 

The Business Partner – Carbon, funded by Denbighshire and Flintshire Councils including 

Denbighshire’s Climate Change Team, commenced in post on Sept 4. The postholder will 

revisit regional contracts as they expire with the aim to, where possible, reduce carbon 

emissions in the future and identify community benefits in council contracts that reduce 

carbon and increase carbon absorption. They will also work with business and suppliers in 

the county to encourage lower carbon practice, starting first with the Design and Print 

framework. The postholder has been attending Service’s management team meetings to 

raise the importance of reducing carbon in our spend. They are working on a more robust 

methodology to enable us to accurately report on (and impact) actual carbon emitted via 

procurement, rather than use the Welsh Government model that aligns carbon emissions 

to spend. Future reports will focus on decarbonisation via procurement, and progress in 

implementing our new Procurement Strategy. 

Biodiversity Protection and Decarbonisation in Procurement 

As reported previously, biodiversity protection and improvement is considered in all council 

procurements, and to enhance this we are working with our Climate Change team to 

develop specific questions to include in procurement notices. Biodiversity protection and 

improvement also forms part of our approach to community benefit 'asks' of contractors, 

which can range from improved planting schemes to protect or improve biodiversity to 

working with school children to raise awareness of ecology and biodiversity. To this end 

this is considered business as usual and the Procurement and Climate Change teams will 

continue to work closely together to determine the ‘asks’ we seek via procurement. 

Tudalen 234



 
127 

Contract Procedure Rules 

It remains the case that Contract Procedure Rules will be updated to reflect new UK Public 

Procurement legislation, which is due in 2023 to 2024. We will continue to report on 

progress through this report in the meantime. We are planning a cross-council workshop to 

take place in October, which will include a presentation from an official from Welsh 

Government on the changing procurement landscape, followed by a shorter presentation 

from the same official to our Senior Leadership Team in November.  

Supporting Businesses and Partners to Adapt 

As reported previously, the new and developing legislation from Welsh and UK 

governments will represent a change on current practice for the council and its procuring 

services, businesses and the supply chain. The aim is for smaller local businesses to be 

more engaged in, and to benefit from, procurement. To this end, procurement will feature 

in the 2024 March for Business campaign, planning for which is already underway. A 

communications plan is also being developed and will be shared with the council’s Senior 

Leadership Team in October.  

Balfour Beatty, as part of the coastal defence schemes, has committed to deliver 

workshops to community-led organisations on how to develop strategy early in 2024. They 

will be supported by Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council to deliver a workshop in the 

north of the county and are aiming to work with the South Denbighshire Partnership to 

offer an additional workshop in the south.  

North Wales Construction Framework Phase 3 

In May, Cabinet approved the initiation of a project to procure the North Wales 

Construction Framework Phase 3 (phase 2 is due to end in May 2024).  The project is now 

live. The tender period finishes on October 2 and we will seek Cabinet’s approval in 

December to appoint successful contractors. This is a framework for all North Wales local 

authorities. The Framework has been a catalyst for engagement and upskilling of local 

contractors operating within the regional supply chain, and this will encourage local 

contractors to be become part of phase 3. 

Tudalen 235

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6735&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6735&LLL=0
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=281&MId=6735&LLL=0


 
128 

Improvement Actions 

There have been no improvement actions identified though this report.  

A Service Performance Challenge took place for Education and Children’s Services and 

no new improvement actions were identified. 

 

 

Tudalen 236



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad 

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 30 Tachwedd 2023 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Catrin Roberts, Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Cymorth 

Corfforaethol:  Pobl  

Awdur yr Adroddiad Rhian Evans, Cyd-lynydd Craffu 

Teitl Rhaglen Waith Craffu 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Perfformiad adolygu ei raglen 

gwaith i'r dyfodol drafft (gweler Atodiad 1).  Wrth ei hadolygu gofynnir i’r 

Pwyllgor adlewyrchu ar sut y gall Craffu gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflawni Cynllun 

Corfforaethol y Cyngor a’i nod o ddod yn Ddi-Garbon Net ac yn Ecolegol 

Bositif erbyn 2030, tra ar yr un pryd flaenoriaethu materion sydd yn nhŷb y 

Pwyllgor yn bwysig craffu arnynt. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Gofyn i’r Pwyllgor adolygu a chytuno ar ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol, a rhoi’r 

wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i aelodau ar faterion perthnasol.  

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

Bod y Pwyllgor yn:  

3.1 ystyried yr wybodaeth a ddarparwyd ac yn cymeradwyo, diwygio neu'n newid ei 

raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol fel y gwêl yn briodol;  ac 

3.2 yn penderfynu os oes unrhyw prif bwyntiau neu themau o’r cyfarfod hwn y 

dymuna dynnu sylw atynt trwy’r wasg a/neu’r cyfryngau cymdeithasol. 

Tudalen 237

Eitem Agenda 7



 
 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1 Mae Adran 7 Cyfansoddiad Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn nodi cylch gorchwyl, 

swyddogaethau ac aelodaeth pob Pwyllgor Craffu, yn ogystal â rheolau 

gweithdrefnau a trafodaethau.   

 

4.2 Mae’r Cyfansoddiad yn amodi bod yn rhaid i bwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor osod, 

ac adolygu’n rheolaidd, rhaglen ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r dyfodol.  Trwy adolygu a 

blaenoriaethu materion, gall aelodau sicrhau bod y rhaglen waith yn cyflwyno 

agenda a arweinir gan yr aelodau. 

 

4.3 Arfer sydd wedi’i fabwysiadu yn Sir Ddinbych ers nifer o flynyddoedd yw bod 

pwyllgorau craffu’n cyfyngu ar nifer yr adroddiadau a ystyrir mewn unrhyw 

gyfarfod i uchafswm o bedwar, yn ogystal ag adroddiad rhaglen waith y 

Pwyllgor ei hun.  Nod y dull hwn yw hwyluso trafodaeth fanwl ac effeithiol ar bob 

pwnc. 

 

4.4 Yn y blynyddoedd diweddar mae Llywodraeth Cymru (LlC) ac Archwilio Cymru 

(AC) wedi tynnu sylw at yr angen i gryfhau rôl craffu ar draws llywodraeth leol a 

gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys defnyddio craffu fel 

modd o ymgysylltu â phreswylwyr a defnyddwyr gwasanaeth.  O hyn allan, 

disgwylir i graffu ymgysylltu'n well ac yn amlach â'r cyhoedd gyda bwriad i 

sicrhau penderfyniadau gwell a fydd yn y pen draw yn arwain at well 

canlyniadau i ddinasyddion.  Bydd Archwilio Cymru yn mesur effeithiolrwydd 

craffu wrth gyflawni'r disgwyliadau hyn. 

 

4.5 Gan ystyried y weledigaeth genedlaethol ar gyfer craffu a chanolbwyntio ar yr 

un pryd ar flaenoriaethau lleol, gwnaeth y Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu (GCIGC) argymell y dylai pwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor, wrth 

benderfynu ar eu rhaglenni gwaith, ganolbwyntio ar y meysydd allweddol 

canlynol:  

 arbedion ar y gyllideb; 

 cyflawni Themau y Cynllun Corfforaethol (gyda phwyslais arbennig ar y 

modd o’u cyflawni yn ystod cyfnod o galedi ariannol);  

Tudalen 238



 
 

 unrhyw eitemau eraill a gytunwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu (neu'r GCIGC) fel 

blaenoriaeth uchel (yn seiliedig ar y meini prawf profion PAPER - gweler ochr 

gefn y ‘Ffurflen Cynnig gan Aelodau’ yn Atodiad 2); 

 Materion brys, na ragwelwyd neu flaenoriaeth uchel; a  

 Cefnogi gwaith adfer parhaol y Cyngor mewn perthynas ag effeithiau'r 

argyfwng COVID-19 ar wasanaethau’r Cyngor, yr economi leol a 

chymunedau’r sir 

 

4.6 Ffurflenni Cynnig ar gyfer Craffu 

 Fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 4.2 uchod, mae Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

gofyn i bwyllgorau craffu baratoi ac adolygu rhaglen ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r 

dyfodol.  Er mwyn cynorthwyo’r broses o flaenoriaethu adroddiadau, os yw 

swyddogion o’r farn fod pwnc yn haeddu amser i gael ei drafod ar raglen fusnes 

Craffu, mae’n rhaid iddynt wneud cais ffurfiol i’r GCIGC i Graffu ystyried derbyn 

adroddiad ar y pwnc hwnnw.  Gwneir hyn trwy gyflwyno ‘ffurflen gynnig’ sy’n 

egluro pwrpas, pwysigrwydd a chanlyniadau posibl craffu ar y pynciau a 

awgrymir. 

 

4.7 Er mwyn gwneud gwell defnydd o amser craffu drwy ganolbwyntio adnoddau 

pwyllgorau i archwilio testunau’n fanwl, gan ychwanegu gwerth drwy’r broses o 

wneud penderfyniadau a sicrhau gwell canlyniadau ar gyfer preswylwyr, 

penderfynodd y GCIGC y dylai’r aelodau, yn ogystal â swyddogion, lenwi 

'ffurflenni cynnig ar gyfer craffu’ yn amlinellu pam eu bod yn credu y byddai'r 

testun yn elwa o fewnbwn craffu.  Mae copi o’r ‘ffurflen gynnig gan aelod’ i’w 

gweld yn Atodiad 2.  Mae ochr gefn y ffurflen hon yn cynnwys siart lif sy'n 

rhestru'r cwestiynau y dylai aelodau eu hystyried wrth baratoi i gynnig eitem ar 

gyfer craffu, ac y dylai pwyllgorau eu gofyn wrth benderfynu ar addasrwydd 

testun i'w gynnwys ar y rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol craffu.  Os, ar ôl cwblhau’r 

broses hon, y penderfynir nad yw’r testun yn addas i’w archwilio’n ffurfiol gan 

bwyllgor craffu, yna gellir ystyried dulliau eraill o rannu’r wybodaeth neu 

archwilio’r mater e.e. darparu ‘adroddiad gwybodaeth', neu os yw’r mater yn un 

o natur leol gellir ei archwilio gan y Grŵp Ardal Aelodau (GAA) perthnasol.  Ni 

fydd unrhyw eitemau'n cael eu cynnwys ar raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol heb lenwi 

‘ffurflen gynnig ar gyfer craffu' a derbyn cymeradwyaeth i'w gynnwys ar y 

Tudalen 239



 
 

rhaglen gan y GCIGC.  Mae cymorth ar gael i lenwi’r ffurflenni gan y Cydlynydd 

Craffu.  

 

  Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes 

4.8  Yn wreiddiol roedd yr eitem uchod i’w chyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor yn ei gyfarfod nesaf 

ar 25 Ionawr 2024. Fodd bynnag, mewn ymateb i gais gan swyddogion, mae'r 

Cadeirydd wedi caniatáu ei gohirio tan y cyfarfod dilynol ar 7 Mawrth.  Ar hyn o 

bryd mae ymholiadau ar y gweill i weld a ellir dod ag eitem sydd ar hyn o bryd 

wedi’i rhestru ar gyfer cyfarfod mis Mawrth ymlaen i gyfarfod mis Ionawr yn lle’r 

adroddiad uchod.  Adroddir ar lafar i’r Aelodau am ganlyniad yr ymholiadau hyn 

yn y cyfarfod ar 30 Tachwedd. 

 
  Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet 

4.9 Wrth benderfynu ar eu rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol mae’n ddefnyddiol i’r 

pwyllgorau craffu ystyried amserlen rhaglen waith y Cabinet.  At y diben hwn, 

mae copi o rhaglen gwaith i'r dyfodol y Cabinet ynghlwm yn Atodiad 3.  

Datblygiad Penderfyniadau’r Pwyllgor  

4.10 Yn Atodiad 4 o’r adroddiad hwn mae tabl yn crynhoi penderfyniadau diweddar y 

Pwyllgor ac yn cynghori’r aelodau ar ddatblygiadau yn sgîl y penderfyniadau.   

5. Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-Gadeiryddion Craffu 

5.1 Dan drefniadau craffu’r Cyngor mae’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion 

Craffu (GCIGC) yn gweithredu fel pwyllgor cydlynu.  Cyfarfu’r Grŵp ar 3 Hydref 

2023. Yn y cyfarfod hwnnw dyrannwyd un eitem ar gyfer ystyriaeth gan y 

Pwyllgor hwn. Mae’n ymwneud ag adroddiad gan Archwilio Cymru o’r enw ‘A 

yw Swyddogaethau Cymorth Corfforaethol y Cyngor yn Effeithiol?’. Mae'r 

adroddiad wedi'i amserlennu i'w gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor yn ei gyfarfod ym mis 

Mawrth 2024 (gweler Atodiad 1 ynghlwm). 

5.2  Cynhelir cyfarfod nesaf y Grŵp ar 28 Tachwedd 2023.  Bydd unrhyw faterion a 

gyfeirir ar gyfer ystyriaeth y Pwyllgor hwn yn y dyfodol yn cael eu hadrodd ar 

lafar yn y cyfarfod ar 30 Tachwedd. 

Tudalen 240



 
 

6. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Cynllun 

Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: Y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

6.1. Bydd craffu effeithiol yn gymorth i'r Cyngor gyflawni ei Gynllun Corfforaethol yn 

unol ag anghenion cymunedau a dymuniadau trigolion.  Bydd datblygu ac 

adolygu rhaglen waith gydlynol yn barhaus yn cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i ddarparu 

ei themau corfforaethol, i wella canlyniadau i breswylwyr tra hefyd yn dygymod 

â phwysau ar adnoddau ac ar y gyllideb. 

 

6.2. Er bydd y penderfyniad ar flaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor ei hun yn gyfraniad 

niwtral tuag at nod y Cyngor o ddod yn Ddi-Garbon Net ac yn Ecolegol Bositif 

erbyn 2030, gall y Pwyllgor, trwy graffu’n effeithol ar yr holl faterion a ystyrir 

ganddo gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflawni'r uchelgais hwn. 

7. Beth fydd y gost a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau 

eraill? 

7.1. Mae’n bosib y bydd yn rhaid i wasanaethau neilltuo amser swyddog i 

gynorthwyo’r Pwyllgor gyda’r eitemau a nodwyd yn y rhaglen waith a chydag 

unrhyw gamau gweithredu yn dilyn ystyried yr eitemau hynny. 

8. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les?  

8.1. Nid oes Asesiad o Effaith ar Les wedi ei wneud mewn perthynas â phwrpas neu 

gynnwys yr adroddiad hwn.  Ond bydd y Pwyllgor Craffu, drwy ei waith yn 

archwilio darpariaeth gwasanaethau, polisïau, gweithdrefnau ac argymhellion, 

yn ystyried eu heffaith neu eu heffaith posib ar yr egwyddor o ddatblygu 

cynaliadwy a'r amcanion o ran lles a nodir yn Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r 

Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

9. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd gyda Chraffu ac eraill? 

9.1. Does dim angen cynnal ymgynghoriad ar yr adroddiad hwn  Fodd bynnag, 

mae’r adroddiad ei hun a’r ystyriaeth a roir gan y Pwyllgor i’w raglen waith ar 

gyfer y dyfodol yn gyfystyr ag ymgynghoriad gyda’r Pwyllgor o ran ei raglen 

waith. 

Tudalen 241



 
 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w 

lleihau? 

10.1. Nid oes risg wedi ei ganfod o ran y Pwyllgor yn ystyried ei raglen waith.  Fodd 

bynnag, drwy adolygu ei raglen gwaith i'r dyfodol yn rheolaidd, gall y Pwyllgor 

sicrhau y rhoddir ystyriaeth ac yr archwilir meysydd risg pan eu bod yn cael eu 

nodi, a gwneir argymhellion gyda’r bwriad o fynd i’r afael â’r risgiau hynny. 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 

11.1. Adran 21 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000. 

11.2. Mae Adran 7.11 Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn datgan y bydd pwyllgorau craffu 

ac/neu’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu yn gyfrifol am osod eu 

rhaglenni gwaith eu hunain, gan ystyried dymuniadau Aelodau o’r Pwyllgor nad 

ydynt yn aelodau o’r grŵp gwleidyddol mwyaf ar y Cyngor. 

 

Tudalen 242



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

 
Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

        

25 January 
2024 

Cllr. Emrys 
Wynne 

1. Library Service 
Standards 2022-23 
 

To consider the results of the 
WG’s annual evaluation of the 
Council’s Library Service and 
receive information on how the 
Service has progressed and 
adapted its service provision 
during the year  

Identification of any slippages 
in performance in order to 
formulate recommendations 
to redress the situation and 
ensure that the Service 
delivers the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and its 
corporate themes in relation 
to a learning & growing; 
healthier, happy and caring; 
better connected; fairer, safer 
and more equal 
Denbighshire; a Denbighshire 
of vibrant culture and thriving 
Welsh language as well as a 
well-run and high performing 
Council. 

Liz 
Grieve/Deb
bie Owen 

March 2023 

 Cllr. Gill 
German 

2. Ensuring 
Engagement in 
Education 
 
[Education] 

To examine the work being 
undertaken to promote 
attendance and engagement in 
education, as well as the actions 
taken/sanctions applied where 
pupils are not engaging 

Ensuring that all possible 
steps are being taken to 
monitor pupils’ engagement 
with education, to provide 
appropriate encouragement 
and support for vulnerable 
and hard to reach pupils to 
re-engage with their 
education and to help them 
understand the long-term 
implications of not engaging. 

Geraint 
Davies/Wa
yne 
Wheatley 

By SCVCG 
April 2023 

        

7 March Cllr. Gill 
German 

1. 2018 Estyn 
Inspection 
Recommendations 

To detail in full the work 
undertaken to fully address the 
recommendations made in the 

Ensuring that all of the 
regulators recommendations 
have been complied with and 

Geraint 
Davies 

By SCVCG 
April 2023 

T
udalen 243



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 
[Education] 

2018 Estyn Inspection report of 
the education services provided 
by  Denbighshire County Council, 
including how the measures taken 
to address the recommendations 
were received and monitored. 

regularly monitored with a 
view to delivering a learning 
and growing Denbighshire 
that is fairer, safe and more 
equal to all pupils 

 Cllr. Gill 
German 

2. Elective Home 
Education 
 
[Education] 

To examine the Authority’s 
policies and procedures in relation 
to supporting and monitoring the 
delivery of Elective Home 
Education 

Ensuring that the Council 
meets its statutory 
responsibilities with regards 
to pupils who elect to be 
educated at home, whilst 
also ensuring they are 
appropriately supported and 
safeguarded.  

Geraint 
Davies/Joe 
Earl 

By SCVCG 
April 2023 

 Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

3. ‘Are the Council’s 
Corporate Support 
Functions Effective?’ 

To consider the progress 
achieved to date in addressing 
the two recommendations made 
by Audit Wales in its May 2023 
report along with the Council’s 
future plans for sufficiently 
resourcing its wider corporate 
support services’ functions 

To ensure that the Council 
complies with AW’s 
recommendations, the 
requirements of the Well-
Being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 and is 
adequately resourced to 
deliver its Corporate Plan 
2022-27 

Gary 
Williams/C
atrin 
Roberts/He
len 
Vaughan-
Evans 

By SCVCG 
October 
2023 

 Leader 4. Economic & 
Business 
Development 
 

To:   
(i) consult with the Committee on 

the draft new Denbighshire 
Economic & Community 
Ambition Strategy for 2024 
onwards; 

(ii) detail how the current and 
proposed new Strategy 
dovetail with the work of the 
North Wales Economic 
Ambition Board, Welsh & UK 
Governments and other 
economic development 
partners to support the 

Formulation of 
recommendations in relation 
to the new Strategy that will 
help secure the delivery, in 
partnership with all 
stakeholders, of a more 
prosperous Denbighshire 
that provides employment 
and business opportunities 
for residents to improve the 
quality of lives and support 
thriving, cohesive 
communities 

Emlyn 
Jones/ 
Gareth 
Roberts 

By SCVCG 
November 
2022 
(reschedule
d 
November 
2023) 

T
udalen 244



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

delivery of a thriving economy 
in Denbighshire; and  

(iii) outline the work being 
undertaken to mitigate against 
the potential outcomes 
identified in Risk 36 of the 
Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register 

        

18 April   Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register: February 
2024 Review 
 

To seek the Committee to review 
the risks facing the Council and 
the Council’s risk appetite 
statement.  

Determination of whether the 
Committee is satisfied with 
risk management within the 
Council and is assured that 
all identified risks are 
appropriately managed. 

Helen 
Vaughan 
Evans/Iolo 
McGregor/
Nicola 
Kneale/Hei
di Barton-
Price  

February 
2023 

(Possibly 
invite a 
representati
ve from 
Openreach
?) 

Cllr. Emrys 
Wynne 

2. Internet Connectivity 
in Denbighshire  

To consider the progress made to 
date, and future plans, for 
increasing and 
improving/upgrading internet 
connectivity for all areas of the 
county (including the latest 
position in relation to Fibre 
Community Partnerships and the 
UK Government’s Project Gigabit 
roll out along with any other 
potential support/voucher 
packages that may be available 
for businesses and residents to 
access)  

Support accessibility for all 
businesses and residents in 
the county to fibre broadband 
speeds that meet their 
individual needs, that will in 
turn support the delivery of 
the Council’s corporate 
themes of a ‘better 
connected Denbighshire’, ‘a 
prosperous’ county that is 
‘fairer, safe and more equal’ 
as well as a learning and 
growing county. 

Liz 
Grieve/Barr
y 
Eaton/Cath 
Taylor/Fran 
Williams/Ph
ilip Burrows 

June 2023 
(reschedule
d October 
2023) 

 Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

3. Denbighshire’s 
Revised Draft 
Climate & Ecological 
Change Strategy 
2021/22 – 2029/30 

To present the Committee with: 
(i) the findings and conclusions 

of the consultation exercise 
undertaken to revise the 
Strategy; and  

(i) Pre-decision scrutiny of 
the revised draft Strategy 
with a view to seeking 
Scrutiny’s support for its 
adoption and 
implementation; and  

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/ 
Nicola 
Kneale 

June 2023 
(reschedule
d 
November 
2023) 

T
udalen 245



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

(ii) the revised draft Strategy for 
detailed scrutiny  

(ii) For Scrutiny to determine 
whether it wishes to 
monitor its delivery going 
forward with a view to 
supporting the Council to 
deliver its net carbon zero 
ambition by 2030 

        

6 June Cllr. Elen 
Heaton 

1. Cefndy Performance 
Report 2023/24 

To consider Cefndy’s annual 
performance report for the 
2023/24 financial year, including 
the delivery of its financial, 
business and social well-being 
objectives 
 

To ensure the future financial 
and business sustainability of 
Cefndy in order that it 
effectively supports the 
delivery of the Council’s 
corporate themes of learning 
and growing; healthier and 
happier, caring; and 
prosperous Denbighshire 

Ann 
Lloyd/Nick 
Bowles 
 

January 
2023 

 Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

2. Council Performance 
Self-Assessment 
Update (Q4 & 
Annual) 

To present an update on the 
Council’s performance against its 
functions, including Corporate 
Plan and Strategic Equality 
objectives 

Identification of areas for 
improvement and potential 
future scrutiny 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/Em
ma 
Horan/Nicol
a Kneale 

June 2023 

 Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

3. Recruitment, 
Retention & 
Workforce Planning  

To provide details of: 
(i) the work underway to recruit, 

develop, support and retain 
staff 

(ii) interventions put in place to 
support and strengthen 
recruitment, retention & 
workforce planning across the 
Council; and  

(iii) identification of any hard to 
recruit services/positions 
across the authority and 
interim measures taken to 
alleviate the pressures caused 

Identification of potential 
future workforce pressure 
areas and the formulation of 
recommendations with a 
view to alleviating those 
pressures and secure the 
Council’s ability to 
sustainably deliver its 
services in future  

Gary 
Williams/Lo
uise 
Dougal 

July 2023 

T
udalen 246



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

within those services (Heads 
of Service for those services 
to be invited to attend to 
discuss the impact of 
staffing pressures on 
operational service delivery) 

        

18 July Cllrs. Gill 
German & 
Elen Heaton 

1. Draft Director of 
Social Services 
Annual Report 
2023/24 

To scrutinise the content of the 
draft annual report to ensure it 
provides a fair and clear 
evaluation of performance and 
clearly articulates future plans 

Identification of any specific 
performance issues which 
require further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins/A
nn 
Lloyd/Rhiai
n 
Morelle/Da
vid Soley 

June 2023 

 Cllr. Gill 
German 

2. Christ The Word  
 
[Education] 

To consider the progress made in 
delivering the Post Inspection 
Action Plan (PIAP) and the joint 
local authority & GwE school 
support plan following the 2022 
Estyn inspection of the school, 
along with the consequential 
impact of the plans’ delivery on 
the school as a whole 

Regular monitoring of the 
arrangements in place to 
address the 
recommendations contained 
in the Regulator’s report will: 
(i) secure continual 

improvement in all 
aspects of the school’s 
work to ensure that all 
pupils are supported to 
achieve their full 
potential; and 

ensure that the lessons 
learnt by all stakeholders are 
applied across all schools in 
Denbighshire as they 
introduce the new curriculum; 
and 
(ii) support the delivery of the 

Council’s corporate 
priorities of a learning and 
growing Denbighshire as 

Nicola 
Stubbins/ 
Geraint 
Davies/Jam
es 
Brown/Gw
E/Christ the 
Word staff 
& 
Governing 
Body 

September 
2023 

T
udalen 247



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

well as a fairer, safe and 
more equal county. 

        

26 
September 

Cllr. Gill 
German 

1. Curriculum for Wales 
 
[Education] 
 
(School staff to be 
invited to attend) 

To detail the progress made in 
relation to implementing and 
embedding the new Curriculum 
for Wales: 
(i) in primary schools and in year 

7 and 8 in secondary schools 
– what worked well, areas for 
improvement and lessons 
learnt by all stakeholders 
during the initial 
implementation phase; and 

(ii) provide an evaluation of the 
implementation process 
across all key stages, the 
Curriculum’s impact on staff 
recruitment and retention, 
along with feedback from 
headteachers, teachers and 
school-based staff on their 
experiences of the 
implementation process and 
the advantages and/or 
disadvantages of the new 

Curriculum for learners. 

Assurances that all 
educational establishments 
and staff are fully equipped 
and trained to deliver the 
new curriculum, identification 
of any gaps or risks 
associated with the provision 
and solutions to address 
them, with a view to ensuring 
that children and young 
people in Denbighshire 
realise their full potential in 
line with the Council’s 
Corporate Plan   

Geraint 
Davies/Jam
es 
Brown/Gw
E 

July 2023 

 Cllr. Gill 
German 

2. Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) 
Transformation 
 
(School staff to be 
invited to attend) 
 
[Education] 

To analyse: 
(i) the effectiveness of the funding 

provided to schools to meet the 
Act’s requirements; 

(ii) progress made in recruiting 
and supporting Educational 
Psychologists; 

(iii) school-based educational 
practitioners’ feedback on the 
resources and support 

To reduce the risk of the 
Authority not complying with 
any of the requirements of 
the Act and to ensure that 
every pupil and student in the 
County is given the required 
support and opportunities to 
realise their full potential 
whilst ensuring that school-
based staff are adequately 

Geraint 
Davies/Rut
h 
Thackray/J
oseph Earl 

July 2023 

T
udalen 248



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 7 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

provided to schools with a view 
to meeting the Act’s additional 
requirements; and  

(iv) staff recruitment and retention 
matters relating to the 
implementation of the Act’s 
requirements.” 

supported and equipped to 
deliver the required support. 

 Cllr. Gill 
German & 
Cllr. Emrys 
Wynne 
 
[Education] 

3. Delivery of the Welsh 
in Education 
Strategic Plan 
(WESP) in the 
County’s Schools 

To report on the progress made to 
date in delivering the WESP in all 
of the county’s schools in line with 
the Welsh Government’s vision 
for Welsh language provision 

To ensure that all schools 
are appropriately resourced 
and supported to achieve 
their statutory targets in 
relation to the delivery of 
Welsh-medium provision 
whilst also supporting all 
pupils to realise their full 
potential 

Geraint 
Davies/Mar
c Lloyd 
Jones/Jam
es 
Curran/Car
wyn 
Edwards 

September 
2023 

        

28 
November  

Cllr. Rhys 
Thomas  

1. Denbighshire’s 
Housing and 
Homelessness 
Strategy Action Plan 
 
(1st business item on 
agenda) 

To examine the progress made to 
date in delivering the revised 
Strategy and Action Plan 
approved by County Council in 
December 2020 

The identification of actions 
that will support and ensure 
the delivery of the Council’s 
Corporate Theme of quality 
housing that meets people’s 
needs and ultimately the 
Corporate Plan.  

Emlyn 
Jones/ 
Angela 
Loftus/Jane 
Abbott 

September 
2023 

 Cllr. 
Gwyneth 
Ellis 

2. Council Performance 
Self-Assessment 
Update (July – Sept) 
 
 

To present an update on the 
Council’s performance against its 
functions, including Corporate 
Plan and Strategic Equality 
objectives 

Identification of areas for 
improvement and potential 
future scrutiny 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/Em
ma Horan 

November 
2023 

 Cllr. Julie 
Matthews 

3. Corporate Risk 
Register: September 
2024 Review 
 

To seek the Committee to review 
the risks facing the Council and 
the Council’s risk appetite 
statement.  

Determination of whether the 
Committee is satisfied with 
risk management within the 
Council and is assured that 
all identified risks are 
appropriately managed. 

Helen 
Vaughan-
Evans/Iolo 
McGregor/ 
/Heidi 
Barton-
Price  

November  
2023 

 

T
udalen 249



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 8 

 
Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

     

Learner Travel Measure (Wales) 
 
 
[Education] 
 
TBC – once outcome of WG Review 
available (review autumn 2023 & 
report considered by CET) 

To outline the conclusions of the recent 
Welsh Government consultation on the 
Measure and its implications for 
Denbighshire schools and pupils 

Identification of potential changes 
to the Council’s learner travel 
policy and any associated costs 
and budget implications 

Geraint 
Davies/Ian 
Land 

January 
2021 
(rescheduled 
Sept 2022 & 
Jan & May 
2023) 

Denbigh Health and Social Care and 
the Rebalancing of Social Care 
Agenda (now widened was Dolwen 
Residential Care Home  
(now to be considered as part of the 
future vision for health and social 
care services in the Denbigh area) 
 
Sometime during 2024/25 (tbc) 

To review the future provision of services 
at Dolwen to meet the growing demand 
and complexity of need, whilst supporting 
people to live in a home that meets their 
needs and allows them to live an 
independent and resilient life.  
 

Pre-decision scrutiny of the task 
and finish group’s findings and the 
formulation of recommendations 
for presentation to Cabinet with 
respect of the future provision of 
services at Dolwen with a view to 
ensuring that everyone is 
supported to live in homes that 
meet their needs and are able to 
live independent and resilient lives  

Task and Finish 
Group/Ann 
Lloyd/Katie 
Newe 

July 2018 
(delayed due 
to COVID-
19) 

Post 16 provision at Rhyl College 
(suggested for scrutiny during service 
challenge) 
 
Date tbc following the easing of 
COVID-19 restrictions 

To examine the post 16 provision at Rhyl 
College 

The development of an effective 
working relationship between the 
College and the Council to secure 
the delivery of courses required to 
support the delivery of the North 
Wales Growth Deal and improve 
the future prospects of the area’s 
students  

Rhyl College 
(and invite 
Geraint Davies 
& John Evans – 
post 16 officer 
from DCC) 

By SCVCG 
July 2020  

     

 
  

T
udalen 250



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 9 

Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

March & September 
2024 
 
[Information] 

Council Performance Self-Assessment 
Update 
Q1 & Q3 

To present an update on the Council’s 
performance against its functions, including 
Corporate Plan and Strategic Equality 
objectives 

Emma 
Horan/Nicola 
Kneale 

September 
2023 

Feb/May/Sept/November 
each year 
 
[Information] 

Quarterly ‘Your Voice’ complaints 
performance to include social services 
complaints  

To scrutinise Services’ performance in 
complying with the Council’s complaints and 
identify areas of poor performance with a view 
to the development of recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  The report to include: 
(i) a comprehensive explanation on why 

targets have not been met when dealing 
with specific complaints, reasons for non-
compliance, and measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure that future 
complaints will be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe;  

(ii) how services encourage feedback and use 
it to redesign or change the way they deliver 
services; and 

(iii)details of complaints which have been 
upheld or partially upheld and the lessons 
learnt from them. 

 
Report to include example(s) of complaints and 
compliment(s) received. 
 
Consideration of the information provided 
will assist the Committee to determine 
whether any issues merit detailed scrutiny 

Kevin Roberts/Ann 
Lloyd 

September 
2023 

Information Report  
(March 2024) 

Management of the Council’s Housing 
Stock 

To review the effectiveness of practices in 
place to manage the Council’s Housing stock, 
incl. dealing with complaints, reports of mould 
& condensation, provision of personal advice 
and support to tenants including those who 
reside in older persons schemes, the new 

Liz Grieve/Geoff 
Davies 

March 2023 

T
udalen 251



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 10 

working model for Housing Officers and the 
development of new ways of working with 
residents from the lessons learnt through 
COVID-19  

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

25 January 2024 11 January  7 March 22 February 18 April  4 April 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
 
Updated 16/11/2023 RhE 

T
udalen 252



 

Atodiad 2 

Ffurflen Gynnig ar gyfer Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol Craffu 
 

 
ENW'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 
 

 

 
AMSERLEN I'W HYSTYRIED 
 

 

 
TESTUN   
 

 

 
Beth sydd angen ei graffu arno (a 
pham)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn un o bwys i 
drigolion/busnesau lleol? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi craffu yn gallu dylanwadu ar bethau 
a’u newid?  
(Os 'ydi' nodwch sut rydych chi’n meddwl y 
gall craffu ddylanwadu neu newid pethau) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

 
Ydi’r mater yn ymwneud â gwasanaeth 
neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
Ydi’r mater yn effeithio ar nifer fawr o 
drigolion neu ardal fawr o’r Sir?  
(Os 'ydi', rhowch syniad o faint y grŵp neu’r 
ardal yr effeithir arni) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 
 
 

Ydi’r mater yn gysylltiedig â themau 
corfforaethol y Cyngor? 
(Os 'ydi' nodwch pa thema(u)) 
 

 
YDI/NAC YDI 

 

 
Hyd y gwyddoch, oes yna rywun arall yn 
edrych ar y mater hwn? 
(Os 'oes', nodwch pwy sy'n edrych arno) 
 

 
OES/NAC OES 

 

Os derbynnir y testun ar gyfer craffu, 
pwy fyddai arnoch chi eisiau eu 
gwahodd e.e. Aelod Arweiniol, 
swyddogion, arbenigwyr allanol, 
defnyddwyr y gwasanaeth? 

 

 
Enw'r Cynghorydd/Aelod Cyfetholedig 
 

 

Tudalen 253



 

 
Dyddiad 

 

 

Ystyried addasrwydd pwnc ar gyfer craffu 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NA (dim cam gweithredu nac adroddiad 

gwybodaeth pellach) 

 

 

Ffurflen Gynnig / Cais a dderbyniwyd 

(dylid rhoi ystyriaeth ofalus i’r rhesymau dros wneud cais) 

 Ydi o’n bodloni’r gofynion canlynol? 

 Diddordeb Cyhoeddus – ydi’r mater o bwys i drigolion? 

 Effaith– fedr craffu yn gael effaith ar bethau a’u newid? 

 Perfformiad – ydi o’n wasanaeth neu faes sy’n tanberfformio? 

 Graddfa – ydi o’n effeithio ar nifer o drigolion neu ardal 

ddaearyddol fawr? 

 Ailadrodd – ydi’r mater yn destun craffu/ymchwiliad gan berson 

neu gorff arall? 

 

 Penderfynu ar y canlyniadau a ddymunir  

 Penderfynu ar gwmpas a swmp y gwaith craffu sydd ei angen a’r dull mwyaf 

priodol o graffu (h.y. adroddiad pwyllgor, ymchwiliad grŵp tasg a gorffen neu 

aelod cyswllt ac ati) 

 Os penderfynir sefydlu grŵp tasg a gorffen, dylid penderfynu ar amserlen yr 

ymchwiliad, pwy fydd yn rhan o’r ymchwiliad, beth yw’r gofynion ymchwilio, a oes 

angen cyngor arbenigol a thystion, a beth yw’r trefniadau adrodd ac ati. 

YDI 

NAC 

YDI 

Dim gweithredu pellach gan y 

Pwyllgor Craffu. Gellir ei gyfeirio 

at gorff arall neu ofyn am 

adroddiad er gwybodaeth. 

Tudalen 254



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

19 
December 

1 Library Savings Proposal To outline how savings could 
be achieved by reducing 
Library Services 

Yes Cllr Emrys Wynne 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Liz Grieve 

 2 North Wales Construction 
Framework (NWCF) Phase 3 

To approve the NWCF 
following the procurement 
exercise 

Yes Cllr Julie Matthews 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Karen Bellis 

 3 Housing Rent Setting & 
Housing Revenue and Capital 
Budgets 2024/25 

To seek approval for the 
proposed annual rent 
increase for council housing 
and to approve the Housing 
Revenue Account Capital 
and Revenue Budgets for 
2024/25 and Housing Stock 
Business Plan 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Geoff Davies 

 4 Contract for Haulage, Sorting 
and Brokerage of Dry Mixed 
Recycling (DMR) 

To consider a contract 
variation/extension of DMR 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Paul Jackson / Simon 
Lammond 

 5 Keep my Home Project To seek Cabinet approval to 
go out to tender for the 
project to support people 
living in Denbighshire to 
sustain their accommodation 
and prevent homelessness 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Nigel Jones/Sharon 
Whalley/Hayley S Jones 
 

T
udalen 255



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 6 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 7 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 

23 January 1 Budget 2024/25 - Final 
Proposals 

To consider the implications 
of the Local Government 
Settlement 2024/25 and 
proposals to finalise the 
budget for 2024/25 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 2 North Wales Velodrome 
Business Case 

To consider the business 
case for the North Wales 
Velodrome Project 

Tbc Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Tony Ward / Jamie Groves 

 3 Care Home Fee Setting 
2024/25 

To seek Cabinet approval for 
the Fee Structure 2024/25 

Yes Cllr Elen Heaton 
Lead Officer/ Report Author 
Nicola Stubbins/Ann Lloyd 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

T
udalen 256



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

      

 

20 February 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 

19 March 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 

23 April 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

T
udalen 257



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

21 May 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 

25 June 1 Performance Self-Assessment 
2023 to 2024 

To consider a report by the 
Strategic Planning Team for 
Council to approve the 
Performance Self-
Assessment 2023 to 2024. 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Helen Vaughan-Evans, Iolo 
McGregor, Emma Horan 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Liz Thomas 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 
 
FUTURE ITEMS 
 

T
udalen 258



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

19 Nov Council Performance Self-Assessment 
Update – July to September (QPR2) 

To consider a report by the Strategic 
Planning Team for Council to approve the 
Performance Self-Assessment July to 
September 

Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Helen Vaughan-Evans, Iolo 
McGregor, Emma Horan 

 

 
 
 
 
Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

19 December 5 December 23 January 9 January 20 February 6 February 
 
Updated 21/11/2023 – KEJ 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

T
udalen 259



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and 
title 

Resolution  Progress 

28 
September 
2023 

5.  Christ the 
Word Catholic 
School Inspection 
Report Update 

Resolved:  subject to the above comments and 
observations – 
(i) to acknowledge the progress made to date in 

delivering the action plans and improve standards 
across the school; and  

(ii) requested that a further progress report on the 
delivery of the Post Inspection Action Plan and 
the joint local authority and GwE school support 
action plan be submitted to the Committee at the 
end of the current academic year, in July 2024.   

Lead Member, Local Education 
Authority, GwE and Diocesan officers 
and relevant school staff informed of 
the outcome of the discussion.  A 
further report has been listed on the 
Committee’s forward work programme 
for July 2024’s meeting (see Appendix 
1) to enable members to continue 
monitoring the school’s progress. 

 6.  Whole School 
Approach to 
Emotional and 
Mental Well-being 

Resolved:  subject to the above observations –  
(i) to acknowledge the work undertaken to date in 

implementing the Welsh Government’s statutory 
framework on ‘embedding a whole-school 
approach’ to emotional and mental well-being 
across the county’s schools; and  

(ii) to support the efforts of all partners involved in 
developing appropriate levels of support across 
all of the county’s schools. 

Lead Member and officers advised of 
the Committee’s observations and 
recommendations 

 7.  Delivery of 
Welsh Medium 
Provision 

Resolved:   
(i) whilst acknowledging the unforeseen obstacles 

experienced as a consequence of the pandemic, 
to support the planning and implementation work 
undertaken to date in Denbighshire with respect 

Lead Members and Education Service 
officers informed of members’ 
comments and recommendations.  A 
further monitoring report on the 
delivery of the WESP has been 

T
udalen 261



of securing the delivery of Welsh medium 
curricula and non-curricula provision across the 
county’s schools in accordance with the Welsh 
Government’s vision; and  

(ii) request that a further progress report on the 
delivery of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
(WESP) be presented to the Committee in 12 
months’ time. 

scheduled into the Committee’s 
forward work programme for its 
meeting on 26 September 2024 (see 
Appendix 1) 

 8.  Denbighshire’s 
Housing and 
Homelessness 
Strategy Action 
Plan  

Resolved:  - subject to the above observations to – 
(i) confirm it had read and understood the report, 

and acknowledged the progress made to date in 
delivering Denbighshire’s Housing and 
Homelessness Strategy 2021 to 2026; and 

(ii) continue monitoring the delivery of the Strategy’s 
Action Plan on an annual basis, unless significant 
risks or concerns regarding the Authority’s ability 
to deliver it came to light which required Scrutiny’s 
attention.  

Lead Member and officers advised of 
the Committee’s recommendations.  
The next monitoring report has been 
scheduled into the  forward work 
programme for presentation to the 
Committee at its meeting on 28 
November 2024 (see Appendix 1) 

 

T
udalen 262


	Rhaglen
	2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD
	4 COFNODION Y CYFARFOD DIWETHAF
	5 ADRODDIAD AR Y GOFRESTR RISGIAU CORFFORAETHOL
	Corporate Risk Register Report 301123 - App 1
	Corporate Risk Register Report 301123 - App 2- Final
	Corporate Risk Register Report 301123 - App 3- Final
	Corporate Risk Register Report 301123 - App 4

	6 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM HUNANASESIAD Y CYNGOR O’I BERFFORMIAD
	Corporate Performance Self-Assessment Report 301123 - App 1

	7 RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO
	Performance FWP - App 11
	Work Programme Report  - App 2E (003)
	Work Programme Report - App 3 (003)
	Work Programme Report - App 4 (003)


